
 

 

 AGENDA 

CITY OF ROCKLIN PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: April 04, 2017 

TIME:  6:30 PM 

PLACE:    Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

www.rocklin.ca.us 

 

 

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the Planning Commission 

less than 72 hours before this meeting is available for inspection at the Community Development Department, 3970 

Rocklin Road, First Floor, Rocklin, during normal business hours. These writings will also be available for review at the 

Planning Commission meeting in the public access binder located at the back table in the Council Chambers. 

 

CITIZENS ADDRESSING THE COMMISSION 

Citizens may address the Planning Commission on any items on the agenda, when the item is considered.  Citizens 

wishing to speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand and stepping to the 

podium when requested to do so.  An opportunity will be provided for citizens wishing to speak on non-agenda items to 

similarly request recognition and address the Planning Commission. Three to five-minute time limits may be placed on 

citizen comments. 

 

All persons with electronic presentations for public meetings will be required to bring their own laptop or other form of 

standalone device that is HDMI or VGA compatible.  It is further recommended that presenters arrive early to test their 

presentations.  The City is not responsible for the compatibility or operation of non-city devices or the functionality of 

non-city presentations. 

 

ACCOMMODATING THOSE INDIVIDUALS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Rocklin encourages those with disabilities to 

participate fully in the public hearing process.  If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in 

our public hearing process or programs, please contact our office at (916) 625-5160 well in advance of the public 

hearing or program you wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. 

 

WRITTEN MATERIAL INTRODUCED INTO THE RECORD 

Any citizen wishing to introduce written material into the record at the hearing on any item is requested to provide a 

copy of the written material to the Planning Department prior to the hearing date so that the material may be 

distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing. 

 

COURT CHALLENGES AND APPEAL PERIOD 

Court challenges to any public hearing items may be limited to only those issues which are raised at the public hearing 

described in the notice or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the public hearing. (Government 

Code Section 65009) 

 

There is a 10-day appeal period for most Planning Commission decisions.  However, a Planning Commission approval of 

a tentative parcel map has a 15-day appeal period.  Appeals can be made by any interested party upon payment of the 

appropriate fee and submittal of the appeal request to the Rocklin City Clerk or the Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

Any person interested in an agenda item may contact the Planning Staff prior to the meeting date, at 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 or by phoning (916) 625-5160 for further information. 

Packet Pg. 1



Agenda of April 04, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. Meeting called to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Minutes 

5. Correspondence 

6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items 

 

CONSENT ITEMS 

 

 None 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

7. OAK VISTA TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP 

TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, SD2015-0002 

REZONE, Z2015-0002 

OAK TREE PRESERVATION PERMIT, TRE2015-0008 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map, Rezone, and Oak Tree Preservation 

Permit to subdivide six (6) parcels totaling 13.9 acres into 63 residential lots.  The subject site is generally located 

on the southwest corner of Makabe Lane and Diaz Lane and is bordered on three sides by the existing Rocklin 60 

Subdivision.  APN’s 045-043-009, -030, -031, -032, and -052 and 453-070-042. The zoning for this property is 

currently Unclassified. The General Plan designation is Medium Density Residential (MDR). 

 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Rocklin will consider adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 

development project described above.  The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 

65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 

 

The applicant is Ryan Bradford.  The property owner is Placer Partners, LLC. 

 

a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of a Mitigated 

Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts   (Oak Vista Subdivision / SD-2015-0002, Z-2015-0002, and 

TRE-2015-0008) 

 

b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of an Ordinance 

Rezoning an Area From Unclassified (U) to a Combination of Residential Six Thousand Square Foot Minimum 

Lot Size (R1-6) and Residential Twelve Thousand Square Foot Minimum Lot Size (R1-12.5) (Oak Vista 

Subdivision / Z-2015-0002) 

 

c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of a Tentative 

Subdivision Map and an Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit (Oak Vista Subdivision / SD-2015-0002, TRE-

2015-0008) 

 

Packet Pg. 2



Agenda of April 04, 2017 

Page 3 

 

 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

8. Informational Items and Presentations 

 

a. Report on Circulation Element Update 

 

9. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 

10. Reports from City Staff 

11. Adjournment 

 

 

Packet Pg. 3



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Oak Vista  
 

Tentative Subdivision Map, SD-2015-0002 
Rezone, Z-2015-0002 

Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit, TRE-2015-0008 
 

April 4, 2017 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Documents to facilitate Planning Commission action on the following items have been 
provided:  
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS   (Oak Vista Subdivision / SD-2015-0002, Z-2015-0002, and 
TRE-2015-0008) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE REZONING AN AREA FROM 
UNCLASSIFIED (U) TO A COMBINATION OF RESIDENTIAL SIX THOUSAND SQUARE FOOT 
MINIMUM LOT SIZE (R1-6) AND RESIDENTIAL TWELVE THOUSAND SQUARE FOOT 
MINIMUM LOT SIZE (R1-12.5) (Oak Vista Subdivision / Z-2015-0002) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP AND AN OAK TREE 
PRESERVATION PLAN PERMIT (Oak Vista Subdivision / SD-2015-0002, TRE-2015-0008) 
 
Proposal/Application Request 
 
The Oak Vista Subdivision project proposes the construction of a residential subdivision 
consisting of 63 single-family residential units on an approximately 13.9-acre site in the 
City of Rocklin. In order to allow the development of the project, the following 
entitlements have been requested: 

Packet Pg. 4

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 2 
 
• A Rezone (Z-2015-0002) to change the zoning from Unclassified (U) to a combination 

of Residential six thousand square foot minimum lot size (R1-6) and Residential 
twelve thousand five hundred square foot minimum lot size (R1-12.5); 

• A Tentative Subdivision Map (SD-2015-0002) to create 63 single family residential 
lots, as well as associated streets and related improvements. Single family 
residential lots would range in size from 6,120 square feet to 11,100 square feet for 
the fifty-nine (59) R1-6 lots and from 20,050 square feet to 21,129 square feet for 
the four (4) R1-12.5 lots; and 

• An Oak Tree Preservation Plan (TRE-2015-0008) to address the preservation, 
removal and mitigation of oak trees on the project site.  

• Authorization by the City Council to the City Manager to execute a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) concerning treatment of cultural resources. 
 

Location 
 
The project site is generally located on the southwestern corner of Makabe Lane and 
Dias Lane, adjacent on one boundary to the eastern city limits of the City of Rocklin. The 
site consists of six (6) parcels, designated by Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs) 045-043-
009, -030, -031, -032, and -052 and 453-070-042. See Figure 1.  
 

Figure 1. Project Location 

 

Packet Pg. 5

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
Owner/Applicant 
 
The applicant is Ryan Bradford of Equity Smart Investments, LP; the property owner is 
Placer Partners, LLC.    
 
Background and Site Characteristics  
 
The project site has been historically utilized for large lot rural residential development. 
The six parcels contained within the project boundaries contain four existing residential 
homes and associated structures. All structures are anticipated to be demolished prior 
to development of the proposed project. The existing homes were constructed in the 
1950s and are not identified as historic resources.  
 
The site includes a total of 420 native oak trees. 269 of the native oak trees are 
proposed for removal as part of the development of the project. Of the trees proposed 
for removal, the project arborist has designated 57 of the trees as dead, dying, or 
hazardous.  
 
Surrounding Land Uses 
 
The project site is bounded by Dias Lane to the east and the Rocklin 60 subdivision 
wraps around the north, west, south, and a portion of the easterly boundary of the 
project. The approximately 57-acre Rocklin 60 project was approved in 2010 to allow 
development of 169 lots, two parcels designated as open space for oak tree 
preservation between the project site and Dias Lane, and several landscape, and utility 
parcels.  
 
The properties on the east side of Dias Lane are located in the Town of Loomis in an 
area designated as Residential Estate in the Town of Loomis General Plan. This area has 
been developed with several single family residences on large lots.  
 
  

Packet Pg. 6

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 4 
 

Table 1.  Surrounding Uses 

 Current Use Current General Plan / Zoning 

Project 
Site 

Large lot single-family 
residential containing four 

residential units 

Medium Density Residential (MDR) / 
Unclassified (U) 

North Rocklin 60 residential 
subdivision 

MDR / Planned Development 4 dwellings per acre 
(PD-4) and Planned Development 2 dwellings per 

acre (PD-2) 

South Rocklin 60 residential 
subdivision MDR / PD-4 

East 

Town of Loomis 
Scattered residences, & 

Rocklin 60 residential 
subdivision 

Town of Loomis – Residential Estate, & Recreation 
Conservation (R-C) / Planned Development Open 

Area (PD-OA) 

West Rocklin 60 residential 
subdivision MDR / PD-4 

 

Figure 2. Current General Plan/Zoning 

 

 
 
  

Packet Pg. 7

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 5 
 
Previous Planning Commission Review  
 
At the hearing on December 20, 2016, the Planning Commission considered the 
proposed project. During the meeting, there were discussions regarding incorporation 
of Lots D and F (APNs 453-061-022 and 453-070-040), two landscape lots created with 
the Rocklin 60 subdivision, into the Oak Vista project (see Figure 3). These lots were 
created to buffer the large-lot residential properties to the north, which now comprise 
the Oak Vista project site, from the homes in the Rocklin 60 project. Because the Oak 
Vista project now proposes to develop the large lot parcels at a density consistent with 
Rocklin 60, this buffering is no longer necessary. As part of the Rocklin 60 project, these 
lots were required to be dedicated by the Rocklin 60 developer, Taylor Morrison, to the 
City through Irrevocable Officers of Dedication (I.O.D.). 
 
Three days prior to the Planning Commission hearing, staff received correspondence 
from Taylor Morrison stating that it did not agree that these lots should be incorporated 
into the proposed Oak Vista project and also expressing concern that Taylor Morrison 
had not received adequate compensation for the use of these lots, since they were no 
longer being utilized for landscape purposes.  
 

Figure 3. Lots D & F 

 

Packet Pg. 8

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 6 
 
 
Taylor Morrison and Placer Partners, the Oak Vista developer, reached an agreement 
the morning of December 20 regarding the wording of Condition of Approval #11.b. This 
modified condition, which was included as a Blue Memo at the Planning Commission 
hearing, stated the following: 
 

Prior to approval of a Final Map, issuance of a grading permit, or Improvement Plans 
(whichever occurs first) the applicant shall obtain ownership of Lots D and F for 
incorporation into the project. The transfer of these properties shall require 
agreement between the subdivider and the prior owners of Lots D and F, to the 
satisfaction of the City Manager. If the subdivider is unable to reach an agreement 
with the prior owner and the City Manager on the transfer of these lots, the 
subdivider will be required to apply for approval of a new or modified project that 
does not include these parcels. 
 

During public comment, Jay Pawlek, a representative from Taylor Morrison, stated that 
he was satisfied by the modified condition and therefore withdrew Taylor Morrison’s 
objections to the incorporation of Lots D and F into the Oak Vista project. No other 
public comment was received at the hearing. 
 
Following deliberation, the Commission voted 4-1 to recommend the project for 
approval to the City Council. 
 
Project Revisions 
 
Subsequent to the Planning Commission’s recommendation for approval, concerns were 
raised from some members of the Rocklin 60 neighborhood with regard to public 
noticing. Due to the fact that these residents had recently purchased their homes, they 
were not listed on the tax records which were utilized to prepare the noticing, 
consistent with Section 65091 of the Government Code. Therefore, some of these 
residents did not receive the mailings for the December 20 hearing. A letter was 
received on February 2, 2017 from Ryan and Christy Witz, stating a desire for the City to 
re-notice the project and bring it back to Planning Commission for review. The letter has 
been included as Attachment 1.  
 
Concerns from residents within the area primarily focused on the incorporation of Lot D 
into the subdivision. As described above, Lot D had previously been developed as a 
landscape lot along Black Willow Street. Residents within the area stated they had paid 
a premium for their lots because they fronted the landscaped Lot D and were opposed 
for this lot being utilized for anything other than landscaping. 
 

Packet Pg. 9

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 7 
 
In order to address the concerns of the neighbors within proximity of this landscape lot, 
the applicant revised the tentative subdivision map to remove Lot D from the project 
and to revise the proposed lot layout to avoid losing any residential lots. As amended, 
the project would retain Lot D as a landscape parcel, with no changes to the existing 
improvements, to be owned and maintained by the City.  
 
In addition, the revised map also removed Lot F, which is located along Silver Lupine 
Lane, from the project.  As proposed, the City would retain ownership of Lot F and 
would grant an access and landscape easement across the lot to provide access to Lots 
51 through 56 and allow the adjacent homeowners to landscape and be responsible for 
maintenance of their portions of Lot F, similar to areas with excess street rights-of-way.  
 
The revisions did not change the number of lots which had been proposed within the 
development (63), nor did it propose to modify any project development standards.  
 
It is staff’s understanding, from both Placer Partners and Taylor Morrison, that they are 
in agreement with regard to the disposition of Lots D and F and that Taylor Morrison has 
no further objection to the design of the proposed Oak Vista project. 
 
In order to address the revisions, and to ensure that the surrounding neighborhood has 
an opportunity to provide public comment, the project has been re-noticed and brought 
back to the Planning Commission for review and recommendation.  
 
Neighborhood Park (Rocklin 60) 
 
As part of the three-party discussions between the City, Placer Partners, and Taylor 
Morrison regarding the incorporation of the Oak Vista project with the existing Rocklin 
60 development, it was identified that this eastern section of Rocklin is one of the only 
areas in the City which has a deficit of parkland.   
 
As a result, separate from the Oak Vista project, the City has agreed to construct and 
maintain a small neighborhood park on a 1.57-acre parcel, which was dedicated to the 
City as part of the Rocklin 60 project (see Figure 4).  
  

Packet Pg. 10

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 8 
 

Figure 4. Lot E – Future Neighborhood Park 

 
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
The project site is designated as Medium Density Residential (MDR) on the Rocklin 
General Plan and is Unclassified (U) on the zoning map. The site is proposed to be 
rezoned as a part of this application to conform to the MDR General Plan land use 
designation (see Figure 5). 
 
According to the Rocklin General Plan, the MDR designation provides areas for single 
family homes on urban lots. The minimum density within MDR is 3.5 dwellings per acre 
and the density range allows for a maximum of 8.4 dwellings per acre. The project 
proposes 63 single family parcels on approximately 13.9 acres for a density of 4.5 
dwelling units per acre, which is consistent with the allowed range. The project 
proposes to rezone previously “Unclassified” property to a combination of R1-6 and R1-
12.5 zoning districts, both of which are consistent with the MDR designation. Therefore, 
the proposed project is in compliance with the General Plan.  
 

Packet Pg. 11

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 9 
 

Figure 5. Proposed Zoning Districts 

 
 
R1-6 lots 
 
The project proposes subdivision of the majority of the project site (approximately 11.5 
acres) into 59 lots, consistent with the proposed R1-6 zoning. The lots within this 
portion of the project would range in size from 6,120 square feet to 11,100 square feet.  
 
R1-12.5 lots 
 
In order to buffer potential project impacts to properties located to the east of the site 
in the Town of Loomis approximately 1.75 acres adjacent to Dias Lane would be 
developed as larger lots with R1-12.5 zoning. This area would be subdivided into four 
parcels, ranging from approximately 20,050 square feet to 20,140 square feet, similar in 
size to the adjacent parcels accessed via Dias Lane both in Rocklin and in the Town of 
Loomis.  All four lots conform to the Development standards set forth in the R1-12.5 
zone district. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 12

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 10 
 
Tentative Subdivision Map and Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit  
 
The Tentative Subdivision Map application proposes to subdivide the approximately 
13.9-acre site into 63 single-family residential lots and associated street improvements 
(see Figure 6). As stated above, the subdivision as proposed would comply with the 
development standards set forth in the proposed R1-6 and R1-12.5 zoning districts.  
 

Figure 6. Proposed Tentative Subdivision Map 

 

Packet Pg. 13

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 11 
 
Access and Circulation  
 
Roadways providing access to the project site would be Dias Lane and local street 
connections through the Rocklin 60 development to Sierra College Boulevard. Dias Lane 
is a two-lane street on the Rocklin/Loomis border providing access primarily to rural 
residential areas. Only the four lots proposed to front on this street would normally 
access Dias Lane.  An existing gated emergency only access, built with the Rocklin 60 
project, would also serve as an emergency access to Dias Lane for the Oak Vista 
development.  The remaining 59 lots would normally be accessed from Sierra college 
Boulevard via Schriber Way, a two-lane collector street providing access to commercial 
and residential areas, and several streets in the Rocklin 60 project, that were stubbed 
out with the intention of continuing the street network through the project site upon 
development. 
 
Utilities 
 
The project has been conditioned to install sewer, water, and other infrastructure 
required by the City and the applicable utilities to provide service to the project. All 
services are currently available to the project site.  
 
The Oak Vista subdivision incorporates Lot H, which was created with the Rocklin 60 
project as a privately-owned parcel to accommodate a road and private water easement 
extending westward from Makabe Lane along the project’s northern boundary. 
According to Placer County Water Agency (PCWA), this water easement exists only to 
provide untreated irrigation water to the properties being developed with the Rocklin 
60 project and as such the private road and water easement is no longer necessary.  
Prior to, or concurrently with, recordation of the final map, the project has been 
conditioned to abandon the existing road and private water easement. 
 
Drainage 
 
Storm water runoff from the project site would be collected in stormwater drainage 
pipes and then directed through water quality treatment devices/areas as Best 
Management Practices (BMP) and/or Low Impact Development (LID) features and then 
into the City’s storm drain system. The purpose of the BMP/LID features is to ensure 
that potential pollutants are filtered out before they enter the storm drain system. The 
City’s storm drain system maintains the necessary capacity to support development on 
the proposed project site. Therefore, violations of water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements are not anticipated. The proposed drainage has been reviewed 
by the City and is consistent with the current LID requirements.  
 
 

Packet Pg. 14

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 12 
 
Oak Trees 
 
The project site includes a total of 420 native oak trees within the boundaries of the 
project site of which 269 trees are proposed for removal as a part of the development. 
Of these, 57 trees have been identified as being dead, dying, or a hazard, and are 
therefore recommended for removal by the project arborist. The project has been 
conditioned to comply with the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance in order to 
mitigate for the removal of the trees.   
 
With regard to Lots 1-4 along Dias Lane, 11 trees have been identified as being in poor 
condition and are recommended for removal by the project arborist. These large, rural 
type lots are anticipated to be developed as custom lots with minimal grading and tree 
removal. As such, it is not possible to know the number of trees which would be 
removed as part of the development of homes on these lots. Mitigation for any oak 
trees removed to accommodate home construction would be addressed as set forth in 
the RMC for all custom lots. 
 
Letters from Commenting Agencies 
 
This project was circulated to various City, County, and utility agencies for review and no 
issues of concern were identified. Comments from agencies have either been addressed 
through the processing of the project or have been included as Conditions of Approval. 
 
Environmental Determination 
 
Consistent with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) an 
Initial Study was prepared to determine the project’s potential impacts on the 
environment. The study found that development of the proposed Oak Vista Subdivision 
project could have significant impacts with regard to Air Quality, Biological Resources, 
Cultural Resources and Hazardous Materials; however it was also able to identify 
mitigation measures that would reduce each of these potential impacts to a less than 
significant level. Therefore a Mitigated Negative Declaration of environmental impacts 
was prepared for the project. 
 
The Oak Vista Subdivision Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) was 
circulated for a 30-day public review period from November 17, 2016 to December 16, 
2016. The IS/MND was also submitted to the State Clearinghouse for the same time 
period to provide for a 30-day public review period for State agencies. The City received 
three comment letters during the public review period from, respectively, the State 
Clearinghouse, the Regional Water Quality Control Board and the Department of Fish 
and Wildlife. A summary of the letters and responses thereto are provided as 
Attachment 2.  

Packet Pg. 15

Agenda Item #7.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Oak Vista 
April 4, 2017 
Page 13 
 
 
As noted above, the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration identified mitigation 
measures to reduce Cultural Resources impacts to a less than significant level. One of 
those mitigation measures (V.-3) requires the City of Rocklin, the United Auburn Indian 
Community and the project applicant/developer to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) regarding the treatment and disposition of Cultural Resources. 
City Council would need to authorize the City Manager to execute the MOU on behalf of 
the City; therefore such authorization has been incorporated into the draft Resolution.  
 
Attachments: 

1) Letter from Ryan & Christy Witz (2/07/17) 
2) Summary of IS/MND Letters and Responses (12/20/16) 

 

Packet Pg. 16

Agenda Item #7.



1 / 6 
 

February 7, 2017 

 

The Honorable 

Scott Yuill 

Mayor of City of Rocklin 

3970 Rocklin Road 

Rocklin, CA, 95677 

 

The Honorable 

Ken Broadway 

Vice Mayor of City of Rocklin 

3970 Rocklin Road 

Rocklin, CA, 95677 

 

Dear Mayor Yuill and Vice Mayor Broadway, 

 

We would like to Thank you again for meeting with us. We greatly appreciate your time and ongoing 

commitment to your constituents. As discussed two weeks ago, we have serious concerns with the 

proposed 14.3-acre parcel development; Oak Vista Tentative Subdivision Map (SD2015-0002); Rezone 

(Z2015-0002), and Oak Tree Preservation Permit (TRE 2015-0008). Specifically, our concerns are 

identified below. 

 

1) Proposed use of Lot D (Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 453-061-022) in the Oak Vista Tentative 

Subdivision Map; 

In 2015, Taylor Morrison sold the three homes (Lot 21 (Ryan & Christy Witz), Lot 19 (Drew & Laurie 

Barovick), and Lot 18 (Jeff & Alysia Kool)) located on Black Willow Street that make-up the cul-de-sac 

bordering the new proposed development Oak Vista, and they committed that Lot D in the Taylor 

Morrison community would be transferred to the City of Rocklin and would remain as open space. This 

was true in many discussions that we had with their sales agents, as well as the purchase agreements 

executed in 2015. Specifically, Lots D, M, and L, were to be dedicated to the City to remain as open 

space parcels. While Lots M and L are proposed to remain open space parcels under the proposed Oak 

Vista development, the proposed use of Lot D is contrary to the commitment we received from Taylor 

Morrison. All three home owners paid a premium for their specific lot ($30,000-$35,000 each). Assuming 

the City Council approves of the proposed Oak Vista development, specifically the use of Lot D, the 

reduction of open space and installation of a six-foot brick wall along the perimeter of the property will 

have an adverse impact on our property values.  

 

 

Packet Pg. 17

Agenda Item #7.



2 / 6 
 

2) Improper and “defective” public noticing for the Planning Commission’s December 20, 2016, 

public hearing; 

Unfortunately, there were several mistakes in the public noticing process prior to the Planning 

Commission’s public hearing held on December 20, 2016. As you both are aware, the Planning 

Commission must provide public notice pursuant to Government Code section 65090 and 65091, and 

must hold at least one public hearing prior to rendering a decision and forwarding a written 

recommendation to the City Council.  

Government Code section 65090(a) and (b) states: 

“(a) When a provision of this title requires notice of a public hearing to be given pursuant to this 

section, notice shall be published to Section 6061 in at least one newspaper of general 

circulation within the jurisdiction of the local agency which is conducting the proceeding at least 

10 days prior to the hearing, or if there is no such newspaper of general circulation, the notice 

shall be posted at least 10 days prior to the hearing in at least three public places within the 

jurisdiction of the local agency. 

(b) The notice shall include the information specified in Section 65094.” 

As required in §65090(b), the notice shall include information specified in §65094, which states: 

“As used in this title, “notice of public hearing” means a notice that includes the date, time, and 

place of a public hearing, the identity of the hearing body or officer, a general explanation of the 

matter to be considered, and a general description, in text or by diagram, of the location of the 

real property, if any, that is the subject of the hearing.” 

Attached for your reference is a copy of the November 17, 2016, legal notice posted in the Placer 

Herald. Please note, this public notice failed to include the APN’s 453-043-009, 453-061-022 (Lot D), and 

453-070-040 (Lot F). To our knowledge, no correction was posted prior to the Planning Commission 

public hearing on December 20, 2016. This oversight was not only recognized by Taylor Morrison prior 

to the public hearing, but it was also acknowledged by Marc Mondell (Director of Economic & 

Community Development Department, City of Rocklin) in his email dated December 19, 2016, at 

12:26PM to Rick Horst (City Manager, City of Rocklin). Mr. Mondell stated in that email to Mr. Horst:  

“The letter does not address Taylor Morrison’s recent claim that the public notice for the 

Planning Commission hearing is defective because it did not include the remnant parcel APN 

numbers. Staff’s opinion is that any related oversight can be corrected when the item is noticed 

for hearing to City Council.” 

Not only did the City know prior the public hearing on December 20, 2016, that the public notice failed 

to fully comply with the aforementioned statutory requirements, but they knowingly decided to ignore 

the error and planned to conceal it by correcting the notice once the item was headed to the City 

Council.  

Lastly, Government Code section 65091(a)(4) and (a)(5)(B) state: 

“(a)(4) Notice of the hearing shall be mailed or delivered at least 10 days prior to the hearing to 

all owners of real property as shown on the latest equalized assessment roll within 300 feet of 

Packet Pg. 18

Agenda Item #7.



3 / 6 
 

the real property that is subject of the hearing. In lieu of using the assessment roll, the local 

agency may use records of the county assessor or tax collector which contain more recent 

information than the assessment roll…”  

“(a)(5)(B) Posted at least 10 days prior to the hearing in at least three public places within the 

boundaries of the local agency, including one public place in the area directly affected by the 

proceeding.” 

All three properties (Lot 21, 19, and 18) are located within 300 feet of the proposed Oak Vista 

development, and all three owners failed to receive a written notice prior to the public hearing on 

December 20, 2016. In fact, it wasn’t until approximately 24 hours prior to the public hearing, that a sign 

was posted near the street in front of the proposed development. Christy Witz contacted Nathan 

Anderson (Associate Planner, Planning Division, City of Rocklin) on December 20, 2016, about her 

concerns with the lack of adequate noticing.  

Without sufficient public noticing, it was impossible for the property owners to arrange for time off 

work and coordinate child care, in order to attend the public hearing held on December 20, 2016. The 

combination of inadequate noticing both publicly and directly to the adjacent property owners, whether 

intended or not, displays acting in bad faith on the part of the City. When combined with the other 

mistakes related to the public noticing, the City’s actions appear to favor the developers rather than the 

local residents who help make up this new community. Actions such as these appear to be dishonest, 

and lack the transparency needed to maintain trust with members of the community. 

 

3) Proposed unlawful transfer of remnant parcels (APN’s 453-061-022 and 453-070-040) 

As stated in Taylor Morrison’s letter (dated December 16, 2016) to the City of Rocklin, the “proposed 

transfer of Taylor Morrison’s Lots D and F to the applicant, violates several statutory and constitutional 

restrictions imposed upon the City.” They presented specific violations of law: 

“1) Land dedicated for a specific public purpose, as here, cannot be used or transferred for some 

other private purpose. 

 2) Land dedicated for a public purpose must be reconveyed to the subdivider if that public 

purpose ceases. Cited: Government Code section 66477.5 

 3) Federal and State statutory and constitutional requirements do not allow the taking of 

private property for a purpose unrelated to the development of the property affected by the 

taking. 

 4) The City’s Proposed Land Transfer Perpetuates A Fraud Upon Taylor Morrison. 

 5) The City’s Negative Declaration and Initial Study are fatally flawed.” 

Based on the conceptual agreement between Placer Partners, LLC (PP) and Taylor Morrison dated 

December 20, 2016, it appears that Placer Partners has agreed: 

“…to deed lot 21 as shown on the Tentative map for Oak Vista Subdivision dated October 2016 to 

Taylor Morrison Homes LLC (TMH). In return TMH agrees to deed/transfer Lots D and Lot F to PP or 

allow the City of Rocklin to complete transfer of lots D and F.” 

Packet Pg. 19

Agenda Item #7.



4 / 6 
 

While it appears there is a conceptual agreement in place, and the risk appears to be low for the 

unlawful transfer of property, it would be of concern to us if the official transfer of these parcels 

occurred between the City and the new developer without the consent of Taylor Morrison. 

 

4) Questionable decision making process behind keeping the proposed Oak Vista development as 

an item on the Planning Commission’s public hearing held on December 20, 2016 

 

After reviewing significant amounts of email correspondence between City staff members and Ryan 

Bradford (Equity Smart Investments on behalf of Placer Partners LLC; applicant), it is very clear that Mr. 

Bradford was pressuring the City to move forward expeditiously with the proposal and to ensure the 

proposal would be ready for the hearing scheduled on December 20, 2016. A clear example of this is in 

Mr. Bradford’s email dated October 19, 2016 at 2:02PM, to Mr. Anderson and Mr. Horst, where he 

stated “[W]e know the November meeting is out of the question but would like everything possible to be 

done to make the planning commission meeting in December.” In the City’s defense, Mr. Finning 

promptly responded in a letter to Mr. Bradford dated October 21, 2016, and listed numerous unresolved 

issues. Mr. Finning communicated in the same letter that:  

“If all of the above can successfully be addressed by the 27th, it’s possible that the project could 

be presented to the Planning Commission on December 20. However, even with all the best 

efforts this is a very aggressive timeline that depends upon everything going perfectly. As such, it 

remains likely that review and noticing requirements could push the feasible hearing date to 

January of 2017.” 

In fact, one of the three items that Bret Finning (Planning Services Manager, Planning Division, City of 

Rocklin) noticed Mr. Bradford to resolve by October 27, 2016, was to provide verification of an 

agreement with Taylor Morrison to acquire Lots D and F. Mr. Bradford responded to the City’s letter via 

email on October 24, 2016 at 12:22PM, requesting to meet the City’s staff in person to finalize “some of 

the issues mentioned in your letter.” Mr. Finning accepted the invitation to meet, and clearly stated in 

his response (email dated October 24, 2016 at 3:37PM), “Please keep in mind that scheduling a meeting 

does not change the deadline in noted in my letter Friday for trying to achieve a December hearing.” 

Unfortunately, the applicant failed to meet the deadline of the October 27, 2016, and did not reach a 

conceptual agreement with Taylor Morrison until December 20, 2016—almost 2 months after the 

deadline and only within hours of the Planning Commission’s public hearing. 

Even after the October 27, 2016, deadline passed, Mr. Anderson sent an email (dated December 7, 

2016, at 9:06AM) to Mr. Bradford, notifying him the City had received correspondence from Taylor 

Morrison in opposition of the proposed inclusion of Lots D and F. Mr. Anderson stated that it was of 

concern to Taylor Morrison since these lots were dedicated to the City, the “conveyance of these lots 

into the Oak Vista project for a use which does not reflect the original intent would be inappropriate.” 

Finally, in that email, Mr. Anderson communicated the following:  

“In light of this objection by Taylor Morrison, City Management is no longer willing to support 

this approach. It is once again encouraged that Oak Vista reach out to Taylor Morrison to try and 

rectify the situation. If an agreement can be reached prior to the end of this week, we can 

Packet Pg. 20

Agenda Item #7.



5 / 6 
 

continue with the current timeline and present the project to Planning Commission on December 

20. If not, we will have no choice but to continue the item off-calendar until a solution can be 

achieved or until the map is revised to omit these lots.” 

The City’s staff (Mr. Anderson and Mr. Finning) consistently maintained and communicated to Mr. 

Bradford regarding the necessity of obtaining an agreement with Taylor Morrison to incorporate Lot D 

and F into their proposed Oak Vista development. That was until an email (dated December 7, 2016 at 

9:36AM) from Mr. Mondell to Mr. Bradford, where it was communicated that upon consideration of a 

letter received from Mr. Bradford, staff had determined to proceed to the Planning Commission for its 

consideration on December 20, 2016. If that was the case—that staff made the determination—then 

why did Mr. Anderson contact Mr. Bradford 30-minutes prior with a completely different position? Why 

did Mr. Mondell include a note in the same email “By copy to Bret am making him aware of this decision 

and directing him to proceed accordingly.” The timeline behind the correspondence with Mr. Bradford 

and the City suggest this was a decision made in haste to proceed and that it did not include vital staff.  

Additionally, the City failed to notify Taylor Morrison of their decision, as illustrated in Dave Kalemba’s 

(Land Project Manager, Taylor Morrison) email dated December 13, 2016 at 10:56AM to Mr. Anderson 

asking for a status update on whether the proposed Oak Vista development was still on the agenda for 

the Planning Commission’s hearing date set for December 20, 2016. Upon Mr. Anderson’s notification of 

the City’s intention to keep this item on the agenda, Jay Pawlek (VP of Land Resources, Taylor Morrison) 

sent a request (dated December 13, 2016 at 12:49PM) to meet ASAP with Mr. Finning and Dave Palmer 

(City Engineer, City of Rocklin). Following several email exchanges Mr. Finning and Mr. Pawlek would 

eventually find a time to meet on December 20, 2016. During one of the email exchanges (dated 

December 13, 2016), Mr. Pawlek notified Mr. Finning and Mr. Palmer of the deficiencies in the public 

noticing. Mr. Pawlek later specified in an email (dated December 16, 2016 at 2:15 PM) to Mr. Finning, 

Mr. Mondell, Mr. Horst, and Mr. Palmer, the following:  

“We believe that the hearing notice is flawed because while it lists numerous APMs for the 

project, none of them are for Lots D & F. As such any resident that receives the notice would 

reasonably assume that those properties are not included in the project to be heard.” 

Despite knowing the applicant failed to meet deadlines outlined specifically in formal correspondence 

from the City that were also identified as contingent in order to be included in the December 20, 2016, 

public hearing, and despite knowing there were flaws in the public noticing process—first, as described 

by Mr. Pawlek on December 16, 2016, then acknowledged by Mr. Mondell to Mr. Horst on December 

19, 2016, and finally as communicated by Mr. Anderson to Mrs. Witz on December 20, 2016—the City 

continued to proceed with presenting the proposal to the Planning Commission. The lack of 

transparency on behalf of the City is of the upmost concern. Staff’s failure to communicate to Taylor 

Morrison once the decision was made on December 7, 2016, and their failure to properly notify the 

residents directly impacted by the proposal, portrays a decision-making process that has occurred in bad 

faith. Whether it was a developer pressuring to make sure their proposal continued forward 

unobstructed, or it was favoritism displayed on the City with the applicant, the hope of every Rocklin 

resident is that any actions taken by the City would always default to preserving the best interests for 

their residents. 

We respectfully request that this item be removed from the February 28, 2017, City Council agenda, and 

be returned to the Planning Commission and City staff for further analysis—hopefully, one that 

Packet Pg. 21

Agenda Item #7.



6 / 6 
 

incorporates or allows for public comments. We respectfully request that staff analyze the readiness of 

the proposal, in an unbiased manner, and that they adhere to the statutory requirements associated 

with public noticing prior to having the initial public hearing with the Planning Commission. We feel that 

restarting the process from the Planning Commission level is the most equitable way of maintaining 

integrity throughout the decision-making process, and would illustrate to your constituents your 

continued commitment to the serving the community over the interests of developers.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Original signed 
 
Ryan and Christy Witz 
5640 Black Willow Drive (Lot 21),  
Rocklin, CA 95677 

Original signed  
 
Drew and Laurie Barovick 
5636 Black Willow Drive (Lot 19),  
Rocklin, CA 95677 

 
 
Original signed 
 
Jeff and Alysia Kool 
5634 Black Willow Drive (Lot 18),  
Rocklin, CA 95677 

 

 

 

Cc: 

 

Mr. Nathan Anderson 
Associate Planner, Planning Division,  
City of Rocklin 

Mr. Bret Finning 
Planning Services Manager, Planning Division 
City of Rocklin 

Mr. Rick Horst  
City Manager,  
City of Rocklin 

Mr. Marc Mondell  
Director of Econ. & Com. Development,  
City of Rocklin 

Mr. Carl Sloan 
Chairman, Planning Commission,  
City of Rocklin 

Mr. Pierre Martinez 
Vice Chairman, Planning Commission,  
City of Rocklin 

Mr. Brian Whitmore 
Commissioner, Planning Commission,  
City of Rocklin 

Mr. Gregg McKenzie 
Commissioner, Planning Commission,  
City of Rocklin 

 

Packet Pg. 22

Agenda Item #7.



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  December 20, 2016 

TO:  Planning Commission Members’ 

FROM: David Mohlenbrok, Environmental Services Manager 

RE: Memo for Oak Vista Subdivision Project – Comments Received on Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Responses 

 
 
The Oak Vista Subdivision Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) was circulated 
for a 30-day public review period from November 17, 2016 to December 16, 2016. The IS/MND 
was also submitted to the State Clearinghouse for the same time period to provide for a 30-day 
public review period for State agencies. The City received three comment letters as a result of 
the public review period from the State Clearinghouse, the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board and the Department of Fish and Wildlife. Copies of those letters are attached to this 
memo, and a summary of the letters and responses thereto are provided below.  
 
SUMMARY OF STATE CLEARINGHOUSE COMMENT LETTER 
 
The State Clearinghouse provided comments acknowledging that the Oak Vista Residential 
Subdivision IS/MND was sent to state agencies for their review. The comments also identified 
the closing date of the IS/MND comment period and included an enclosure from one 
responding state agencies (Regional Water Quality Control Board).  
 
RESPONSE TO STATE CLEARINGHOUSE LETTER 
 
The State Clearinghouse comment does not affect the analysis or conclusions reached in the 
IS/MND and is considered to be noted. Additional response or revisions to the IS/MND are not 
necessary. Please refer below for a summary of and responses to the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board letter. 
 
SUMMARY OF REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD COMMENT LETTER 
 
The California Regional Water Quality Control Board (CRWQCB) provided comments related to 
their responsibility of protecting the quality of surface water and groundwaters of the state. 

Packet Pg. 23

Agenda Item #7.



 

 
 

The comments provided general information related to the various permits administered by the 
CRWQCB, including a description of the regulatory setting, the purpose of the permits, 
how/when the permits are required and where to find additional information regarding the 
permits. There were no comments specific to the analysis within the Oak Vista Subdivision 
IS/MND. 
 
RESPONSE 
 
A general discussion of the CRWQCB permits applicable to the project and discussion of the 
project’s potential impacts to water quality is provided in the Oak Vista Subdivision IS/MND. 
Otherwise, the comments from the CRWQCB do not affect the analysis or conclusions reached 
in the IS/MND and are considered to be noted; additional response or revisions to the IS/MND 
are not necessary. 
 
SUMMARY OF DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE (DFW) LETTER 
 
1) Scoping – the Department of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) recommends a process for 
identifying and analyzing impacts to sensitive species and habitats begins with scoping, 
followed by surveys and mitigation development, and that although the California Natural 
Diversity Database (CNDDB) is one tool that may identify potential sensitive resources in the 
area, there are other resources that should be used for the identification of potential sensitive 
resources in the project area. 
 
2) Riparian Habitat/Streambed Alteration Agreement – the DFW notes that the CEQA 
analysis should state what, if any, Department-jurisdictional features will be removed, 
disturbed, or otherwise altered by the project and provides direction on what is included in the 
DFW’s jurisdiction under Section 1600 of the Fish and Game Code. The comment also includes 
discussion about how the IS/MND should describe the location of the riparian habitat or 
unknown stream and how it would be impacted by the proposed project, an acknowledgement 
that the DFW must rely on the CEQA document as a responsible agency, and that Direct 
Impacts and Indirect Impacts should be evaluated in the CEQA document. 
 
3) Deferred Mitigation – the DFW believes that because mitigation measure IV-1 relies on 
future approvals or agreements with the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers and the Regional Water Quality Control Board as a means to bring identified 
significant environmental effects to wetlands and waters of the U.S. to a less than significant 
level, the mitigation measure constitutes deferral of mitigation because there is no guarantee 
that approvals or cooperation with the above entities will ultimately occur, thus making the 
mitigation measures unenforceable and possibly not bringing impacts to below a less than 
significant level.  
 
4) Nesting Birds and Raptors – the comment notes that the project has the potential to 
disturb protected bird species or nests and potential impacts may be considered significant 
unless adequate avoidance, minimization and/or mitigation is incorporated. The comment also 
notes that mitigation measure IV-1 requires preconstruction surveys no more than 14 days 

Packet Pg. 24

Agenda Item #7.



 

 
 

prior to the start of construction but DFW recommends 3 days prior to construction, that if 
there is a break in construction activity for more than 2 weeks then subsequent surveys should 
be conducted, that due to changes in weather patterns some birds are nesting earlier in the 
year therefore it is recommended that nesting season dates be changed so that surveys are 
required between February 15 and September 1, and that the mitigation measure should 
include a performance-based protection measure. 
 
RESPONSES 
 
1) The biological resources assessment reports that were prepared to support the IS/MND 
included wetland delineations and field surveys by professional biologists. To determine 
potential special status species that may occur on the project site, project biologists queried 
DFW’s California Natural Diversity Database which includes special-status species as noted by 
the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and the California Native Plant Society 
(CNPS) data. Data was taken from on-site observations, by information provided by DFW and 
USFWS, information from the California Natural Diversity Database and review of 
environmental documents for other projects in the vicinity. These tools and datasets that were 
utilized to identify potential sensitive resources in the project area are consistent with the DFW 
recommendations contained in the comment. 
 
The comment does not affect the analysis or conclusions reached in the IS/MND and additional 
response or revisions to the IS/MND are not necessary. 
 
2) The IS/MND describes that the project includes a seasonal stream and one small 
adjacent wetland of approximately 0.47 acres in total, and that these features will be impacted 
by the project. The Biological Assessment and Delineation of Wetlands & Waters of the United 
States reports that were used to develop the analysis of the project’s impacts to Biological 
Resources are referenced in the IS/MND and were made available on the City’s website. These 
reports contain an in-depth discussion and exhibits regarding the biological and wetland 
resources that were identified on the project site and how they would be impacted by the 
project.  
 
The IS/MND and the referenced special studies identify the Direct Impacts that the project 
would have on biological resources. With respect to Indirect Impacts, the IS/MND tiers from the 
City of Rocklin General Plan EIR which analyzed the anticipated impacts that would occur to the 
biological resources of the Planning Area as a result of the future urban development that was 
contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included special-status species, species of 
concern, non-listed species, biological communities and migratory wildlife corridors (City of 
Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.10-1 through 4.10-47). Mitigation 
measures to address these impacts are incorporated into the General Plan in the Open Space, 
Conservation and Recreation Element, and include policies that encourage the protection and 
conservation of biological resources and require compliance with rules and regulations 
protecting biological resources, including the City of Rocklin Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance. 
 

Packet Pg. 25

Agenda Item #7.



 

 
 

The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals, policies and rules and regulations 
protecting biological resources, significant biological resources impacts will occur as a result of 
development under the General Plan and further, that these impacts cannot be reduced to a 
less than significant level. Specifically the General Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin 
General Plan will impact sensitive biological communities, will result in the loss of native oak 
and heritage trees, will result in the loss of oak woodland habitat and will contribute to 
cumulative impacts to biological resources. Findings of fact and a statement of overriding 
considerations were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these impacts, which were 
found to be significant and unavoidable. 

Although the Biological Assessment and Delineation of Wetlands & Waters of the U.S. reports 
did not describe the wetland and riparian features on the project site as being DFW-
jurisdictional, the City recognizes the possibility exists that such a determination could be later 
made and therefore is proposing to amend mitigation measure IV.-2 which addresses impacts 
to wetlands.  
 
Consistent with CEQA Guideline Section 15074.1 (Substitution of Mitigation Measures in a 
Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration), the City will amend mitigation measure IV.-2 to 
become a more effective mitigation measure in response to the DFW’s comment. Specifically, 
in addition to obtaining any necessary permits from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, the U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service and the Regional Water Quality Control Board for impacts to wetlands, 
the potential need for a DFW Streambed Alteration Agreement will also be included in the 
mitigation measure. Mitigation measure IV.-2 is amended as follows (new text shown in bold): 
 
IV.-2 Prior to any grading or construction activities, the appropriate Section 404 permit will 
need to be acquired for any project-related impacts to waters of the U.S. Any waters of the U.S. 
that would be lost or disturbed should be replaced or rehabilitated on a “no-net-loss” basis in 
accordance with the Corps’ mitigation guidelines. Habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or 
replacement should be at a location and by methods agreeable to the Corps. In association with 
the Section 404 permit and prior to the issuance of improvement plans, a Section 401 water 
quality certification from the Regional Water Quality Control Board and if determined 
necessary, a USFWS Biological Opinion shall be obtained. All terms and conditions of said 
permits shall be complied with. 
 
For potential impacts to riparian habitat, the project may be required to obtain a Section 
1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement (SAA) from the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife. If it is determined that a SAA is required, the applicant shall obtain one and all terms 
and conditions of the SAA shall be complied with. 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit documentation to the 
Public Services Department that they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 
permit, a Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 water quality certification, and if 
determined necessary, a United States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion and a 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife Section 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement. 
The applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department that they have 

Packet Pg. 26

Agenda Item #7.



 

 
 

implemented habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or replacement as stipulated in their 
Section 404 permit. The applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department how 
they have complied with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 permit, the Section 401 
water quality certification, and if applicable, the Biological Opinion and Section 1600 
Streambed Alteration Agreement. 
 
Should the Planning Commission move forward with project approval, their action on 
recommending approval of the IS/MND should include reference to the attached amended 
resolution and modifications to conditions 5. c. i and ii of the Tentative Subdivision Map and 
Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit Resolution (Packet page 161), consistent with the revisions 
to mitigation measure IV.-2 shown above. 
 
The comment does not affect the analysis or conclusions reached in the MND and additional 
response or revisions to the MND beyond those noted above are not necessary. 
 
3) Mitigation measure IV.-2 furthers several policies (OCR-5, OCR-39, OCR-40 and OCR-41) 
in the City of Rocklin General Plan related to the conservation, development and utilization of 
natural resources. Per the discussion in the IS/MND, these policies and conditions of approval 
serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards and/or as conditions of 
approval to ensure consistency with the respective documents as well as to ensure compliance 
with City rules and regulations.  
 
As noted in the IS/MND, a mitigation measure has been identified to require that the project 
obtain a Corps Section 404 permit, a U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion and a 
Regional Water Quality Control Board 401 water quality certification. Because impacts to 
wetlands and waters of the U.S. are within the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
(Corps) and the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) via Sections 404 and 401, 
respectively, of the Clean Water Act, the City has consistently relied upon the permitting 
processes of those agencies to jurisdictionally permit and mitigate project impacts to wetlands 
and waters of the U.S. In response to the DFW’s assertion that there is no guarantee that this 
approval or cooperation with the Corps or RWQCB will ultimately occur, the City’s long-standing 
experience has been that approvals and cooperation with the permitting and reviewing entities 
will occur. In the unlikely event that approvals and cooperation with the permitting and 
reviewing entities does not occur, it must be noted that ultimately the mitigation measures 
identified in the IS/MND become recorded conditions of approval for a project, thus allowing 
the City an enforcement mechanism to ensure that the mitigation measures identified in the 
IS/MND are implemented. If the project is unable to demonstrate that they have obtained the 
necessary permits and reviews identified in the mitigation measure/condition of approval, then 
the project will be unable to move forward. Lacking compliance with the mitigation 
measures/conditions of approval, the potential environmental impacts that were identified in 
the IS/MND and intended to be mitigated to a less than significant level through 
implementation of the mitigation measures would not occur. 
 
The comment does not affect the analysis or conclusions reached in the MND and additional 
response or revisions to the MND are not necessary. 

Packet Pg. 27

Agenda Item #7.



 

 
 

 
4) The City previously revised its pre-construction nesting bird survey mitigation measure 
to become a more effective mitigation measure in response to the DFW’s prior comments on 
prior environmental documents. Specifically, rather than requiring pre-construction surveys no 
more than 30 days prior to the start of construction as was the City’s prior practice, the City 
now requires that pre-construction surveys be conducted no more than 14 days prior to the 
start of construction. Rather than the suggested 3-day prior to the start of construction period, 
the 14-day time period is an accepted standard in the biological resources consulting industry 
and is also consistent with the portion of the DFW’s comment regarding if there is a break in 
construction activity of more than two weeks then subsequent surveys should be conducted.  
 
It should also be noted that mitigation measure IV.-2 states that if survey results are positive, 
the biologist shall consult with the DFW to determine the size of an appropriate buffer area and 
that monitoring of an active nest by a qualified biologist may be required, and that the City’s 
nesting date surveys are between February and August, consistent with the DFW 
recommendation of between February 15 and September 1. 
 
The comment does not affect the analysis or conclusions reached in the MND and additional 
response or revisions to the MND beyond those noted above are not necessary. 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
 

A. Substitute the amended MND resolution and revise mitigation measure IV.-2 as 
discussed in Item #2 above. 
 

B. Modify conditions 5. c. i and ii of the Tentative Subdivision Map and Oak Tree 
Preservation Plan Permit Resolution (Packet page 161), consistent with the revisions to 
mitigation measure IV.-2 discussed in Item #2 above. 

  

Packet Pg. 28

Agenda Item #7.



 

 
 

EXHIBIT A – LETTERS FROM STATE AGENCIES  
(REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD,  

DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE AND STATE CLEARINGHOUSE)  

Packet Pg. 29

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 30

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 31

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 32

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 33

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 34

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 35

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 36

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 37

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 38

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 39

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 40

Agenda Item #7.



Packet Pg. 41

Agenda Item #7.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF A MITIGATED NEGATIVE 

DECLARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Oak Vista Subdivision 

(SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008) 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rocklin's Environmental Coordinator prepared an Initial Study on 
the Oak Vista Subdivision project (SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008) (the "Project") 
which identified potentially significant effects of the Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, revisions to and/or conditions placed on the Project, were made or agreed to 
by the applicant before the mitigated negative declaration was released for public review, were 
determined by the environmental coordinator to avoid or reduce the potentially significant 
effects to a level that is clearly less than significant and that there was, therefore, no substantial 
evidence that the Project, as revised and conditioned, would have a significant effect on the 
environment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Initial Study and mitigated negative declaration of environmental 
impacts were then prepared, properly noticed, and circulated for public review. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. Based on the Initial Study, the revisions and conditions incorporated into 

the Project, the required mitigation measures, and information received during the public 
review process, the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds that there is no substantial 
evidence that the Project, as revised and conditioned, may have a significant effect on the 
environment. 

 
Section 2. The mitigated negative declaration reflects the independent judgment of 

the Planning Commission. 
 
Section 3. All feasible mitigation measures identified in the City of Rocklin General 

Plan Environmental Impact Reports which are applicable to this Project have been adopted and 
undertaken by the City of Rocklin and all other public agencies with authority to mitigate the 
project impacts or will be undertaken as required by this project. 

 
Section 4. The statements of overriding considerations adopted by the City Council 

when approving the City of Rocklin General Plan Update are hereby readopted for the purposes 
of this mitigated negative declaration and the significant identified impacts of this project 
related to aesthetics, air quality, traffic circulation, noise, cultural and paleontological 
resources, biological resources, and climate change and greenhouse gases.  

Packet Pg. 42

Agenda Item #7.a.



Page 2 of 
Reso No. 

 
Section 5. A mitigated negative declaration of environmental impacts and 

Mitigation Monitoring Program prepared in connection with the Project, attached hereto as 
Attachment 1 and incorporated by this reference, are recommended for approval for the 
Project. 

 
Section 6. The Project Initial Study is attached as Attachment 1 and is incorporated 

by reference. All other documents, studies, and other materials that constitute the record of 
proceedings upon which the Planning Commission has based its decision are located in the 
office of the Rocklin Economic and Community Development Director, 3970 Rocklin Road, 
Rocklin, California 95677. The custodian of these documents and other materials is the Rocklin 
Economic and Community Development Director. 

 
Section 7. Upon approval of the Project by the City Council, the environmental 

coordinator shall file a Notice of Determination with the County Clerk of Placer County and, if 
the project requires a discretionary approval from any state agency, with the State Office of 
Planning and Research, pursuant to the provisions of section 21152(a) of the Public Resources 
Code and the State EIR Guidelines adopted pursuant thereto. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _____, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  
  
NOES:  Commissioners:  
 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  
  
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary    
 

Packet Pg. 43

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 1 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

 

 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
CITY OF ROCKLIN       
3970 Rocklin Road 
Rocklin, California 95677 
(916) 625-5160 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

INITIAL STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 
 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
 

SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 
 
 
 

Southwest corner of Makabe Lane and Dias Lane in the City of Rocklin 
APN’s 045-043-009, -030, -031, -032, and -052 

 
 

November 17, 2016 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
 

David Mohlenbrok, Environmental Services Manager, (916) 625-5162 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
 

This Initial Study has been prepared by the City of Rocklin, as Lead Agency, under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Any questions regarding this document should 
be addressed to David Mohlenbrok at the City of Rocklin Economic and Community 
Development Department, Planning Division, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, California 95677 
(916) 625-5160.  

 
 

APPLICANT/OWNER: 
 

The applicant is Ryan Bradford of Equity Smart Investments, LP and the  
property owner is Placer Partners, LLC. 

 

Packet Pg. 44

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 2 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION 
A. Purpose of an Initial Study 

 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) was enacted in 1970 for the purpose of 
providing decision-makers and the public with information regarding environmental effects of 
proposed projects; identifying means of avoiding environmental damage; and disclosing to the 
public the reasons behind a project’s approval even if it leads to environmental damage. The 
City of Rocklin has determined the proposed project is subject to CEQA and no exemptions 
apply. Therefore, preparation of an initial study is required.  
 
An initial study is a preliminary analysis conducted by the lead agency, in consultation with 
other agencies (responsible or trustee agencies, as applicable), to determine whether there is 
substantial evidence that a project may have a significant effect on the environment. If the 
initial study concludes that the project, with mitigation, may have a significant effect on the 
environment, an environmental impact report should be prepared; otherwise the lead agency 
may adopt a negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration.  
 
This Initial Study (IS) has been prepared in accordance with CEQA (Public Resources Code 
§21000 et seq.), the State CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, California Code of Regulations, §15000 et 
seq.), and the City of Rocklin CEQA Guidelines (1981, amended July 31, 2002). 
 
This Initial Study has been prepared to identify and assess the anticipated environmental 
impacts of the Oak Vista Subdivision project. The document relies on a combination of a 
previous environmental document and site-specific studies to address in detail the effects or 
impacts associated with the proposed project. In particular, this Initial Study assesses the extent 
to which the impacts of the proposed project have already been addressed in the certified Final 
Environmental Impact Report for the Rocklin General Plan, as adopted by the Rocklin City 
Council on October 9, 2012 (the “General Plan EIR”). 

B. Document Format 
 
This Initial Study is organized into five sections as follows: 
 
Section 1, Introduction: provides an overview of the project and the CEQA environmental 
documentation process. 
 
Section 2, Summary Information and Determination: Required summary information, listing of 
environmental factors potentially affected, and lead agency determination. 
 
Section 3, Project Description: provides a description of the project location, project 
background, and project components. 

Packet Pg. 45

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 3 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

 
Section 4, Evaluation of Environmental Impacts: provides a detailed discussion of the 
environmental factors that would be potentially affected by this project as indicated by the 
screening from the CEQA Guidelines Appendix G checklist. 
 
Section 5, References: provides a list of reference materials used during the preparation of this 
Initial Study. The reference materials are available for review during normal business hours at 
the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and can also be found 
on the City’s website under Planning Department, Current Environmental Documents. 

C. CEQA Process 
 
To begin the CEQA process, the lead agency identifies a proposed project. The lead agency then 
prepares an initial study to identify the preliminary environmental impacts of the proposed 
project. This document has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) to analyze the possible environmental impacts of the project 
so that the public and the City of Rocklin decision-making bodies (Planning Commission, and/or 
City Council) can take these impacts into account when considering action on the required 
entitlements. 
 
During the project approval process, persons and/or agencies may address either the 
Environmental Services staff or the City Council regarding the project. Public notification of 
agenda items for the City Council is posted 72 hours prior to the public meeting. The Council 
agenda can be obtained by contacting the Office of the City Clerk at City Hall, 3970 Rocklin 
Road, Rocklin, CA 95667or via the internet at http://www.rocklin.ca.us 
 
Within five days of project approval, the City will file a Notice of Determination with the County 
Clerk. The Notice of Determination will be posted by the County Clerk within 24 hours of 
receipt. This begins a 30-day statute of limitations on legal challenges to the approval under 
CEQA. The ability to challenge the approval in court may be limited to those persons who 
objected to the approval of the project, and to issues that were presented to the lead agency 
by any person, either orally or in writing, during the public comment period.  

Packet Pg. 46

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 4 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

SECTION 2.  INITIAL STUDY SUMMARY AND DETERMINATION 
A. Summary Information 

 
Project Title: 
Oak Vista Subdivision 
 
Lead Agency Name and Address:  
City of Rocklin, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 
 
Contact Person and Phone Number: 
David Mohlenbrok, Environmental Services Manager, 916-625-5162 
 
Project Location: 
The project site is generally located on the southwest corner of Makabe Lane and Dias Lane, in 
the City of Rocklin. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers are 045-043-009, -030, -031, -032, and -052. 
 
Project Sponsor’s Name: 
The applicant is Ryan Bradford of Equity Smart Investments, LP and the property owner is 
Placer Partners, LLC. 
 
Current General Plan Designation: Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
 
Proposed General Plan Designation: Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
 
Current Zoning: Unclassified 
 
Proposed Zoning: Residential Single Family, 6000 square foot minimum lots (R1-6) and 
Residential Single Family, 12,500 square foot minimum lots (R1-12,500) 
 
Description of the Project: 
The Oak Vista Subdivision project proposes the construction of a residential subdivision 
consisting of 63 single-family residential units on an approximately 14.3 +/- acre site in the City 
of Rocklin. This project will require Tentative Subdivision Map, Rezone and Oak Tree 
Preservation Permit entitlements. For more detail please refer to the Project Description set 
forth in Section 3 of this Initial Study. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: 
The proposed project site contains four existing residential units and is bound by Makabe Lane 
to the north, Dias Lane to the east and the Rocklin 60 subdivision to the north, west and south. 
To the east of Dias Lane are the Town of Loomis and several single-family residences located in 
a land use area designated as Residential Estate in the Town of Loomis General Plan. To the 

Packet Pg. 47

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 5 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

west and southwest of the Rocklin 60 subdivision are an existing retail commercial center 
known as Rocklin Crossings and the I-80 freeway. To the south and southeast of the project are 
some medium and low density single-family residences, an open space area associated with 
Secret Ravine Creek, and vacant land designated for low density residential.  
 
Other Public Agencies Whose Approval May Be Required (e.g., Permits, Financing Approval, 
or Participation Agreement):  
• Rocklin Engineering Division approval of Improvement Plans 
• Rocklin Building Inspections Division issuance of Building Permits 
• Placer County Water Agency construction of water facilities 
• South Placer Municipal Utility District construction of sewer facilities 
• U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Section 404 wetlands permit 
• Regional Water Quality Control Board, Section 401 water quality certification 

 
B. Environmental Factors Potentially Affected: 

 
Those factors checked below involve impacts that are “Potentially Significant”: 
 

 Aesthetics  Agriculture Resources  Air Quality 
 Biological Resources  Cultural Resources  Geology/Soils 
 Greenhouse Gas Emissions  Hazards & Hazardous Materials  Hydrology/Water Quality 
 Land Use/Planning  Mineral Resources  Noise 
 Population/Housing  Public Services  Recreation 
 Transportation/Traffic  Tribal Cultural Resources  Utilities/Service Systems 
 Mandatory Findings of Sig. X None After Mitigation   

  

Packet Pg. 48

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 6 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

C. Determination:  
 
On the basis of this Initial Study: 
 

 I find that the proposed project WILL NOT have a significant effect on the 
environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 

 

X I find that as originally submitted, the proposed project could have a significant 
effect on the environment; however, revisions in the project have been made by 
or agreed to by the project proponent which will avoid these effects or mitigate 
these effects to a point where clearly no significant effect will occur. A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 

 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, 
and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 
 

 

  
 I find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or 

“potentially significant unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least 
one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to 
applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures 
based on the earlier analysis as described on the attached Environmental 
Checklist. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, to analyze the 
effects that remain to be addressed. 

 

 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed 
adequately in an earlier EIR or (MITIGATED) NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to 
applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that 
earlier EIR or (MITIGATED) NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or 
mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further 
is required. 

 

 

 
 
__________________________________________ ________________________ 
Marc Mondell       Date 
Director of Economic and Community Development 
       
 

Packet Pg. 49

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 7 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

SECTION 3.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
A. Project Location 

 
The project site is generally located on the southwest corner of Makabe Lane and Dias Lane in 
the City of Rocklin. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers are 045-043-009, -030, -031, -032, and -052 
(Please see Attachment A, Vicinity Map). 
 
The City of Rocklin is located approximately 25 miles northeast of Sacramento, and is within the 
County of Placer. Surrounding jurisdictions include: unincorporated Placer County to the north 
and northeast, the City of Lincoln to the northwest, the Town of Loomis to the east and 
southeast, and the City of Roseville to the south and southwest. 

B. Description 
 
The Oak Vista Subdivision project proposes the construction of a medium density residential 
development consisting of 63 single-family units on a 14.3 +/- acre site in the City of Rocklin. 
This project will require the following entitlements from the City of Rocklin: a Tentative 
Subdivision Map to subdivide the five existing parcels into 63 single-family lots and associated 
roadways; a Rezone to change the project site’s zoning designation from unclassified to 
Residential Single Family, 6,000 square foot minimum lots and Residential Single Family, 12,500 
square foot minimum lots, and an Oak Tree Preservation Plan to address the preservation, 
removal and mitigation of oak trees on the project site.  
 
Access to the project would be from Mesquite Way and Whitethorn Drive via roadway 
extensions, ultimately accessing Sierra College Boulevard. The project site contains four existing 
homes and associated structures that will be demolished. It is anticipated that site 
development will involve clearing and grading of the site, trenching and digging for 
underground utilities and infrastructure, and ultimately the construction of new roadways, 
driveways, buildings, and landscaping. 
 

SECTION 4.  EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
A. Explanation of CEQA Streamlining and Tiering Utilized in this Initial Study 

 
This Initial Study will evaluate this project in light of the previously approved General Plan EIR, 
which is hereby incorporated by reference. This document is available for review during normal 
business hours at the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and 
can also be found on the City’s website under Planning Department, Publications and Maps. 
 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15183 provides a means of streamlining analysis for qualifying 
projects. Under Section 15183, effects are not considered “peculiar to the project or the parcel” 

Packet Pg. 50

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 8 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

if they are addressed and mitigated by uniformly applied development policies and standards 
adopted by the City to substantially mitigate that effect (unless new information shows that the 
policy or standard will not mitigate the effect). Policies and standards have been adopted by 
the City to address and mitigate certain impacts of development that lend themselves to 
uniform mitigation measures. These policies and standards include those found in the Oak Tree 
Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, Chapter 17.77), the Flood Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal 
Code, Chapter 15.16), the Grading and Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Chapter 15.28), the Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Chapter 8.30), and the Goals and Policies of the Rocklin General Plan. Where 
applicable, the Initial Study will state how these policies and standards apply to the project. 
Where the policies and standards will substantially mitigate the effects of the proposed project, 
the Initial Study concludes that these effects are “not peculiar to the project or the parcel” and 
thus need not be revisited in the text of the environmental document for the proposed project. 
 
This Initial Study has also been prepared pursuant to CEQA Guidelines sections 15063 and 
15168. Section 15063 sets forth the general rules for preparing Initial Studies. One of the 
identified functions of an Initial Study is for a lead agency to “[d]etermine, pursuant to a 
program EIR, tiering, or another appropriate process, which of a project’s effects were 
adequately examined by an earlier EIR or negative declaration… The lead agency shall then 
ascertain which effects, if any, should be analyzed in a later EIR or negative declaration.” (CEQA 
Guidelines, section 15063, subd. (b)(1)(C).). Here, the City has used this initial study to 
determine the extent to which the General Plan EIR has “adequately examined” the effects of 
the proposed project. 
 
Section 15168 sets forth the legal requirements for preparing “program EIRs” and for reliance 
upon program EIRs in connection with “[s]ubsequent activities” within the approved program. 
(See Citizens for Responsible Equitable Environmental Development v. City of San Diego 
Redevelopment Agency (2005) 134 Cal.App.4th 598, 614-617.) The General Plan EIR was a 
program EIR with respect to its analysis of impacts associated with eventual buildout of future 
anticipated development identified by the General Plan. Subdivision (c) of section 15168 
provides as follows: 
 
(c) Use with Later Activities. Subsequent activities in the program must be examined in light 

of the program EIR to determine whether an additional environmental document must 
be prepared. 

 
(1) If a later activity would have effects that were not examined in the program EIR, 

a new Initial Study would need to be prepared leading to either an EIR or a 
Negative Declaration. 

 
(2) If the agency finds that pursuant to Section 15162, no new effects could occur or 

no new mitigation measures would be required, the agency can approve the 

Packet Pg. 51

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 9 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

activity as being within the scope of the project covered by the program EIR, and 
no new environmental document would be required. 

 
(3) An agency shall incorporate feasible mitigation measures and alternatives 

developed in the program EIR into subsequent actions on the project. 
 

(4) Where the subsequent activities involve site specific operations, the agency 
should use a written checklist or similar device to document the evaluation of 
the site and the activity to determine whether the environmental effects of the 
operation were covered in the program EIR. 

 
Consistent with these principles, this Initial Study serves the function of a “written checklist or 
similar device” documenting the extent to which the environmental effects of the proposed 
project “were covered in the program EIR” for the General Plan. As stated below, the City has 
concluded that the impacts of the proposed project are “within the scope” of the analysis in the 
General Plan EIR. Stated another way, these “environmental effects of the [site-specific project] 
were covered in the program EIR.” Where particular impacts were not thoroughly analyzed in 
prior documents, site-specific studies were prepared for the project with respect to impacts 
that were not “adequately examined” in the General Plan EIR, or were not “within the scope” of 
the prior analysis. These studies are hereby incorporated by reference and are available for 
review during normal business hours at the Rocklin Economic and Community Development 
Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 and can also be found on the City’s website 
under Planning Department, Current Environmental Documents. The specific studies are listed 
in Section 5, References.  
 
The Initial Study is a public document to be used by the City decision-makers to determine 
whether a project may have a significant effect on the environment. If the City as lead agency, 
finds substantial evidence that any effects of the project were not “adequately examined” in 
the General Plan EIR or were not “within the scope” of the analysis in that document AND that 
these effects may have a significant effect on the environment if not mitigated, the City would 
be required to prepare an EIR with respect to such potentially significant effects. On the other 
hand, if the City finds that these unaddressed project impacts are not significant, a negative 
declaration would be appropriate. If in the course of analysis, the City identified potentially 
significant impacts that could be reduced to less than significant levels through mitigation 
measures to which the applicant agrees, the impact would be considered to be reduced to a 
less than significant level, and adoption of a mitigated negative declaration would be 
appropriate. 

B. Significant Cumulative Impacts; Statement of Overriding Considerations 
 
The Rocklin City Council has previously identified the following cumulative significant impacts as 
unavoidable consequences of urbanization contemplated in the Rocklin General Plan, despite 

Packet Pg. 52

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 10 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

the implementation of all available and feasible mitigation measures, and on that basis has 
adopted a statement of overriding considerations for each cumulative impact: 
 
1. Air Quality: 
 
Development in the City and the Sacramento Valley Air Basin as a whole will result in the 
following: violations of air quality standards as a result of short-term emissions from 
construction projects, increases in criteria air pollutants from operational air pollutants and 
exposure to toxic air contaminants, the generation of odors and a cumulative contribution to 
regional air quality impacts. 
 
2. Aesthetics/Light and Glare: 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in substantial 
degradation of the existing visual character, the creation of new sources of substantial light and 
glare and cumulative impacts to scenic vistas, scenic resources, existing visual character and 
creation of light and glare. 
 
3. Traffic and Circulation: 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in impacts to 
segments and intersections of the state/interstate highway system. 
 
4. Noise 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in impacts associated 
with exposure to surface transportation and stationary noise sources, and cumulative 
transportation noise impacts within the Planning area. 
 
5. Cultural and Paleontological Resources 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in cumulative 
impacts to historic character. 
 
6. Biological Resources 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in the loss of native 
oak and heritage trees, the loss of oak woodland habitat, and cumulative impacts to biological 
resources. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 53

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 11 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

7. Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in the generation of 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

C. Mitigation Measures Required and Considered 
 
It is the policy and a requirement of the City of Rocklin that all public agencies with authority to 
mitigate significant effects shall undertake or require the undertaking of all feasible mitigation 
measures specified in the prior environmental impact reports relevant to a significant effect 
which the project will have on the environment. Project review is limited to effects upon the 
environment which are peculiar to the parcel or to the project which were not addressed as 
significant effects in the General Plan EIR or which substantial new information shows will be 
more significant than described in the General Plan EIR. This Initial Study anticipates that 
feasible mitigation measures previously identified in the General Plan has been, or will be, 
implemented as set forth in that document, and evaluates this Project accordingly. 

D. Evaluation of Environmental Checklist: 
 
1) A brief explanation is provided for all answers except “No Impact” answers that are 

adequately supported by the information sources cited in the parentheses following each 
question. A “No Impact” answer is adequately supported if the referenced information 
sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., 
the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A “No Impact” answer is explained where it is 
based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not 
expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

 
2) All answers take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site 

elements, cumulative as well as project-level impacts, indirect as well as direct impacts, and 
construction as well as operational impacts. 

 
3) If a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must indicate whether 

the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than 
significant. “Potentially Significant Impact” is appropriate if there is substantial evidence 
that an effect may be significant. 

 
4) Answers of “Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated” describe the mitigation 

measures agreed to by the applicant and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less 
than significant level. Mitigation measures and supporting explanation from earlier EIRs or 
Negative Declaration may be cross-referenced and incorporated by reference. 

 
5) Earlier analyses may be used where an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR 

or negative declaration, and the City intends to use tiering. All prior EIRs and Negative 

Packet Pg. 54

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 12 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Declarations and certifying resolutions are available for review at the Rocklin Economic and 
Community Development Department. In this case, a brief discussion will identify the 
following: 

 
a) Which effects are within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document 

pursuant to applicable legal standards, and whether such effects are addressed by 
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis; and 

 
b) For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures Incorporated,” the 

mitigation measures which are incorporated or refined from the earlier document and 
the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

  

Packet Pg. 55

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 13 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

E. Environmental Checklist 
Aesthetics  
I.
   AESTHETICS  

 Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for which 
General Plan EIR is 

Sufficient 

a) Have a substantial adverse 
effect on a scenic vista?  

   X  

b) Substantially degrade the 
existing visual character or 
quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

  X   

c) Substantially damage scenic 
resources, including, but not 
limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic 
buildings within a state 
scenic highway. 

   X  

d) Create a new source of 
substantial light or glare 
which would adversely affect 
day or nighttime views in the 
area?  

  X   

 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts:   
 
The development of a 63 unit single-family subdivision on a 14.3 +/- acre site will change the 
existing visual nature or character of the project site and area. The development of the project 
site would create new sources of light and glare typical of urban development. As discussed 
below, impacts to scenic vistas or viewsheds would not be anticipated. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to the visual character of the Planning Area as a result of 
the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan.  When previously 
undeveloped land becomes developed, aesthetic impacts include changes to scenic character 
and new sources of light and glare (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 
4.3-1 through 4.3-18).  Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into the 
General Plan in the Land Use and the Open Space, Conservation, and Recreation Elements, and 

Packet Pg. 56

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 14 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

include policies that encourage the use of design standards for unique areas and the protection 
of natural resources, including open space areas, natural resource areas, hilltops, waterways 
and oak trees, from the encroachment of incompatible land use. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite the goals and policies addressing visual character, 
views, and light and glare, significant aesthetic impacts will occur as a result of development 
under the General Plan and further, that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than 
significant level.  Specifically, the General Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General 
Plan will change and degrade the existing visual character, will create new sources of light and 
glare and will contribute to cumulative impacts to scenic vistas, scenic resources, existing visual 
character and creation of light and glare.  Findings of fact and a statement of overriding 
consideration were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these cumulative impacts, 
which were found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for aesthetic/visual impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Scenic Vista - No Impact. While vacant or mostly vacant areas have a natural aesthetic 
quality, there are no designated scenic vistas within the City of Rocklin or Planning Area. 
Alteration of mostly vacant areas of the project site through the demolition of four homes and 
the construction of 63 single-family residential units would change the visual quality of the 
project site and surrounding area. However, since there are no designated scenic vistas, no 
impact would occur in this regard. 
 
b. Visual Quality – Less than Significant. The construction of 63 single-family residential units is 
consistent with the type of development contemplated and analyzed for this area of Rocklin 
within the Rocklin General Plan EIR. The General Plan EIR analysis included the development of 
this area with medium density residential housing adjacent to a more rural setting in Loomis. 
The building structures that are anticipated are of consistent height and scale with surrounding 
development and anticipated future development and there are no unusual development 
characteristics of this project which would introduce incompatible elements or create aesthetic 
impacts not considered in the prior EIR. Existing buildings in the area include one- and two-
story single-family residential buildings, both in the City of Rocklin and Town of Loomis. These 
buildings and the anticipated future development of buildings within the nearby and adjacent 
low density residential land use designations are collectively all of similar size and scale to the 

Packet Pg. 57

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 15 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

proposed project, including the project’s proposed four large lots which are adjacent to Dias 
Lane and which will serve as a buffer and transition to the more rural residential setting located 
in the Town of Loomis. All development in the Rocklin Planning Area is subject to existing City 
development standards set forth in the City’s Zoning Ordinance which helps to ensure that 
development form, character, height, and massing are consistent with the City’s vision for the 
character of the community. 
 
The change in the aesthetics of the visual nature or character of the site and the surroundings is 
consistent with the surrounding development and the future development that is anticipated 
by the City’s General Plan. As noted above, the General Plan EIR concluded that development 
under the General Plan will result in significant unavoidable aesthetic impacts and a Statement 
of Overriding Consideration was adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these 
cumulative impacts. The project does not result in a change to the finding because the site 
would be developed with typical urban uses that are consistent and compatible with 
surrounding existing and anticipated future development and the proposed project is 
consistent with the Medium Density Residential land use designation that was assumed in the 
General Plan EIR analysis. 
 
c. Scenic Highway – No Impact. The proposed project is not located adjacent to or within the 
proximity of a state listed scenic highway (Interstate 80 is not a state listed scenic highway). 
Therefore, the proposed project would not substantially damage scenic resources, including, 
but not limited to trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway.  
 
d. Light and Glare – Less than Significant. There are no specific features within the proposed 
project that would create unusual light and glare. New and/or increased sources of light and 
glare would be introduced to the project area. However, implementation of the General Plan 
policies addressing light and glare would also ensure that no unusual daytime glare or nighttime 
lighting is produced. The General Plan EIR acknowledged that impacts associated with increased 
light and glare would not be eliminated entirely, and the overall level of light and glare in the 
Planning Area would increase in general as urban development occurs and that increase cannot 
be fully mitigated. As noted above, the General Plan EIR concluded that development under the 
General Plan will result in significant unavoidable aesthetic impacts and a Statement of 
Overriding Consideration was adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these cumulative 
impacts. The project does not result in a change to the finding because the site would be 
developed with typical urban uses that are consistent and compatible with surrounding existing 
and anticipated future development and the proposed project is consistent with the Medium 
Density Residential land use designation that was assumed in the General Plan EIR analysis.  

Packet Pg. 58

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 16 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

II. 
AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES 

In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead 
agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) 
prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts 
on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including 
timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled 
by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory of 
forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment 
project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the 
California Air Resources Board. Would the project:  

 
  

   Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for which 
General Plan EIR 

is Sufficient 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique 
Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide 
Importance (Farmland), as shown on 
the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources 
Agency, to non-agricultural use?  

   X  

b)  Conflict with existing zoning for 
agricultural use, or a Williamson Act 
contract?  

   X  

c)     Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 12220 
(g)), timberland (as defined by Public 
Resources Code section 4526), or 
timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by 
Government Code section 51104 (g))? 

   X  

d)    Result in the loss of forest land or 
conversion of forest land to non-
forest use? 

   X  

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their 
location or nature, could result in 
conversion of Farmland, to non-
agricultural use or conversion of 
forest land to non-forest use?  

   X  

Agricultural Resources

Packet Pg. 59

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 17 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
There are no agricultural or forestry impacts for the project or project site due to a lack of these 
resources on the project site, as further discussed below. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., b., and c. Farmland, Williamson Act, Cumulative Loss of Farmland - No Impact. The 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program (FMMP) land classifications system monitors and 
documents land use changes that specifically affect California’s agricultural land and is 
administered by the California Department of Conservation (CDC). The FMMP land classification 
system is cited by the State CEQA Guidelines as the preferred information source for 
determining the agricultural significance of a property (CEQA Guidelines, Appendix G).  The 
CDC, Division of Land Resource Protection, Placer County Important Farmland Map of 2014 
designates the project site as grazing land. This category is not considered Important Farmland 
under the definition in CEQA of “Agricultural Land” that is afforded consideration as to its 
potential significance (See CEQA Section 21060.1[a]), nor is it considered prime farmland, 
unique farmland, or farmland of statewide importance; therefore  the proposed project would 
not convert farmland to a non-agricultural use. Also, the project site contains no parcels that 
are under a Williamson Act contract. Therefore, because the project would not convert 
important farmland to non-agricultural uses, would not conflict with existing agricultural or 
forestry use zoning or Williamson Act contracts, or involve other changes that could result in 
the conversion of important farmlands to non-agricultural uses, there would be no agricultural 
use impacts. 
 
d. and e. Conversion of Forest Land – No Impact. The project site contains no parcels that are 
considered forestry lands or timberland. Therefore, because the project would not conflict with 
existing forestry use zoning or involve other changes that could result in the conversion of 
forest lands to non-forest uses, there would be no forestry use impacts. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 60

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 18 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

III. 

 
 AIR QUALITY 
 Where available, the 
significance criteria 
established by the 
applicable air quality 
management or air 
pollution control district 
may be relied upon to 
make the following 
determination. Would the 
project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for which 
General Plan EIR is 

Sufficient 

a) Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of applicable 
air quality plan?  

  X   

b) Violate any air quality 
standard or contribute 
substantially to an existing or 
projected air quality 
violation?  

  X   

c) Result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase of 
any criteria pollutant for 
which the project region is 
non-attainment under an 
applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard 
(including releasing emissions 
which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone 
precursors)?  

  X   

d)  Expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial pollutant 
concentrations?  

 X    

e) Create objectionable odors 
affecting a substantial 
number of people?  

  X   

Air Quality 
  

Packet Pg. 61

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 19 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
In the short-term, air quality impacts from the proposed project will result from construction 
related activities associated with grading and excavation to prepare the site for the installation 
of utilities and above ground structures and improvements. These air quality impacts will 
primarily be related to the generation of airborne dust (Particulate Matter of 10 microns in size 
or less (PM10)). 
 
In the long term, air quality impacts from the proposed project will result from vehicle trip 
generation to and from the project site and the resultant mobile source emissions of air 
pollutants (primarily carbon monoxide and ozone precursor emissions). 
 
As discussed below, a single-family residential development of this type would not be expected 
to create objectionable odors. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to regional air quality as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included 8-hour ozone 
attainment, short-term construction emissions, operational air pollutants, increases in criteria 
pollutants, odors, and regional air quality impacts. (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft 
EIR, 2011, pages 4.2-1 through 4.2-43). Mitigation measures to address these impacts are 
incorporated into the General Plan in the Land Use, the Open Space, Conservation, and 
Recreation, and the Circulation Elements, and include policies that encourage a mixture of land 
uses, provisions for non-automotive modes of transportation, consultation with the Placer 
County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD), and the incorporation of stationary and mobile 
source control measures.  
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals and policies, significant air quality 
impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, that these 
impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General Plan EIR 
found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan and other development within the Sacramento 
Valley Air Basin (SVAB) as a whole will result in the following: violations of air quality standards 
as a result of short-term emissions from construction projects, increases in criteria air 
pollutants from operational air pollutants and exposure to toxic air contaminants, the 
generation of odors and a cumulative contribution to regional air quality impacts. Findings of 
fact and a statement of overriding consideration were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in 
regard to these impacts, which were found to be significant and unavoidable.  
 

Packet Pg. 62

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 20 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards:   
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for air quality impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be applied to 
the future development in the Highway 65 Corridor portion of the Northwest Rocklin General 
Development Plan area under an increased trip cap scenario.  These serve as uniformly applied 
development policies and standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure 
consistency with the General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Project Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of Westech Company, a California consulting firm with recognized expertise in air 
quality, prepared an Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Analysis report for the proposed project. 
The report, dated October 2016, is available for review during normal business hours at the City 
of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA and is incorporated into this 
Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the documentation 
and is also aware that the Westech Company has a professional reputation that makes its 
conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review of the 
analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the Westech 
Company report, which is summarized below. 
 
The analysis was prepared to estimate the criteria pollutant emissions from project 
construction and operation. The proposed Oak Vista Residential Subdivision project’s short-
term construction-related and long-term operational emissions were estimated using the 
CalEEMod modeling program. CalEEMod estimates the emissions that result from various land 
uses, and includes considerations for trip generation rates, vehicle mix, average trip length by 
trip type, and average speed. Where project-specific data was available, that data was input 
into the CalEEMod model (i.e., construction phases and timing). 
 
Construction Emissions 
 
During construction of the project, various types of equipment and vehicles would temporarily 
operate on the project site. Construction exhaust emissions would be generated from 
construction equipment, vegetation clearing and earth movement activities, construction 
workers’ commute, and construction material hauling for the entire construction period. The 
aforementioned activities would involve the use of diesel- and gasoline-powered equipment 
that would generate emissions of criteria air pollutants. Project construction activities also 
represent a source of fugitive dust, which includes particulate matter (PM) emissions. As 
construction of the proposed project would generate air pollutant emissions intermittently 
within the site and the vicinity of the site, until all construction has been completed, 
construction is a potential concern because the proposed project is in a non-attainment area 
for ozone and PM. 

Packet Pg. 63

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 21 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

The project is required to comply with all PCAPCD rules and regulations for construction, 
including, but not limited to, the following, which would be noted with City-approved 
construction plans: 
 
 Rule 202 related to visible emissions; Rule 218 related to architectural coatings; Rule 

228 related to fugitive dust, and Regulation 3 related to open burning. 
 
The analysis found that the overall project’s maximum daily emissions from construction 
operations would be as follows: 
 

CONSTRUCTION EMISSIONS (lbs/day) 
 Reactive 

Organic Gases 
(ROG) 

Nitrous 
Oxides 
(NOx) 

Inhalable 
Particulate 

Matter  
(PM10) 

Carbon 
Monoxide  

(CO) 

Maximum Daily 
Emissions 

38.46 69.64 4.47 47.41 

Placer County Air 
Pollution Control District 
(PCAPCD) Significance 
Thresholds 

82 82 82 550 

Exceedance of PCAPCD 
Threshold 

NO NO NO NO 

 
As shown, the project’s short-term construction-related emissions are not anticipated to 
exceed the PCAPCD’s significance thresholds for emissions of ROG, NOx, PM10 and CO, which 
means the proposed project would have less than significant construction-related impacts to air 
quality. 
 
Operational Emissions 
 
Operational emissions of ROG, NOx, PM10 and CO would be generated by the proposed project 
from both mobile and stationary sources. Day-to-day activities such as vehicle trips to and from 
the project site would make up the majority of the mobile emissions. Emissions would occur 
from stationary sources such as natural gas combustion from heating mechanisms, landscape 
maintenance equipment exhaust, and consumer products (e.g., deodorants, cleaning products, 
spray paint, etc.). The modeling performed for the project takes these factors into 
consideration.  
 
The project is required to comply with all PCAPCD rules and regulations, such as those listed 
previously for construction, as well as the following for operations: 
 

Packet Pg. 64

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 22 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

 Rule 225 related to wood-burning appliances, and Rule 246 related to water heaters. 
 
The analysis found that the overall project’s maximum operational emissions on a daily basis 
would be as follows: 
 

OPERATIONAL EMISSIONS (lbs/day) 
 ROG NOx PM10 CO 
Maximum Daily Emissions 2.43 4.66 3.98 25.37 
Placer County Air Pollution 
Control District (PCAPCD) 
Significance Thresholds 

55 55 82 550 

Exceedance of PCAPCD 
Threshold 

NO NO NO NO 

 
As shown, the project’s operational emissions of ROG, NOx, PM10, and CO would be below the 
applicable PCAPCD thresholds of significance. Accordingly, the project’s operational emissions 
would not contribute to the PCAPCD’s nonattainment status of ozone and PM, operations of 
the project would not violate an air quality standard or contribute to an existing or projected air 
quality violation and operationally-related impacts would be considered less than significant. 
 
Cumulative Air Quality  
 
Due to the dispersive nature and regional sourcing of air pollutants, air pollution is largely a 
cumulative impact. The nonattainment status of regional pollutants, including ozone and PM, is 
a result of past and present development, and, thus, cumulative impacts related to these 
pollutants could be considered cumulatively significant. 
 
The project is part of a pattern of urbanization occurring in the greater Sacramento ozone 
nonattainment area. The growth and combined vehicle usage, and business activity within the 
nonattainment area from the project, in combination with other past, present, and reasonably 
foreseeable projects within Rocklin and surrounding areas, could either delay attainment of the 
standards or require the adoption of additional controls on existing and future air pollution 
sources to offset emission increases. Thus, the project could cumulatively contribute to regional 
air quality health effects through emissions of criteria and mobile source air pollutants.  
 
The PCAPCD recommends using the region’s existing attainment plans as a basis for analysis of 
cumulative emissions. If a project would interfere with an adopted attainment plan, the project 
would inhibit the future attainment of AAQS, and thus result in a cumulative impact. As 
discussed above, the PCAPCD’s recommended thresholds of significance for ozone precursors 
and PM10 are based on attainment plans for the region. Thus, the PCAPCD concluded that if a 
project’s ozone precursor and PM10 emissions would be greater than the PCAPCD’s operational-

Packet Pg. 65

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 23 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

level thresholds, the project could be expected to conflict with relevant attainment plans, and 
could result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact. 
 
As shown in the Operational Emissions table above, the proposed project would result in an 
increase of ROG, NOx and PM10 emissions that would be below the applicable operational-level 
thresholds. 
 
The General Plan EIR identified a cumulative contribution to regional air quality impacts as a 
significant and unavoidable impact, and the City of Rocklin adopted Findings of Fact and a 
Statement of Overriding Considerations in recognition of this impact. The project does not 
result in a change to this finding because the site is being developed with a medium density 
residential land use that is equal to (from a trip generation and associated emissions 
standpoint) the Medium Density Residential land use that was anticipated by and analyzed 
within the General Plan EIR. 
 
Significance Conclusions:  
 
a., b. and c. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan, 
Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air 
quality violation, and Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria 
pollutant for which the project region is nonattainment under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone precursors) – Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed project area is 
located within the Sacramento Valley Air Basin (SVAB) and is under the jurisdiction of the Placer 
County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD). The SVAB is designated nonattainment for the 
federal particulate matter 2.5 microns in diameter (PM2.5) and the State particulate matter 10 
microns in diameter (PM10) standards, as well as for both the federal and State ozone 
standards. The federal Clean Air Act requires areas designated as federal nonattainment to 
prepare an air quality control plan referred to as the State Implementation Plan (SIP). The SIP 
contains the strategies and control measures for states to use to attain the national ambient air 
quality standards (NAAQS). The SIP is periodically modified to reflect the latest emissions 
inventories, planning documents, rules, and regulations of air basins as reported by the 
agencies with jurisdiction over them. In compliance with regulations, the PCAPCD periodically 
prepares and updates air quality plans that provide emission reduction strategies to achieve 
attainment of the NAAQS, including control strategies to reduce air pollutant emissions via 
regulations, incentive programs, public education, and partnerships with other agencies. 
 
The current applicable air quality plan for the proposed project area is the Sacramento Regional 
8-Hour Ozone Attainment and Reasonable Further Progress Plan (Ozone Attainment Plan), 
adopted September 26, 2013. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) determined 
the Plan to be adequate and made such findings effective August 25, 2014. On January 9, 2015, 
the USEPA approved the 2013 Ozone Attainment Plan.  

Packet Pg. 66

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 24 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

The 2013 Ozone Attainment Plan demonstrates how existing and new control strategies would 
provide the necessary future emission reductions to meet the CAA requirements, including the 
NAAQS. It should be noted that in addition to strengthening the 8-hour ozone NAAQS, the 
USEPA also strengthened the secondary 8-hour ozone NAAQS, making the secondary standard 
identical to the primary standard. The SVAB remains classified as a severe nonattainment area 
with an attainment deadline of 2027. On October 26, 2015 the USEPA released a final 
implementation rule for the revised NAAQS for ozone to address the requirements for 
reasonable further progress, modeling and attainment demonstrations, and reasonably 
available control measures (RACM) and reasonably available control technology (RACT). With 
the publication of the new NAAQS ozone rules, areas in nonattainment must update their 
ozone attainment plans and submit new plans by 2020/2021. 
 
General conformity requirements of the regional air quality plan include whether a project 
would cause or contribute to new violations of any NAAQS, increase the frequency or severity 
of an existing violation of any NAAQS, or delay timely attainment of any NAAQS. In order to 
evaluate ozone and other criteria air pollutant emissions and support attainment goals for 
those pollutants that the area is designated nonattainment, the PCAPCD has recently proposed 
updates to the District’s recommended significance thresholds for emissions of PM10, and 
ozone precursors – reactive organic gases (ROG) and oxides of nitrogen (NOX). 
 
The significance thresholds, expressed in pounds per day (lbs/day), listed in the table above are 
the PCAPCD’s updated recommended thresholds of significance for use in the evaluation of air 
quality impacts associated with proposed development projects. The City of Rocklin, as lead 
agency, is considering a phased in approach of the newly proposed thresholds but for this 
analysis is utilizing the PCAPCD’s recommended thresholds of significance for CEQA evaluation 
purposes. Thus, if a project’s emissions exceed the PCAPCD’s pollutant thresholds presented 
above, the project could have a significant effect on air quality, the attainment of federal and 
State AAQS, and could conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality 
plan. 
 
Through the combustion of fossil fuels, motor vehicle use produces significant amounts of 
pollution. In fact, the PCAPCD cites motor vehicles as a primary source of pollution for 
residential, commercial, and industrial development. Because motor vehicles emit air quality 
pollutants during their operations, changing the amount of motor vehicle operations in an area 
would change the amount of air pollutants being emitted in that area.  
 
As shown in the Construction Emissions and Operational Emissions tables above, the project’s 
construction and operational emissions of ROG, NOx, PM10, and CO would be below the 
applicable PCAPCD thresholds of significance. Accordingly, the project’s construction and 
operational emissions would not contribute to the PCAPCD’s nonattainment status of ozone 
and PM, operations of the project would not violate an air quality standard or contribute to an 

Packet Pg. 67

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 25 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

existing or projected air quality violation and construction-related and operationally-related 
impacts would be considered less than significant. 
 
d. Sensitive Receptors – Less than Significant With Mitigation. The proposed project involves 
the development of residential uses; thus, the project would introduce sensitive receptors to 
the area. The nearest existing sensitive receptors to the project site are the residences located 
on all sides of the project site. Emissions of CO would result from the incomplete combustion of 
carbon-containing fuels such as gasoline or wood and are particularly related to traffic levels. 
The project site is already planned for urban development; thus traffic on the surrounding 
roadways and intersections would not increase more than already anticipated for the area due 
to project implementation. Accordingly, CO levels at nearby intersections would not be 
expected to be higher than anticipated for the area. It should be noted that as older, more 
polluting vehicles are retired and replaced with newer, cleaner vehicles, the overall rate of 
emissions of CO for vehicle fleet throughout the State has been, and is expected to continue, 
decreasing. Therefore, emissions of CO would likely decrease from current levels over the 
lifetime of the project.  
 
Per PCAPCD guidance, if a project will degrade an intersection in the project vicinity from an 
acceptable Level of Service (LOS) (e.g., LOS A, B, C, or D) to an unacceptable LOS (e.g., LOS E or 
F), or if the project will substantially worsen an already existing LOS F, then the project has the 
potential to cause a potential a CO intersection hotspot. The Traffic Impact Analysis Report for 
Oak Vista Subdivision (KD Anderson & Associates, November 1, 2016) examined Level of Service 
(LOS) for four study intersections affected by the project. The analysis showed that all four 
study intersections would not be degraded to an unacceptable LOS by the project nor would 
the project substantially worsen an already existing LOS F; therefore the project would not 
generate localized concentrations of CO that would exceed standards. 
 
In addition to the CO emissions discussed above, Toxic Air Contaminants (TACs) are also a 
category of environmental concern. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) Air Quality and 
Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective (Handbook) provides recommendations 
for siting new sensitive land uses near sources typically associated with significant levels of TAC 
emissions, including, but not limited to, freeways and high traffic roads, distribution centers, 
and rail yards. CARB has identified diesel particulate matter (DPM) from diesel-fueled engines 
as a TAC. High volume freeways/roadways, stationary diesel engines, and facilities attracting 
heavy and constant diesel traffic were identified as having the highest associated health risks 
from DPM. Health risks from TACs are a function of both the concentration of emissions and 
the duration of exposure. Health-related risks associated with DPM in particular are primarily 
associated with long-term exposure and associated risk of contracting cancer. 
 
Due to the residential nature of the project, relatively few vehicle trips associated with the 
proposed project would be expected to be composed of heavy-duty diesel-fueled trucks and 
their associated emissions. The project does not involve long-term operation of any stationary 

Packet Pg. 68

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 26 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

diesel engine or other on-site stationary source of TACs. In addition, emissions of DPM resulting 
from construction equipment and vehicles are minimal and temporary, affecting a specific 
receptor for a period of weeks or perhaps months, and would be regulated through compliance 
with PCAPCD’s rules and regulations. 
 
For freeways and roads with high traffic volumes, Table 4-1 of the CARB Handbook 
recommends “Avoid siting new sensitive land uses within 500 feet of a freeway, urban roads 
with 100,000 vehicles/day, or rural roads with 50,000 vehicles/day.” The shortest distance 
between the project and Interstate 80 (I-80) is approximately 470 feet. Portions of four lots (lot 
numbers 54, 55, 56 and 57) on the northwestern corner of the project will therefore be within 
500 feet of I-80 and could be impacted by elevated concentrations of TAC emissions. Thus, the 
proposed project could result in the exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant 
concentrations.  
 
Research conducted by the University of California Davis and the EPA has shown that air 
pollutants, especially particulate matter, (e.g., DPM from mobile sources) can be removed on 
the surfaces of vegetation, especially that of the needles on coniferous trees, and also on the 
leaves of deciduous trees. The amount of removal depends on wind speed, wind direction, the 
type of tree, and the physical arrangement and quantity of trees places between the emission 
source (e.g., roadway) and the project’s receptors. Precise quantitative information on the 
beneficial effect of each of these variables is not available in a framework that would allow a 
determinative calculation of the reduction in potential impacts. However, conservative design 
of the mitigation measure based upon consultation with the PCAPCD is proposed in a manner 
that can be expected to effectively reduce the level of significance of this potential impact. 
 
The adjacent Rocklin 60 project has a number of residential lots that are located significantly 
closer to I-80 than those in the Oak Vista project.  These lots are screened from elevated 
concentrations of TAC emissions by way of a grove of evergreen trees planted between the 
Rocklin 60 lots and the freeway.  This grove of trees will also provide screening for the Oak Vista 
development.  There is room within the existing grove of evergreens for additional trees to be 
planted and incrementally enhance the effectiveness of the existing planting. 
 
To address the exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, the 
following mitigation measure is being applied to the project: 
 
III.-1 A variety of drought-tolerant, fine-needle evergreen trees, such as, but not limited to 
deodar cedar and redwood, shall be planted within the existing landscape parcel located at the 
northerly terminus of Silver Lupine Lane (APN: 453-070-041).  Said trees shall be a minimum size 
of 15-gallon per tree and shall be interspersed around and among the existing tree plantings so 
as to maximize the number of trees that the parcel can support based upon adequate spacing 
for mature trees.  In addition, the existing irrigation system shall be modified to provide for a 

Packet Pg. 69

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 27 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

sufficient water supply and necessary maintenance to ensure establishment and long-term 
viability of the additional trees. 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
mitigation measure will reduce impacts of the exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations to a less than significant level. 
 
e. Odors – Less Than Significant Impact. Odors are generally regarded as an annoyance rather 
than a health hazard.  Due to the subjective nature of odor impacts, the number of variables 
that can influence the potential for an odor impact, and the variety of odor sources, 
quantitative methodologies to determine the presence of a significant odor impact do not exist.  
Certain land uses such as wastewater treatment facilities, landfills, confined animal facilities, 
composting operations, food manufacturing plants, refineries, and chemical plants have the 
potential to generate considerable odors. The proposed project does not involve such land uses 
nor is it located near any such land uses. Although less common, emissions of DPM from heavy-
duty diesel truck traffic could result in objectionable odors. While the proposed project would 
increase the total amount of vehicle trips in the area, the increase in area vehicle activity would 
not necessarily create an increase in heavy-duty diesel truck traffic, because the traffic increase 
would be a result of increased residential land uses. Residential land uses are not typically 
associated with heavy-duty diesel truck traffic, and thus the increase in daily trips attributable 
to residential land uses would mainly involve single passenger vehicles that are not typically 
considered to be sources of objectionable odors.  
 
In addition, PCAPCD Rule 205, Nuisance, addresses the exposure of “nuisance or annoyance” air 
contaminant discharges, including odors, and provides enforcement of odor control. Rule 205 is 
complaint-based, where if public complaints are sufficient to cause the odor source to be a 
public nuisance, then the PCAPCD is required to investigate the identified source as well as 
determine an acceptable solution for the source of the complaint, which could include 
operational modifications to correct the nuisance condition. Thus, although not anticipated, if 
odor or air quality complaints are made upon the future development under the proposed 
project, the PCAPCD would be required to ensure that such complaints are addressed and 
mitigated, as necessary. 
 
Because the proposed project does not include the development of odor-generating land uses 
or development in proximity to odor-generating land uses, and because the increase in project 
area traffic would be largely through increased use of single passenger vehicles rather than 
heavy-duty diesel trucks, the proposed project would not be anticipated to create 
objectionable odors in the project area. Therefore, the proposed project would result in a less 
than significant impact related to objectionable odors.  
 
 
  

Packet Pg. 70

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 28 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

IV.  
  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 
 Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, 
on any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local 
or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or 
by the California Department of Fish and 
Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?  

 X    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game or 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?  

 X    

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on 
federally protected wetlands as defined by 
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal 
pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, 
filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means?  

 X    

d) Interfere substantially with the movement 
of any native resident or migratory fish or 
wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites?  

  X   

e) Conflict with any local policies or 
ordinances protecting biological resources, 
such as a tree preservation policy or 
ordinance?  

 X    

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan?  

   X  

Biological Resources 

Packet Pg. 71

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 29 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project will modify habitats through the removal of native and other plant 
material; the project site does contain oak trees, some of which will be removed with 
implementation of the project. Impacts to wetlands/waters of the U.S. are anticipated to occur 
due to their presence on the project site, and impacts to special status animal and plant species 
are not anticipated to occur due to their lack of presence or potential presence on the project 
site. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to the biological resources of the Planning Area as a result 
of the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan.  These impacts 
included special-status species, species of concern, non-listed species, biological communities 
and migratory wildlife corridors (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 
4.10-1 through 4.10-47).  Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into 
the General Plan in the Open Space, Conservation and Recreation Element, and include policies 
that encourage the protection and conservation of biological resources and require compliance 
with rules and regulations protecting biological resources, including the City of Rocklin Oak Tree 
Preservation Ordinance. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals, policies and rules and regulations 
protecting biological resources, significant biological resources impacts will occur as a result of 
development under the General Plan and further, that these impacts cannot be reduced to a 
less than significant level.  Specifically the General Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin 
General Plan will impact sensitive biological communities, will result in the loss of native oak 
and heritage trees, will result in the loss of oak woodland habitat and will contribute to 
cumulative impacts to biological resources.  Findings of fact and a statement of overriding 
considerations were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these impacts, which were 
found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards:   
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for biological resources impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 

Packet Pg. 72

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 30 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
  
The firm of Westech Company, a California consulting firm with recognized expertise in 
biological resources, prepared a biological assessment for the Oak Vista Residential Subdivision 
project. Their report, dated March 17, 2016 is available for review during normal business hours 
at the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated 
into this Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the 
documentation and is also aware that Westech Company has a professional reputation that 
makes their conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review 
of the analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the Westech 
Company report, which is summarized below. 
 
The firm of Sierra Nevada Arborists, a Sacramento area consulting firm with recognized 
expertise in arboriculture, prepared an arborist report for the Oak Vista Residential Subdivision 
project. Their reports, dated August 14 and October 21, 2015 are available for review during 
normal business hours at the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, 
CA, and are incorporated into this Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff 
has reviewed the documentation and is also aware that Sierra Nevada Arborists has a 
professional reputation that makes their conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in 
good faith. Based on its review of the analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts 
the conclusions in the Sierra Nevada Arborists reports, which are summarized below. 
 
Project Site Description 
 
The 14.3 +/- acre project site includes open fields dotted with oak trees, a wooded area 
containing an unnamed seasonal creek, a riparian area and a small wetland near the southwest 
property corner. The eastern portion of the site is an open field with scattered oak and other 
native trees. 
 
Biological Assessment Overview 
 
Available information pertaining to the natural resources of the region was reviewed, and a 
biologist from Westech Company conducted wetland delineation and biological field surveys of 
the site in June and August 2015.  
 
A. Biological Communities 
 
The vegetation communities found on the site are annual grassland habitat and oak savanna. 
The project site also contains riparian vegetation which is present along the unnamed stream 
channel in the western portion. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 73

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 31 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

B. Special-Status Plant and Animal Species 
 
Special-status plant and animal species are those that have been afforded special recognition 
by federal, State, or local resources or organizations. Listed and special-status species are of 
relatively limited distribution and may require specialized habitat conditions.  
 
The California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) and California Native Plant Society (CNPS) 
database were consulted regarding special-status species that have been identified within the 
Folsom and Rocklin USGS quadrangles which include the project area.  
 
Plants 
 
There are two plant species which are federally and/or state listed which have been 
documented within the Folsom and Rocklin USGS quadrangles according to the CNDDB. These 
species include Sacramento Orcutt grass and Bogg’s Lake hedge-hyssop which both occur in 
vernal pools. The small shallow seasonal wetlands which form vernal pools are not present on 
the site and these plants were not observed during the June or August site visits. 
 
Wildlife 
 
There are three wildlife species which are federally and/or state listed which have been 
documented within the Folsom and Rocklin USGS quadrangles according to the CNDDD. These 
species include vernal pool fairy shrimp, Valley Elderberry longhorn beetle and California black 
rail. No shrimp or habitat for the shrimp (i.e., vernal pools) was observed during the June or 
August site visits. The property and a surrounding area exceeding 100 feet was surveyed for the 
potential presence of the elderberry bush (the sole host of the Valley Elderberry Longhorn 
beetle) and no elderberry bushes were found during the June and August site visits. There does 
not appear to be any on-site or adjacent habitat which could potentially provide habitat for the 
California black rail. The site itself provides no adequate habitat and onsite wetland vegetation 
is within a wooded riparian zone, not a marsh which is the type of habitat preferred by the 
California black rail. 
 
C. Hydrology and Jurisdictional Waters of the U.S. 
 
The site includes a seasonal stream channel and one small adjacent wetland which are 
potentially under U.S. Army Corps of Engineers jurisdiction. Approximately 0.47 acre of 
wetlands subject to Corps jurisdiction is found on the property and it is anticipated that 
approximately 0.47 acre of wetlands will be impacted by the project. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 74

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 32 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Effect on Protected Species – Less Than Significant With Mitigation. The site is located in a 
partly developed, suburban environment. As such, it provides habitat to rodents, small 
mammals, birds and bats, typical of a suburban area. No special- status plant or animal species 
were observed on the project site during biological surveys. Tree-nesting raptor species forage 
and nest in a variety of habitats throughout Placer County and the mature trees on the project 
site do provide suitable nesting habitat. In addition, the structures on the project site may also 
serve as nesting habitat for bird and bat species.  
 
To address the potential impacts to nesting raptors, migratory birds and bat species, the 
following mitigation measure is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-1 The applicant/developer shall attempt to time the removal of potential nesting habitat for 
raptors, migratory birds and bat species to avoid the nesting season (February - August).  
 
If demolition activities occur during the nesting season for raptors, migratory birds and bat 
species (February-August), the City and/or contractor shall hire a qualified biologist approved by 
the City to conduct pre-construction surveys no more than 14 days prior to initiation of 
demolition activities. The survey shall cover all areas of suitable nesting habitat within 500 feet 
of project activity and shall be valid for one construction season. Prior to the start of demolition 
activities, documentation of the survey shall be provided to the City of Rocklin Building 
Department and if the survey results are negative, no further mitigation is required and 
necessary structure removal may proceed. If there is a break in demolition activity of more than 
14 days, then subsequent surveys shall be conducted. 
 
If the survey results are positive (active nests are found), impacts shall be avoided by the 
establishment of appropriate buffers. The biologist shall consult with the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the City to determine the size of an appropriate buffer area 
(CDFW guidelines recommend implementation of 500-foot buffers). Monitoring of the nest by a 
qualified biologist may be required if the activity has the potential to adversely affect an active 
nest. 
 
If construction activities are scheduled to occur during the non-breeding season (September- 
January), a survey is not required and no further studies are necessary. 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce impacts to nesting raptors, migratory birds and bat species to a less than 
significant level. 

  

Packet Pg. 75

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 33 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

b. and c. Riparian Habitat and Wetlands – Less than Significant with Mitigation. The project 
site contains approximately 0.47 acre of wetlands that are subject to U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers jurisdiction.  
 
To address the impacts to waters of the U.S, the following mitigation measure, agreed to by the 
applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-2 Prior to any grading or construction activities, the appropriate Section 404 permit will 
need to be acquired for any project-related impacts to waters of the U.S. Any waters of the U.S. 
that would be lost or disturbed should be replaced or rehabilitated on a “no-net-loss” basis in 
accordance with the Corps’ mitigation guidelines. Habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or 
replacement should be at a location and by methods agreeable to the Corps. In association with 
the Section 404 permit and prior to the issuance of improvement plans, a Section 401 water 
quality certification from the Regional Water Quality Control Board and if determined 
necessary, a USFWS Biological Opinion shall be obtained. All terms and conditions of said 
permits shall be complied with. 
 
For potential impacts to riparian habitat, the project may be required to obtain a Section 1600 
Streambed Alteration Agreement (SAA) from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. If it 
is determined that a SAA is required, the applicant shall obtain one and all terms and conditions 
of the SAA shall be complied with. 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit documentation to the 
Public Services Department that they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 
permit, a Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 water quality certification, and if 
determined necessary, a United States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion and a 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife Section 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement. The 
applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department that they have implemented 
habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or replacement as stipulated in their Section 404 permit. 
The applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department how they have complied 
with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 permit, the Section 401 water quality 
certification, and if applicable, the Biological Opinion and Section 1600 Streambed Alteration 
Agreement. 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce impacts to waters of the U.S. to a less than significant level. 
 
d. Fish and Wildlife Movement – Less than Significant. The majority of the surrounding area is 
developed in an urban fashion, including residential uses on all sides of the project and the 
nearby Crossings Shopping Center. Due to the proximity of local roadways to the site (I-80 and 
Sierra College Boulevard as well as the adjacent residential streets), the amount of surrounding 
development and the lack of established wildlife corridors and perennial water courses on the 

Packet Pg. 76

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 34 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

project site, the proposed project is not anticipated to interfere substantially with the 
movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors or wildlife nursery sites. 
 
e. Local Policies/Ordinances – Less than Significant with Mitigation. The City of Rocklin 
regulates the removal of and construction within the dripline of native oak trees with a trunk 
diameter of 6 inches or more at 4.5 feet above ground level under the Oak Tree Preservation 
Ordinance and the Oak Tree Preservation Guidelines. Seven oak species and five hybrids 
between these species are defined as “native oaks” by the City. Per the City’s oak tree 
ordinance, the diameter at breast height (DBH) of a multiple trunk tree is the measurement of 
the largest trunk only, and heritage trees are defined as native oak trees with a trunk diameter 
of 24 inches or more.  
 
The City of Rocklin commissioned the firm of Phytosphere Research to evaluate, characterize, 
and make recommendations on the City’s urban forest, and from that effort, a 2006 report 
titled “Planning for the Future of Rocklin’s Urban Forest” was produced. One of the findings of 
this report was that the City’s overall tree canopy cover has increased from 11% in 1952 to 18% 
in 2003 (a 63% increase) due to the protection of existing oaks and growth of both new and 
existing trees. This finding supports the City’s on-going practice of requiring mitigation for oak 
tree removal through its Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance as being an effective way to maintain 
or even increase urban forest canopy.  
 
The project site includes a total of 420 native oak trees within the boundaries of the project 
site. Composition of the 420 native oak trees includes 168 Interior Live Oak, 102 Blue Oak and 
140 Valley Oaks. 57 trees are recommended for removal by the project arborist as being dead, 
dying, or a hazard; 269 of the native oak trees are proposed for removal as a part of the 
development of the Oak Vista Subdivision project.  
 
To ensure compliance with the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance and to compensate for 
the removal of the oak trees on the project site, the following mitigation measure, agreed to by 
the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-3 Prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, the applicant shall: 
 
a) Clearly indicate on the construction documents that oak trees not scheduled for removal 
will be protected from construction activities in compliance with the pertinent sections of the 
City of Rocklin Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance. 
 
b) Mitigate for the removal of oak trees on the project site consistent with the 
requirements of the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code Section 
17.77.080.B). The required mitigation shall be calculated using the formula provided in the Oak 

Packet Pg. 77

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 35 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Tree Preservation Ordinance and to that end the project arborist shall provide the following 
information:  
 

• The total number of surveyed oak trees; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed that are to be removed because they are 

sick or dying, and  
• The total, in inches, of the trunk diameters at breast height (TDBH) of all surveyed oak 

trees on the site in each of these categories.  
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will comply with the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance and reduce impacts 
related to oak tree removal to a less than significant level. 
 
There are no facts or circumstances presented by the proposed project which create conflicts 
with other local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. 
 
f. Habitat Conservation Plan/Natural Communities Conservation Plan – No Impact The project 
would not conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Conservation Community Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state Habitat Conservation 
Plan because the site is not subject to any such plan; therefore there is no impact related to a 
conflict with a habitat conservation plan or natural communities conservation plan. 
 
V.   

 CULTURAL RESOURCES 
 Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as 
defined in §15064.5?  

   X  

b)   Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to §15064.5?  

 X    

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature?  

 X    

d) Disturb any human remains, including 
those interred outside of dedicated 
cemeteries?  

 X    

Cultural Resources 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 

Packet Pg. 78

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 36 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project could affect known or unknown/undiscovered historical, archaeological, 
and/or paleontological resources or sites as development occurs. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 79

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 37 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to historical, cultural and paleontological resources within 
the Planning area as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the 
General Plan. These impacts included potential destruction or damage to any historical, 
cultural, and paleontological resources (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, 
pages 4.8-1 through 4.8-21). Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated 
into the General Plan in the Land Use and Open Space, Recreation and Conservation Elements, 
and include goals and policies that encourage the preservation and protection of historical, 
cultural and paleontological resources and the proper treatment and handling of such 
resources when they are discovered. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that despite these goals and policies, significant cultural 
resources impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, 
that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General 
Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will contribute to cumulative impacts 
to historic character. Findings of fact and a statement of overriding considerations were 
adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be 
significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
Historically significant structures and sites as well as the potential for the discovery of unknown 
archaeological or paleontological resources as a result of development activities are discussed 
in the Rocklin General Plan. Policies and mitigation measures have been included in the General 
Plan to encourage the preservation of historically significant known and unknown areas.  
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for cultural resources impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of Westech Company, a California consulting firm with recognized expertise in cultural 
resources, prepared a cultural resource report for the Oak Vista Residential Subdivision project. 
The report, dated July 2016, is available for review during normal business hours at the City of 
Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated into this 
Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the documentation 
and is also aware that Westech Company has a professional reputation that makes their 

Packet Pg. 80

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 38 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review of the 
analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the Westech 
Company report, which is summarized below. 
 
The Westech Company report included records searches of the North Central Information 
Center, archival research, field parcel surveys and limited excavation efforts performed by a 
qualified archaeologist, queries sent to the Native American Heritage Commission and Native 
American contacts. Further collaboration with representatives from the United Auburn Indian 
Community (UAIC) determined that the project site contained some identified cultural 
resources. In addition, the project site may contain unknown cultural resources that could 
potentially be discovered during construction activities. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Historic Resources – No Impact. CEQA Statutes Section 21084.1 identifies historic resources 
as those listed in or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historic Resources, based on a 
range of criteria, including association with events or patterns of events that have made 
significant contributions to broad patterns of historical development in the United States or 
California, including local, regional, or specific cultural patterns (California Register Criterion 1), 
structures which are directly associated with important persons in the history of the state or 
country (Criterion 2), which embody the distinctive characteristics of type, period, or other 
aesthetic importance (Criterion 3), or which have the potential to reveal important information 
about the prehistory or history of the state or the nation (such as archaeological sites) 
(Criterion 4).  
 
In addition to meeting at least one of the above criteria, the structure must typically be over 50 
years old (a state guideline rather than a statutory requirement) and have retained historic 
integrity sufficient to be clearly evident as a historic resource through a combination of 
location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and association with historic patterns. 
The definition of “integrity” in this context is based on criteria established by the National 
Register of Historic Places.  
 
The project site does not contain any historic resources as defined in §15064.5 (the project 
archaeologist concluded that the identified cultural resources on the project site are not 
considered eligible for the National or State Register of Historic Places/Resources); therefore no 
impacts to historic resources are anticipated. 
 
b. and c. Archaeological Resources and Paleontological Resources – Less Than Significant With 
Mitigation. As noted above, the project site does contain some identified cultural resource and 
may contain unknown/undiscovered cultural resources.  
 

Packet Pg. 81

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 39 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

To address the potential of impacts to known cultural resources and the potential discovery of 
unknown cultural resources, the following mitigation measures are being applied to the project: 
 
V.-1 Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, a qualified archaeologist shall conduct cultural resources awareness training for 
construction crew members, and the City’s Environmental Services Manager shall be provided 
with evidence that a qualified archaeologist has been enlisted for such services. The training 
shall consist of a presentation of the potential prehistoric or historic cultural resources that may 
be found on the site and what likely evidence and examples of cultural resources could be 
discovered during grading and/or construction activities. The training shall also provide 
guidance on what to do in the event that cultural resources are discovered. All crew members 
shall sign a training sheet documenting that they attended the training. A letter report shall be 
submitted to the City’s Environmental Services Manager and the project proponent within 30 
days following the worker awareness training to document the results and to transmit the 
training sign-in sheet. 
 
V.-2 If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of shell, charcoal, 
animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, structure/building remains) is made during 
project-related construction activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted 
and a qualified professional archaeologist, the Environmental Services Manager and the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall be notified regarding the discovery. The archaeologist shall 
determine whether the resource is potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a 
historical resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique paleontological resource) and 
shall develop specific measures to ensure preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to 
the resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, logistics, technological 
considerations, the location of the find, and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation 
of the find is consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the project. Specific 
measures for significant or potentially significant resources would include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, preservation in place, in-field documentation, archival research, 
subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of measure necessary would be determined 
according to evidence indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner consistent with CEQA guidelines for 
preserving or otherwise mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  
 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains, there shall be no 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 
adjacent human remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) and (2) 
of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, has occurred. If any 
human remains are discovered, all work shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the 
County Coroner shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety 
Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall also be notified. If the remains are Native 
American, the Coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will 

Packet Pg. 82

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 40 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

inform a most likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the landowner 
appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, and the landowner shall comply 
with the requirements of AB2641 (2006). 
 
V.-3 Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, the United Auburn Indian Community, the project applicant/developer and the City of 
Rocklin shall enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding the treatment and 
disposition of identified cultural resources. 
 
V-4. Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, the project applicant shall coordinate with the United Auburn Indian Community to 
have a tribal monitor present during any re-location activities for identified cultural resources 
and during ground disturbance within a 100-foot radius of identified cultural resources as 
specified in the MOU noted in Mitigation Measure V.-3 above. 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measures; implementation of the above 
measures will reduce impacts to known and unknown/ undiscovered cultural resources to a less 
than significant level. 
 
d. Human Remains – Less Than Significant With Mitigation. No evidence of human remains is 
known to exist at the project site. However, in the event that during construction activities, 
human remains of Native American origin are discovered on the site during project demolition, 
it would be necessary to comply with state laws relating to the disposition of Native American 
burials, which fall under the jurisdiction of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) 
(Public Resources Code Section 5097). In addition, State law (CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 
and the Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5) requires that the Mitigation Measure V.-2 be 
implemented should human remains be discovered; implementation of Mitigation Measure V.-
2 will reduce impacts regarding the discovery of human remains to a less than significant level.  
 

  

Packet Pg. 83

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 41 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

VI.  
 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
  Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving:  

 i) Rupture of a known earthquake 
fault, as delineated on the most 
recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake 
Fault Zone Map issued by the state 
Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a 
known fault? Refer to Division of 
Mines and Geology Special 
Publication 42.  

  X   

 ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?   X   

 iii) Seismic-related ground failure, 
including liquefaction? 

  X   

 iv) Landslides?    X   

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss 
of topsoil?  

  X   

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable 
as a result of the project, and potentially 
result in on-or off-site landslide, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or 
collapse?  

    X 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table l8-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 
(l994), creating substantial risks to life or 
property?  

  X   

e) Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative waste water disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of waste water?  

   X  

Geology and Soils 
 

  

Packet Pg. 84

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 42 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
Branches of the Foothill Fault system, which are not included on the Alquist-Priolo maps, pass 
through or near the City of Rocklin and could pose a seismic hazard to the area including 
ground shaking, seismic ground failure, and landslides. Construction of the proposed project 
will involve clearing and grading of the site, which could render the site susceptible to a 
temporary increase in erosion from the grading and construction activities. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:  
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts of local soils and geology on development that would occur as a result of 
the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts 
included seismic hazards such as groundshaking and liquefaction, erosion, soil stability, and 
wastewater conflicts (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011 pages 4.6-1 through 
4.6-27). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the General Plan can result 
in geological impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level through 
the application of development standards contained in the City’s Improvement Standards and 
Standard Specifications and in the Rocklin Municipal Code, the application of General Plan goals 
and policies that would assist in minimizing or avoiding geologic hazards and compliance with 
local, state and federal standards related to geologic conditions. 
 
These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to, erosion control measures in 
the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications, the City’s Grading and Erosion 
and Sediment Control Ordinance, the City’s Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance, 
and goals and policies in the General Plan Community Safety Element requiring soils and 
geotechnical reports for all new development, enforcement of the building code, and limiting 
development of severe slopes. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for geology and soils impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan will 
be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City ordinances, rules and regulations.  
 
In addition, the project would be subject to the provisions of the City’s Grading and Erosion and 
Sediment Control Ordinance. Chapter 15.28 of the Rocklin Municipal Code, Grading and Erosion 
Sediment Control, regulates grading activity on all property within the City of Rocklin to 

Packet Pg. 85

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 43 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

safeguard life, limb, health, property, and public welfare; to avoid pollution of watercourses 
with nutrients, sediments, or other earthen materials generated or caused by surface runoff on 
or across the permit area; to comply with the City’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System permit issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board; and to ensure 
that the intended use of a graded site is consistent with the City of Rocklin General Plan, 
provisions of the California Building Standards Code as adopted by the City relating to grading 
activities, City of Rocklin improvement standards, and any applicable specific plans or other 
land use entitlements. This chapter (15.28) also establishes rules and regulations to control 
grading and erosion control activities, including fills and embankments; establishes the 
administrative procedure for issuance of permits; and provides for approval of plans and 
inspection of grading construction and erosion control plans for all graded sites. 
 
Also, a geotechnical report, prepared by a qualified engineer, will be required with the 
submittal of project improvement plans. The report will provide site-specific recommendations 
for the construction of all features of the building foundations and structures to ensure that 
their design is compatible with the soils and geology of the project site. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., i. and ii. Fault Rupture, Ground Shaking – Less than Significant Impact. The City of Rocklin is 
located in an area known to be subject to seismic hazards, but it is not near any designated 
Alquist-Priolo active earthquake faults. The Foothill Fault System has been identified in previous 
environmental studies as potentially posing a seismic hazard to the area; however, the Foothill 
Fault system is located near Folsom Lake, and not within the boundaries of the City of Rocklin. 
There are, however, two known and five inferred inactive faults within the City of Rocklin. 
Existing building code requirements are considered adequate to reduce potential seismic 
hazards related to the construction and operation of the proposed project to a less than 
significant level. 
 
a., iii. and iv. Liquefaction, Landslides – Less than Significant Impact. The site does not contain 
significant grade differences and therefore, does not possess the slope/geological conditions 
that involve landslide hazards. The potential for liquefaction due to earthquakes and 
groundshaking is considered minimal due to the site specific characteristics that exist in Rocklin; 
Rocklin is located over a stable granite bedrock formation and much of the area is covered by 
volcanic mud (not unconsolidated soils which have liquefaction tendencies). Application of 
development standards contained in the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard 
Specifications and in the Rocklin Municipal Code, the application of General Plan goals and 
policies that would assist in minimizing or avoiding geologic hazards, and compliance with local, 
state and federal standards related to geologic conditions would reduce the potential impact 
from liquefaction to a less than significant level. 
 

Packet Pg. 86

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 44 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

b. Soil Erosion – Less Than Significant Impact. Standard erosion control measures are required 
of all projects, including revegetation and slope standards. The project proponent will be 
required to prepare an erosion and sediment control plan through the application of the City’s 
Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications as a part of the City’s development review 
process. The erosion and sediment control plan are reviewed against the Placer County 
Stormwater Management Manual and the Regional Water Quality Control Board’s Erosion and 
Sediment Control Field Manual. The erosion and sediment control plan includes the 
implementation of Best Management Practices/Best Available Technology (BMPs/BATs) to 
control construction site runoff. The project will also be required to comply with the City’s 
Grading and Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, Chapter 
15.28), and the Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, 
Chapter 8.30). The application of standard erosion control measures to the proposed project, as 
well as compliance with the above noted Ordinances, would reduce potential erosion-related 
impacts to a less than significant level for on-site grading. 
  
c. and d. Unstable and Expansive Soil – Less Than Significant Impact. A geotechnical report, 
prepared by a qualified engineer, will be required with the submittal of the project 
improvement plans. The report will be required to provide site-specific recommendations for 
the construction of all features of the building foundations and structures to ensure that their 
design is compatible with the soils and geology of the project site. Through the preparation of 
such a report and implementation of its recommendations as required by City policy during the 
development review process, impacts associated with unstable soil or geologic conditions 
would be reduced to a less than significant level. 
 
e. Inadequate Soils for Disposal - No Impact. Sewer service is available to the project site and 
the proposed project will be served by public sewer. Septic tanks or alternative wastewater 
disposal systems would not be necessary; therefore there are no impacts associated with the 
disposal of wastewater. 

  

Packet Pg. 87

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 45 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

VII.  
 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
  Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for 
which 

General Plan 
EIR is 

Sufficient 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, 
either directly or indirectly, that may 
have a significant impact on the 
environment?  

  X   

    b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of greenhouse 
gases?  

  X   

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
An individual project, even a very large project, does not in itself generate enough greenhouse 
gas emissions to measurably influence global climate change. Global climate change is 
therefore by definition a cumulative impact. A project contributes to this potential cumulative 
impact through its cumulative incremental contribution combined with the emissions of all 
other sources of greenhouse gases (GHG). 
 
Area- and mobile-source emissions of greenhouse gases would be generated by the 
construction and operation of the proposed project. Neither the Placer County Air Pollution 
Control District nor the City of Rocklin has established significance thresholds for measuring the 
significance of a project’s incremental contribution to global climate change. However, 
individual projects can contribute to greenhouse gas emission reductions by incorporating 
features that reduce vehicle emissions and maximize energy-efficiency. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:  
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur related to climate change and greenhouse gas emissions 
as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These 
impacts included consistency with greenhouse gas reduction measure, climate change 
environmental effects on the City and generation of greenhouse gas emissions (City of Rocklin 
General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.15-1 through 4.15-25). Mitigation measures to 
address these impacts are incorporated into the General Plan in the Land Use and Circulation 
Elements, and include goals and policies that encourage the use of alternative modes of 
transportation and promote mixed use and infill development. 
 

Packet Pg. 88

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 46 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

The General Plan EIR concluded that despite these goals and policies, significant greenhouse 
gas emission impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, 
that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General 
Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will result in the generation of 
greenhouse gas emissions which are cumulatively considerable. Findings of fact and a 
statement of overriding considerations were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to 
this impact, which was found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
Generation of greenhouse gas emissions as a result of development activities are discussed in 
the Rocklin General Plan. Policies and mitigation measures have been included in the General 
Plan that encourage the use of alternative modes of transportation and promote mixed use and 
infill development.  
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for greenhouse gas emissions impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, 
will be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and 
standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the 
General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Project Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of Westech Company, a California consulting firm with recognized expertise in air 
quality, prepared an Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Analysis report for the proposed project. 
This analysis was prepared to estimate the project’s greenhouse gas emissions from 
construction activities, motor vehicle trips, and utility use. Their report, dated October 2016, is 
available for review during normal business hours at the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 
3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA and is incorporated into this Mitigated Negative Declaration by 
this reference. City staff has reviewed the documentation and is also aware that Westech 
Company has a professional reputation that makes its conclusions presumptively credible and 
prepared in good faith. Based on its review of the analysis and these other considerations, City 
staff accepts the conclusions in the Westech Company report, which is summarized below. 
 
Greenhouse Gas Setting  
 
Gases that trap heat in the atmosphere are referred to as greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
because they capture heat radiated from the sun as it is reflected back into the atmosphere, 
similar to a greenhouse. The accumulation of GHG emissions has been implicated as a driving 
force for Global Climate change. Definitions of climate change vary between and across 
regulatory authorities and the scientific community, but in general can be described as the 

Packet Pg. 89

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 47 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

changing of the earth’s climate caused by natural fluctuations and the impact of human 
activities that alter the composition of the global atmosphere.  
 
Emissions of greenhouse gases (GHGs) contributing to global climate change are attributable in 
large part to human activities associated with the industrial/manufacturing, utility, 
transportation, residential and agricultural sectors. Therefore, the cumulative global emission 
of GHGs contributing to global climate change can be attributed to every nation, region, city 
and virtually every individual on Earth. A project’s GHG emissions are at a micro-scale relative 
to global emissions, but could result in a cumulatively considerable incremental contribution to 
a significant cumulative macro-scale impact 
 
The major concern is that increases in GHG emissions are causing Global Climate Change. 
Global Climate Change is a change in the average weather on earth that can be measured by 
wind patterns, storms, precipitation, and temperature. Although there is disagreement as to 
the speed of global warming and the extent of the impacts attributable to human activities, the 
vast majority of the scientific community now agrees that there is a direct link between 
increased GHG emissions and long term global temperature increases. Potential global warming 
impacts in California may include, but are not limited to, loss in snow pack, sea level rise, more 
extreme heat days per year, more high ozone days, more large forest fires, more drought years, 
impacts to agriculture, changes in disease vectors, and changes in habitat and biodiversity.  In 
California, GHGs are defined to include carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous oxide 
(N2O), sulfur hexafluoride (SF6), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), nitrogen trifluoride (NF3), and 
hydrofluorocarbons. To account for the warming potential of GHGs, GHG emissions are 
quantified and reported as CO2 equivalents (CO2e).   
 
An individual project, even a very large project, does not in itself generate enough greenhouse 
gas emissions to measurably influence global climate change. Global climate change is 
therefore by definition a cumulative impact. A project contributes to this potential cumulative 
impact through its cumulative incremental contribution combined with the emissions of all 
other sources of greenhouse gases (GHG). In assessing cumulative impacts, it must be 
determined if a project’s incremental effect is “cumulatively considerable” (CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15064 (h)(1) and 15130). To make this determination, the incremental impacts of the 
project must be compared to with the effects of past, current and probable future projects. To 
gather sufficient information on a global scale of all past, current, and probable future projects 
to make this determination is a difficult, if not impossible, task. 
 
Regulatory Framework  
 
In September 2006, then Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger signed AB 32, the California Climate 
Solutions Act of 2006. AB 32 requires that statewide GHG emissions be reduced to 1990 levels 
by the year 2020. AB 32 delegated the authority for its implementation to the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) and directs CARB to enforce the statewide cap. In accordance with AB 

Packet Pg. 90

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 48 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

32, CARB prepared the Climate Change Scoping Plan (Scoping Plan) for California, which was 
approved in 2008. The Scoping Plan provides the outline for actions to reduce California’s GHG 
emissions. Based on the reduction goals called for in the 2008 Scoping Plan, a 29 percent 
reduction in GHG levels relative to a Business As Usual (BAU) scenario would be required to 
meet 1990 levels by 2020. The BAU condition is project and site specific and varies. The BAU 
scenario is based on what could or would occur on a particular site in the year 2020 without 
implementation of a proposed project or consideration of any State regulation emission 
reductions or voluntary GHG reduction measures. The CARB, per the 2008 Scoping Plan, 
explicitly recommends that local governments utilize a 15 percent GHG reduction below 
“today’s” levels by 2020 to ensure that community emissions match the State’s reduction 
target, where today’s levels would be considered 2010 BAU levels.  
 
In 2011, the baseline or BAU level for the Scoping Plan was revised to account for the economic 
downturn and State regulation emission reductions (i.e., Pavley, Low Carbon Fuel Standard 
[LCFS], and Renewable Portfolio Standard [RPS]). Accordingly, the Scoping Plan emission 
reduction target from BAU levels required to meet 1990 levels by 2020 was modified from 29 
percent to 21.7 percent where the BAU level is based on 2010 levels singularly, or 16 percent 
where the BAU level is based on 2010 levels and includes State regulation emission reductions 
noted above. The amended Scoping Plan was re-approved August 24, 2011. 
 
The Scoping Plan must be updated every five years. The First Update to the Climate Change 
Scoping Plan (Scoping Plan Update) was approved by CARB on May 22, 2014 and builds upon 
the initial Scoping Plan with new strategies and recommendations. The Scoping Plan Update 
highlights the State’s progress towards the 2020 GHG emission reduction goals defined in the 
original Scoping Plan and evaluates how to align the State’s longer-term GHG reduction 
strategies with other State policy priorities for water, waste, natural resources, clean energy, 
transportation and land use. According to the Scoping Plan Update, the State is on track to 
meet the 2020 GHG goal and has created a framework for ongoing climate action that could be 
built upon to maintain and continue economic sector-specific reductions beyond 2020, on the 
path to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050, as required by AB 32. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b.) Generate Greenhouse Gas and Conflict with Greenhouse Gas Plan – Less Than 
Significant Impact. Implementation of the proposed project would cumulatively contribute to 
increases of GHG emissions. Estimated GHG emissions attributable to future development 
would be primarily associated with increases of carbon dioxide (CO2) and, to a lesser extent, 
other GHG pollutants, such as methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide (N2O) associated with mobile 
sources or vehicles, utilities (electricity and natural gas), water usage, wastewater generation, 
and the generation of solid waste. Because the proposed project involves increased vehicle use 
in the area, the GHG emissions related to increased vehicle use in the area must be analyzed.  

Packet Pg. 91

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 49 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

The common unit of measurement for GHG is expressed in terms of annual metric tons of CO2 
equivalents (MT CO2e), based on the global warming potential of the individual pollutants. 
 
Previously, the City of Rocklin relied on methodology included in the California Air Resources 
Board’s original Climate Change Scoping Plan for the analysis of potential impacts related to 
GHG emissions.  The original Scoping Plan recommended an analysis methodology based on 
project-specific reductions in GHG emissions compared to a Business-As-Usual (BAU) scenario. 
The BAU scenarios were based off of GHG emissions projections for anticipated growth without 
the inclusion of measures that would reduce GHG emissions, such as improvements in vehicle 
fuel efficiency, energy efficiency, and the increased use of renewable energy sources for energy 
supply.  However, on November 30, 2015, the California Supreme Court issued a decision in the 
Center for Biological Diversity v. California Department of Fish and Wildlife (Newhall Ranch) 
case, in which the court ruled that analysis based on BAU scenarios was insufficient to support 
conclusions that proposed projects would have less-than-significant impacts. In response to the 
Newhall Ranch Ruling, the City of Rocklin is relying on the proposed new guidance from the 
PCAPCD to determine the significance of proposed projects in regards to GHG emissions. 
 
The proposed thresholds begin with a screening emission level of 1,100 MT CO2e/yr. Any 
project below the 1,100 MT CO2e/yr threshold is judged by the PCAPCD as having a less than 
significant impact on GHG emissions within the District and thus would not conflict with any 
state or regional GHG emissions reduction goals. Projects that would result in emissions above 
the 1,100 MT CO2e/yr threshold would not necessarily result in substantial impacts, if certain 
efficiency thresholds are met. The efficiency thresholds, which are based on service populations 
and square footage, are presented in the PCAPCD GHG Operational Thresholds of Significance 
table below. 
 

PCAPCD GHG OPERATIONAL THRESHOLDS OF SIGNIFICANCE 
Efficiency Thresholds 
Residential (MT CO2e/capita) Non-Residential (MT CO2e/1,000 sf) 
Urban Rural Urban Rural 
4.5 5.5 26.5 27.3 
Source: Placer County Air Pollution Control District. CEQA Thresholds. Accessible at 
http://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/air/landuseceqa/ceqathresholds. Accessed October 2016. 

 
Projects that fall below the 1,100 MT CO2e/yr threshold or meet the efficiency thresholds are 
considered to be in keeping with statewide GHG emissions reduction targets, which would 
ensure that the proposed project would not inhibit the State’s achievement of GHG emissions 
reductions. Thus, projects which involve emissions below the 1,100 MT CO2e/yr threshold or 
below the efficiency thresholds presented in the PCAPCD GHG Operational Thresholds of 
Significance table above are considered to result in less-than-significant impacts in regards GHG 
emissions within the District and would not conflict with any state or regional GHG emissions 
reduction goals.  Finally, the PCAPCD has also established a Bright Line Cap, which shall be the 

Packet Pg. 92

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 50 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

maximum limit for any proposed project.  The Bright Line Cap is 10,000 MT CO2e/yr for all types 
of projects.  
 
Short-term emissions of GHG associated with construction of the proposed project are 
estimated to be 332.13 MTCO2e, which is below the 1,100 MTCO2e/year threshold. 
Construction GHG emissions are a one-time release and are, therefore, not typically expected 
to generate a significant contribution to global climate change. Due to the size of the proposed 
project, the project’s estimated construction-related GHG contribution to global climate change 
would be considered negligible on the overall global emissions scale.  
 
The long-term operational GHG emissions estimate for the proposed project incorporates the 
project’s potential area source and vehicle emissions, emissions associated with utility and 
water usage, and the generation of wastewater and solid waste. The annual GHG emissions 
associated with the proposed project by year 2020 would be 966.19 MTCO2e/year and 943.99 
MTCO2e/year with mitigation. Because both of the levels of emissions are lower than the 1,100 
MTCO2e significance threshold, the proposed project would not hinder the State’s ability to 
reach the GHG reduction target nor conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or regulation 
related to GHG reduction and the impact of the proposed project on global climate change is 
considered less than significant and no mitigation measures are required. 
 
This Initial Study evaluates a “subsequent activity” that was already evaluated by the General 
Plan EIR, and the proposed project is actually a similar intensity use than which was evaluated 
by that EIR. The General Plan EIR identified the generation of greenhouse gas emissions as a 
significant and unavoidable impact, and the City of Rocklin adopted Findings of Fact and a 
Statement of Overriding Considerations in recognition of this impact. The project does not 
result in a change to this finding because the development and operation of the proposed 
project will generate greenhouse gas emissions. It should be noted that the project site is being 
developed with a land use that is equal to (from a trip generation and associated emissions 
standpoint) the Medium Density Residential land use that was anticipated by and analyzed 
within the General Plan EIR. The project-specific GHG study confirms that a project of this type 
falls within the prior General Plan EIR analysis. While the proposed project would cumulatively 
contribute to the significant and unavoidable impact of generation of greenhouse gas emissions 
as recognized in the General Plan EIR, the proposed project itself will not generate enough 
greenhouse gas emissions to measurably influence global climate change; project-specific 
impacts related to GHG emission and global climate change would be less than significant as a 
result of the level of the project’s emissions being lower than the PCACPD’s 1,100 MTCO2e 
significance threshold and through the application of General Plan policies and mitigation 
measures that encourage the use of alternative modes of transportation and promote mixed 
use and infill development. 
 

Packet Pg. 93

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 51 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

VIII.  
HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS 
Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials?  

  X  

 

 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment.   

  X  

 

 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous 
or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 
waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or 
proposed school?   

   X  

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list 
of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant 
to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 
result, would it create a significant hazard to 
the public or the environment?  

  X   

e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project result in a 
safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area?  

   X  

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the 
project area?  

   X  

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere 
with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan?  

  X   

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, 
including where wildlands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands?  

  X   

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
 

  

Packet Pg. 94

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 52 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
As discussed below, compliance with the mitigation measures incorporated into the General 
Plan goals and policies and applicable City Code and compliance with applicable Federal, State 
and local laws and regulations would reduce impacts related to hazards and hazardous 
materials to a less-than-significant level. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated human health and hazards impacts that would occur as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included wildland fire 
hazards, transportation, use and disposal of hazardous materials, and emergency response and 
evacuation plans (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011 pages 4.7-1 through 4.7-
30). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the Rocklin General Plan can 
introduce a variety of human health and hazards impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a 
less than significant level through the application of development standards in the Rocklin 
Municipal Code, the application of General Plan goals and policies that would assist in 
minimizing or avoiding hazardous conditions, and compliance with local, state and federal 
standards related to hazards and hazardous materials. 
 
These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to, Chapter 2.32 of the Rocklin 
Municipal Code which requires the preparation and maintenance of an emergency operations 
plan, preventative measures in the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications, 
compliance with local, state and federal standards related to hazards and hazardous materials 
and goals and policies in the General Plan Community Safety and Open Space, Conservation and 
Recreation Elements requiring coordination with emergency management agencies, annexation 
into fee districts for fire prevention/suppression and medical response, incorporation of fuel 
modification/fire hazard reduction planning, and requirements for site-specific hazard 
investigations and risk analysis. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for human health and hazards impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan 
and the City’s Improvement Standards, will be applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly 
applied development policies and standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to 
ensure consistency with the General Plan and compliance with the Rocklin Municipal Code and 
other City rules and regulations. 
 

Packet Pg. 95

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 53 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

In addition, Chapter 2.32 of the Rocklin Municipal Code requires the development of 
emergency procedures in the City through the Emergency Operations Plan. The Emergency 
Operations Plan provides a framework to guide the City’s efforts to mitigate and prepare for, 
respond to, and recover from major emergencies or disasters.  To implement the Emergency 
Operations Plan, the City has established a Disaster Council, which is responsible for reviewing 
and recommending emergency operations plans for adoption by the City Council.  The Disaster 
Council plans for the protection of persons and property in the event of fires, floods, storms, 
epidemic, riot, earthquake and other disasters. 
 
Significance Conclusion: 
 
a. and b. Transport, Use or Disposal of Hazardous Materials, Release of Hazardous Materials – 
Less than Significant Impact. Construction, operation and maintenance activities would use 
hazardous materials, including fuels (gasoline and diesel), oils and lubricants; paints and paint 
thinners; glues; cleaners (which could include solvents and corrosives in addition to soaps and 
detergents), and fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides and yard/landscaping equipment. While these 
products noted above may contain known hazardous materials, the volume of material would 
not create a significant hazard to the public through routine transport, use, or disposal and 
would not result in a reasonably foreseeable upset and accident condition involving the release 
of hazardous materials. Compliance with various Federal, State, and local laws and regulations 
(including but not limited to Titles 8 and 22 of the Code of California Regulations, Uniform Fire 
Code, and Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code) addressing hazardous 
materials management and environmental protection would be required to ensure that there is 
not a significant hazardous materials impact associated with the construction, operation and 
maintenance of the proposed project.  
 
The project site does contain existing septic and well systems that will be removed as part of 
development of the project. Currently known operational septic and well systems will be 
abandoned in accordance with all Placer County Department of Environmental Health 
regulations. However, the project site still has the potential to contain unknown septic and well 
systems.  
 
To address potential impacts from unknown septic and well systems, the following mitigation 
measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project. 
 
VIII.-1 If at any time during the course of grading or construction activities evidence of the 
existence of old wells, septic systems or other similar features is encountered, work shall be 
halted within 100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be notified. The City 
Engineer shall make a determination as to the nature of the feature (or features), the 
appropriate size for a buffer around the feature beyond which work could continue on the 
balance of the site, and which outside agencies, if any, should be notified and involved in 
addressing and/or remediation of the feature. At the discretion of the City Engineer and at the 

Packet Pg. 96

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 54 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

applicant’s expense, a qualified consultant(s) shall be retained to assess and characterize the 
feature and to determine appropriate remediation, if any. Remediation of the feature including 
obtaining any special permits and/or approvals as needed shall be completed and documented 
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and any responsible agencies, such as but not limited to 
the Placer County Department of Environmental Health, prior to completion of 
grading/construction in the affected area. 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce hazardous materials impacts related to unknown septic and well systems 
to a less than significant level 
 
c. Hazardous Emissions Near Schools – No Impact. There are no schools within one-quarter 
mile (1,320 feet) of the project site. The closest school is Sierra College on Rocklin Road which is 
approximately 3,500 feet away. Although residential projects of this nature would not typically 
emit any significant amounts of hazardous materials, substances, or waste or be involved in the 
transportation of hazardous materials, substances, or waste, there are existing rules and 
regulations, as indicated above, that address hazardous materials management and 
environmental protection. Therefore, there is no impact related to hazardous emissions or 
hazardous materials within one quarter mile of a school. 
 
d. Hazardous Site List – Less Than Significant. The project site is not on the list of hazardous 
materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. Government Code 
65962.5 is known as the Cortese List. The Cortese database identifies public drinking water 
wells with detectable levels of contamination, hazardous substance sites selected for remedial 
action, sites with known toxic material identified through the abandoned site assessment 
program, sites with Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) having a reportable release and all solid 
waste disposal facilities from which there is known migration. The Department of Toxic 
Substances Control (DTSC) EnviroStor database and State Water Resources Control Board 
GeoTracker database were searched on October 30, 2016 and no open hazardous sites were 
identified on the project site; therefore there is no impact related to a hazardous materials site 
on the project site. 
 
e. and f. Public Airport Hazards and Private Airport Hazards – No Impact. The project is not 
located within an airport land use plan, or within two miles of a public airport or public use 
airport; therefore there is no public or private airport hazard impact. 
 
g. Emergency Response Plan – Less than Significant Impact. The City’s existing street system, 
particularly arterial and collector streets, function as emergency evacuation routes. The 
project’s design and layout will not impair or physically interfere with the street system 
emergency evacuation route or impede an emergency evacuation plan; therefore a less than 
significant impact on emergency routes/plans would be anticipated. 
 

Packet Pg. 97

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 55 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

h. Wildland Fires – Less Than Significant Impact. The project site is located in a mostly 
developed residential area, surrounded by suburban development. Additionally, the proposed 
project has been reviewed by the Rocklin Fire Department and has been designed with 
adequate emergency access for use by the Rocklin Fire Department to reduce the risk of loss, 
injury or death involving wildland fires to a less than significant level. 

  

Packet Pg. 98

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 56 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

IX.  
HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 
Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements?  

  X   

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that there would be a net deficit 
in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production 
rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to 
a level which would not support existing land 
uses or planned uses for which permits have 
been granted)?  

  X   

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a 
manner which would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on- or off-site?  

  X   

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or 
substantially increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner which would result 
in flooding on- or off-site? 

  X   

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted 
runoff? 

  X   

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?   X   

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard 
area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 
Boundary of Flood Insurance Rate Map or other 
flood hazard delineation map? 

  X   

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area 
structures which would impede or redirect flood 
flows? 

  X   

Hydrology and Water Quality 
  

Packet Pg. 99

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 57 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 
(cont’d.) 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact Impact 

for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant 
risk of loss, injury or death involving 
flooding, including flooding as a result of the 
failure of a levee or dam?  

  X   

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?    X   

 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project would involve grading activities that would remove vegetation and 
expose soil to wind and water erosion and potentially impact water quality. Waterways in the 
Rocklin area have the potential to flood and expose people or structures to flooding. Additional 
impervious surfaces would be created with the development of the proposed project. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated hydrology and water quality impacts that would occur as a result of the future 
urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included water 
quality, ground water quality and supply, drainage, flooding, risks of seiche, tsunami and 
mudflow (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.9-1 through 4.9-37).  The 
analysis found that while development and buildout of the General Plan can result in hydrology 
and water quality impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level 
through the application of development standards contained in the City’s Improvement 
Standards and Standard Specifications and in the Rocklin Municipal Code, the application of 
General Plan goals and policies related to hydrology, flooding and water quality, and 
compliance with local, state, and federal water quality standards and floodplain development 
requirements. 
 
These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to, flood prevention and 
drainage requirements in the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications, the 
City’s Grading and Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance, the Stormwater Runoff Pollution 
Control Ordinance, the State Water Resources Control Board General Construction Activity 
Storm Water Permit requirements, and goals and policies in the General Plan Open Space, 
Conservation and Recreation and Safety Elements requiring the protection of new and existing 
development from flood and drainage hazards, the prevention of storm drainage run-off in 
excess of pre-development levels, the development and application of erosion control plans 

Packet Pg. 100

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 58 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

and best management practices, the annexation of new development into existing drainage 
maintenance districts where warranted, and consultation with the Placer County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District and other appropriate entities. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards:   
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR as well as relevant standards from 
the City’s Improvement Standards for hydrology and water quality impacts will be applied to 
the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards and/or as 
conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan and 
compliance with the Rocklin Municipal Code and other City rules and regulations. 
 
The project would be subject to the provisions of the City’s Grading and Erosion and Sediment 
Control Ordinance. Chapter 15.28 of the Rocklin Municipal Code, Grading and Erosion Sediment 
Control, regulates grading activity on all property within the City of Rocklin to safeguard life, 
limb, health, property, and public welfare; to avoid pollution of watercourses with nutrients, 
sediments, or other earthen materials generated or caused by surface runoff on or across the 
permit area; to comply with the City’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit 
issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board; and to ensure that the intended 
use of a graded site is consistent with the City of Rocklin General Plan, provisions of the 
California Building Standards Code as adopted by the City relating to grading activities, City of 
Rocklin improvement standards, and any applicable specific plans or other land use 
entitlements.  This chapter (15.28) also establishes rules and regulations to control grading and 
erosion control activities, including fills and embankments; establishes the administrative 
procedure for issuance of permits; and provides for approval of plans and inspection of grading 
construction and erosion control plans for all graded sites.  Chapter 8.30 of the Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance, prohibits the discharge of any 
materials or pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable water quality 
standards, other than stormwater, into the municipal storm drain system or watercourse.  
Discharges from specified activities that do not cause or contribute to the violation of plan 
standards, such as landscape irrigation, lawn watering, and flows from fire suppression 
activities, are exempt from this prohibition. 
 
In addition, the project would be required to prepare an erosion and sediment control plan 
through the application of the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications that 
are a part of the City’s development review process. 
 
Significance Conclusions:  
 
a., c., d., e. and f. Water Quality Standards and Drainage – Less than Significant Impact. Storm 
water runoff from the project site will be collected in stormwater drainage pipes and then 
directed through water quality treatment devices/areas as Best Management Practices (BMP) 

Packet Pg. 101

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 59 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

and/or Low Impact Development (LID) features and then into the City’s storm drain system. The 
purpose of the BMP/LID features is to ensure that potential pollutants are filtered out before 
they enter the storm drain system. The City’s storm drain system maintains the necessary 
capacity to support development on the proposed project site. Therefore, violations of water 
quality standards or waste discharge requirements are not anticipated.  
 
To address the potential for polluted water runoff during project construction, the project 
would be required to prepare an erosion and sediment control plan through the application of 
the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications as a part of the City’s 
development review process. The erosion and sediment control plan are reviewed against the 
Placer County Stormwater Management Manual and the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board’s Erosion and Sediment Control Field Manual. The erosion and sediment control plan 
includes the implementation of Best Management Practices/Best Available Technology 
(BMPs/BATs) to control construction site runoff. The project will also be required to comply 
with the City’s Grading and Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal 
Code, Chapter 15.28), and the Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Chapter 8.30), which includes the preparation of a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP).The proposed project would not alter the course of a stream or a 
river.  
 
The proposed project would not substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area because the City’s policies of requiring new developments to detain on-site drainage such 
that the rate of runoff flow is maintained at pre-development levels (unless the Placer County 
Flood Control and Water Conservation District’s Flood Control Manual requires otherwise) and 
to coordinate with other projects’ master plans to ensure no adverse cumulative effects will be 
applied. Per the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Dry Creek 
Watershed Flood Control Plan, onsite stormwater detention is generally not recommended 
anywhere in the Dry Creek watershed because it has been determined that on-site detention 
would be detrimental to the overall watershed, unless existing downstream drainage facilities 
cannot handle post-construction runoff from the project site. Substantial erosion, siltation or 
flooding, on- or off-site, and exceedance of the capacity of existing or planned drainage systems 
would not be anticipated to occur. 
 
Therefore, impacts related to water quality, water quality standards and drainage would be less 
than significant. 
 
b. Groundwater Supplies – Less than significant. The project site contains several existing 
water wells which will be abandoned and the project will use domestic water from the Placer 
County Water Agency and not use wells or groundwater; therefore existing groundwater 
resources will not be depleted. The City’s policies of requiring new developments to retain on-
site drainage such that the rate of runoff flow is maintained at pre-development levels and 
implementation of Low Impact Development features will ensure that groundwater recharge 

Packet Pg. 102

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 60 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

rates are also maintained at pre-development levels. Therefore, there is a less than significant 
groundwater supply impact. 
 
g., h., i. and j. Flooding, Inundation by Tsunami, Seiche, or Mudflow – Less Than Significant 
Impact. According to FEMA flood maps (Map Panel 06061CO418F, effective date June 8, 1998) 
the developable portion of the project site is located in flood zone X, which indicates that the 
project is not located within a 100-year flood hazard area and outside of the 500-year flood 
hazard area. The project site is not located within the potential inundation area of any dam or 
levee failure, nor is the project site located sufficiently near any significant bodies of water or 
steep hillsides to be at risk from inundation by a seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. Therefore the 
proposed project will not expose people or structures to a significant risk or loss, injury, or 
death as a result of flooding nor will the project be subject to inundation by tsunami, seiche or 
mudflow and a less than significant impact would be anticipated  

 

X. 
 LAND USE AND PLANNING 
 Would the project:   

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Physically divide an established                                                           
community?  

   X  

b) Conflict with any applicable land use 
plan, policy, regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project (including, 
but not limited to the general plan, 
specific plan, local coastal program, or 
zoning ordinance) adopted for the 
purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect?  

  X   

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat 
conservation plan or natural community 
conservation plan?  

   X  

Land Use and Planning 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts:   
 
Approval of the project would allow the construction and occupation of a 63-unit single-family 
subdivision on a 14.3 +/- acre site. The project site is designated Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) on the General Plan land use map and is zoned Unclassified (UN). The project requires 
Rezone, Tentative Subdivision Map and Oak Tree Preservation Permit entitlements to allow for 

Packet Pg. 103

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 61 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

a single-family residential subdivision as is being proposed. As discussed below, land use 
impacts are not anticipated. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on land use as a result of the future urban development that was 
contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included dividing an established community 
and potential conflicts with established land uses within and adjacent to the City (City of Rocklin 
General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.1-1 through 4.1-38). The analysis found that while 
development and buildout of the General Plan can result in land use impacts, these impacts 
would be reduced to a less than significant level through the application of General Plan goals 
and policies that would assist in minimizing or avoiding land use impacts. 
 
These goals and policies include, but are not limited to goals and policies in the General Plan 
Land Use Element requiring buffering of land uses, reviewing development proposals for 
compatibility issues, establishing and maintaining development standards and encouraging 
communication between adjacent jurisdictions. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts to land use incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, will be 
applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Division of Community – No Impact. The proposed project site is currently mostly vacant and 
the entire project is within the City of Rocklin. The proposed project would construct 63 single-
family residences at this location, which would not physically divide an established community. 
The streets within the project will connect to the adjacent neighborhoods and provide greater 
connectivity in the community. Therefore there is no division of community impact. 
 
b. Plan Conflict – Less than Significant Impact. The project site is designated Medium Density 
Residential (MDR) on the General Plan land use map and is zoned Unclassified (UN). The project 
requires Rezone, Tentative Subdivision Map and Oak Tree Preservation Permit entitlements to 
allow for a single-family residential subdivision as is being proposed. The proposed Residential 
Single Family, 6000 square foot minimum lots (R1-6) and Residential Single Family, 12,500 
square foot minimum lots (R1-12,500) zoning designations are consistent with the existing 
Medium Density Residential (MDR) land use designation. Upon approval of the proposed 

Packet Pg. 104

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 62 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Rezone, the proposed project will be consistent with the site’s land use and zoning designations 
and the development of the project would not conflict with land use designations and would 
have a less than significant impact related to conflicts with land use plans, policies or 
regulations. 
 
c. Habitat Plan Conflict - No Impact. There are no habitat conservation plans or natural 
community conservation plans which apply to the project site, and there would be no impact 
on such plans. 
 
XI.  

 MINERAL RESOURCES 
 Would the project:   

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a 
known mineral resource that would be 
of value to the region and the residents 
of the state?  

   X  

b) Result in the loss of availability of a 
locally-important mineral resource 
recovery site delineated on a local 
general plan, specific plan or other land 
use plan?  

   X  

Mineral Resources 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
As discussed below, no impact is anticipated because the project site does not contain known 
mineral resources. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b. Mineral Resources – No Impact. The Rocklin General Plan and associated EIR analyzed 
the potential for “productive resources” such as, but not limited to, granite and gravel (City of 
Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.6-4 through 4.6-5 and 4.6-17). The City of 
Rocklin planning area has no mineral resources as classified by the State Geologist. The 
Planning Area has no known or suspected mineral resources that would be of value to the 
region and to residents of the state. The project site is not delineated in the Rocklin General 
Plan or any other plans as a mineral resource recovery site. Mineral resources of the project 
site have not changed with the passage of time since the General Plan EIR was adopted. Based 
on this discussion, the project is not anticipated to have a mineral resources impact. 
  

Packet Pg. 105

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 63 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

XII.   
 NOISE 
 Would the project result in: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of 
noise levels in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan or 
noise ordinance, or applicable standards of 
other agencies?  

  X   

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of 
excessive groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels?  

  X   

c) A substantial permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the project?  

  X   

d) A substantial temporary or periodic 
increase in ambient noise levels in the 
project vicinity above levels existing 
without the project?  

  X   

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not 
been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the 
project expose people residing or working 
in the project area too excessive noise 
levels?  

   X  

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels?  

   X  

Noise 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts:   
 
As discussed below, development of the proposed project will result in an increase in short-
term noise impacts from construction activities. Compliance with the mitigation measures 
incorporated into the General Plan goals and policies, and the City of Rocklin Construction 
Noise Guidelines would reduce noise related impacts to a less-than-significant level. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 106

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 64 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts of noise associated with the future urban development that was 
contemplated by the General Plan.  These impacts included construction noise, traffic noise, 
operational noise, groundborne vibration, and overall increased in noise resulting from 
implementation of the General Plan Update (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 
2011, pages 4.5-1 through 4.5-48).  
 
Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into the General Plan in the 
Noise Element, which includes policies that require acoustical analyses to determine noise 
compatibility between land uses, application of stationary and mobile noise source sound 
limits/design standards, restriction of development of noise-sensitive land uses unless effective 
noise mitigations are incorporated into projects, and mitigation of noise levels to ensure that 
the noise level design standards of the Noise Element are not exceeded. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals and policies, significant noise impacts 
will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, that these impacts 
cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General Plan EIR found that 
buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will result in exposure of persons to, or generation of, 
noise levels in excess of applicable noise standards, will result in exposure to surface 
transportation noise sources and stationary noise sources in excess of applicable noise 
standards and will contribute to cumulative transportation noise impacts within the Planning 
Area.  Findings of fact and a statement of overriding consideration were adopted by the Rocklin 
City Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be significant and unavoidable.  
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts associated with noise incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, 
will be applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and 
standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the 
General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of Westech Company, a California consulting firm with recognized expertise in noise, 
prepared an environmental noise assessment of the Oak Vista Residential Subdivision project. 
Their report, dated February 2016 is available for review during normal business hours at the 
City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated into 
this Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the 
documentation and is also aware that Westech Company has a professional reputation that 

Packet Pg. 107

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 65 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

makes its conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review of 
the analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the Westech 
Company report, which is summarized below. 
 
Background Information on Noise 
 
Noise is a subjective reaction to different types of sounds. Noise is typically defined as 
(airborne) sound that is loud, unpleasant, unexpected or undesired, and may therefore be 
classified as a more specific group of sounds. Perceptions of sounds and noise are highly 
subjective from person to person. The perceived loudness of sounds is dependent upon many 
factors, including sound pressure level and frequency content. However, within the usual range 
of environmental noise levels, perception of loudness is relatively predictable, and can be 
approximated by A-weighted sound levels. There is a strong correlation between A-weighted 
sound levels (expressed as dBA) and the way the human ear perceives sound and for this 
reason, the A-weighted sound level has become the standard tool of environmental noise 
assessment. 
 
Measuring sound directly would require a very large and awkward range of numbers, so to 
avoid this, the decibel (dB) scale was devised. The decibel scale is logarithmic, not linear. In 
other words, two sound levels 10 dB apart differ in acoustic energy by a factor of 10. When the 
standard logarithmic scale is A-weighted, an increase of 10 dBA is generally perceived as a 
doubling in loudness. For example, a 70 dBA sound is half as loud as an 80 dBA sound, and 
twice as loud as a 60 dBA sound. 
 
Community noise is commonly described in terms of the ambient noise level, which is defined 
as the all-encompassing noise level associated with a given environment. A common statistical 
tool is the average, or equivalent, sound level (Leq). The Leq is the foundation of the composite 
noise descriptor, Ldn, and shows very good correlation with community response to noise. The 
day/night average level (Ldn) is based upon the average noise level over a 24-hour day, with a 
+10 dB weighting applied to noise occurring during nighttime (10:00 p.m. – 7:00 a.m.) hours. 
The nighttime penalty is based upon the assumption that people react to nighttime noise 
exposures as though they were twice as loud as daytime exposures. Because Ldn represents a 
24-hour average, it tends to disguise short-term variations in the noise environment. 
 
The City of Rocklin General Plan includes criteria for stationary (non-transportation) and 
transportation noise sources. Because the proposed project is located within close proximity to 
Interstate 80 (I-80), this analysis focuses on whether roadway noise levels would exceed City of 
Rocklin exterior or interior noise levels standards at the residences of the project. For 
transportation noise sources, the maximum allowable exterior noise level standard for outdoor 
activity areas is 65 dB Ldn and the maximum allowable interior noise level standard is 45 dB 
Ldn. 
 

Packet Pg. 108

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 66 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Noise Sources 
 
As noted above, the noise source concerns for this project are associated with I-80. Noise 
impacts associated with this noise source were evaluated and compared to noise level 
performance criteria for transportation noise sources contained within the City of Rocklin 
General Plan Noise Element.  
 
Traffic Noise 
 
To determine traffic noise levels on the project site, Westech Company prepared an 
environmental noise assessment of the Oak Vista Subdivision project. Noise measurements 
were taken at six locations on and near the project site. Stations 1-4 measured sound levels on 
the project site, while stations 5 and 6 measured sound levels at off-site locations nearer to I-
80. The City of Rocklin General Plan EIR estimates an increase of less than 2 dBA (1.45 db) from 
I-80 between Sierra College Boulevard and Rocklin Road at build out. The table below shows 
the predicted future traffic noise levels at the proposed project site using the current noise 
levels and a conservative estimate of a 2 dBA increase.  
 

PREDICTED FUTURE TRAFFIC NOISE LEVELS 
Location Current Noise Levels, 

L50 (dBA) 
Predicted Future 
Noise Levels, L50 

(dBA) 
Interstate 80 
Station 1 49.2 51.2 
Station 2 46.4 48.4 
Station 3 45.1 47.1 
Station 4 43.9 45.9 
Station 5 56.4 58.4 
Station 6 55.4 57.4 
Sources: Westech Company (2016), City of Rocklin (2012) 

 
The data in the table above indicates that future traffic noise levels throughout the proposed 
project site are predicted to comply with the City of Rocklin 60 dB Ldn exterior noise level 
standard. Therefore, no additional exterior traffic noise reduction measures would be required. 
 
Interior Traffic Noise Levels 
 
Standard construction practices, consistent with the Uniform Building Code typically provides 
an exterior-to-interior noise level reduction of approximately 25 dB, assuming that air 
conditioning is included for each unit, which allows residents to close windows for the required 
acoustical isolation. Therefore, as long as exterior noise levels at the building facades do not 
exceed 70 dB Ldn, the interior noise levels will typically comply with the interior noise level 
standard of 45 dB Ldn. 

Packet Pg. 109

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 67 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

 
There are no residential facades predicted to be exposed to exterior traffic noise levels 
exceeding 70 dB Ldn or higher. Therefore, interior noise levels are predicted to be less than 45 
dB Ldn at all proposed interior residential spaces and no noise reduction measures would be 
required. 
 
Significance Conclusions:  
 
a., b., c., and d. Exposure to Noise, Increase in Noise – Less than Significant Impact. The 
primary goal for the City of Rocklin General Plan with respect to noise is: “To protect City 
residents from the harmful and annoying effects of exposure to excessive noise”. To implement 
that goal, the City has adopted Noise Compatibility Guidelines prepared by the State Office of 
Noise Control. The objective of the Noise Compatibility Guidelines is to assure that 
consideration is given to the sensitivity to noise of a proposed land use in relation to the noise 
environment in which it is proposed to be located. 
 
Potential noise impacts can be categorized into short-term construction noise impacts and 
long-term or permanent noise impacts. The City has adopted standard conditions for project 
approvals which address short-term impacts. These include limiting traffic speeds to 25 mph 
and keeping equipment in clean and tuned condition. The proposed project would be subject to 
these standard conditions. The proposed project would also be subject to the City of Rocklin 
Construction Noise Guidelines, including restricting construction-related noise generating 
activities within or near residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays, and 
between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends to the satisfaction of the City Engineer or 
Building Official. Therefore, impacts associated with increases in the ambient noise 
environment during construction would be less than significant. 
 
As noted above, based upon the measured and predicted noise levels at the residences in the 
Oak Vista Residential Subdivision, the proposed project is anticipated to comply with the City of 
Rocklin 60 dB Ldn and 45 dB Ldn exterior and interior noise level standards for residential uses.  
 
Therefore, the proposed project will not result in a substantial permanent or temporary 
increase in ambient noise levels and the exposure to noise and increased noise level impacts 
are considered less than significant. 
 
e. and f. Public and Private Airport Noise – No Impact. The City of Rocklin, including the project 
site, is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of an airport, and is 
therefore not subject to obtrusive aircraft noise related to airport operations. Therefore, there 
is no airport related noise impact. 

  

Packet Pg. 110

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 68 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

XIII.   
 POPULATION AND HOUSING 
 Would the project:   

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Induce substantial population growth 
in an area, either directly (for example, 
by proposing new homes and 
businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure.)  

  X   

b) Displace substantial numbers of 
existing housing necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere?  

  X   

c) Displace substantial numbers of 
people, necessitating the construction 
of replacement housing elsewhere?  

  X   

Populations and Housing 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts:  
 
The proposed project will result in the construction of 63 residential units, which would not 
induce substantial population growth or displace substantial numbers of people. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated population and housing impacts that would occur as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included population 
growth and availability of housing opportunities (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 
2011, pages 4.11-1 through 4.11-13). The analysis found that while development and buildout 
of the General Plan can result in population and housing impacts, implementation of the 
General Plan would not contribute to a significant generation of growth that would 
substantially exceed any established growth projections nor would it displace substantial 
numbers of housing units or people. Moreover, the project will not construct off-site 
infrastructure that would induce substantial development, unplanned or otherwise. As such, 
population and housing impacts were determined to be less than significant. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 111

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 69 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Population Growth – Less than Significant Impact. The project site is currently designated on 
the City’s General Plan land use map as Medium Density Residential (MDR) and is proposed to 
be re-zoned to Residential Single Family, 6,000 square foot minimum lots (R1-6) and Residential 
Single Family, 12,500 square foot minimum lots (R1-12,500). The addition of 63 single-family 
residences is not considered to induce substantial population growth into a City that is 
projected to have approximately 29,283 dwelling units at the buildout of the General Plan; 
therefore the project will have a less than significant population growth impact. 
 
b. and c. Displace Substantial Numbers of Existing Housing or People – Less than Significant 
Impact. The project site is currently mostly vacant with the exception of four existing homes 
that are planned to be demolished. However, the project also includes the construction of 63 
residential units which represents a net increase in housing. The displacement of substantial 
numbers of existing housing or people necessitating the construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere will not occur and the impact would be less than significant. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 112

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 70 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

XIV.
  PUBLIC SERVICES 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

Would the project result in substantial adverse 
physical impacts associated with the provision 
of new or physically altered governmental 
facilities, need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant environmental 
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable 
service ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of the public 
services:   

     

1. Fire protection?   X   

2. Police protection?   X   

3. Schools?   X   

4. Other public facilities?   X   
Public Services 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project would create a need for the provision of new and/or expanded public 
services or facilities. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on the demand for fire and police protection and school and recreation 
facilities as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the General 
Plan. These impacts included increased demand for fire, police and school services, provision of 
adequate fire flow, and increased demand for parks and recreation (City of Rocklin General Plan 
Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.12-1 through 4.12-45). The analysis found that while 
development and buildout of the General Plan can result in public services and facilities 
impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level through compliance 
with state and local standards related to the provision of public services and facilities and 
through the application of General Plan goals and policies that would assist in minimizing or 
avoiding impacts to public services and facilities. 
 

Packet Pg. 113

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 71 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to the California Fire Code, the 
California Health and Safety Code, Chapters 8.12 and 8.20 of the Rocklin Municipal Code, and 
goals and policies in the General Plan Community Safety and Public Services and Facilities 
Elements requiring studies of infrastructure and public facility needs, proportional share 
participation in the financial costs of public services and facilities, coordination of private 
development projects with public facilities and services needed to serve the project, 
maintaining inter-jurisdictional cooperation and coordination and requiring certain types of 
development that may generate higher demand or special needs to mitigate the 
demands/needs. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts to public services incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, will 
be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for the project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., 1. Fire Protection – Less than Significant Impact. Development of the proposed project 
could increase the need for fire protection services. The City collects construction taxes for use 
in acquiring capital facilities such as fire suppression equipment. Operation and maintenance 
funding for fire suppression is provided through financing districts and from general fund 
sources. The proposed project would pay construction taxes, participate in any applicable 
financing districts and contribute to the general fund through property and sales taxes. 
Participation in these funding mechanisms would ensure fire protection service to the site and 
reduce fire protection impacts to less than significant. 
 
a., 2. Police Protection – Less than Significant Impact. Development of the proposed project 
could increase the need for police patrol and police services to the site. Funding for police 
services is primarily from the general fund, and is provided for as part of the City’s budget 
process. The proposed project would pay construction taxes, participate in any applicable 
financing districts and contribute to the general fund through property and sales taxes. 
Participation in these funding mechanisms would ensure police protection services to the site 
and reduce police protection impacts to less than significant. 
 
a., 3. and 4. Schools and Other Public Facilities – Less than Significant Impact. The proposed 
project will be required to pay applicable school impact fees in effect at the time of building 
permit issuance to finance school facilities. Participation in these funding mechanisms, as 
applicable, will reduce school impacts to a less than significant level as a matter of state law. 

Packet Pg. 114

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 72 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

The need for other public facilities would not be created by this project and the impact is 
anticipated to be less than significant. 
 
XV.  

RECREATION 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Would the project increase the use of 
existing neighborhood and regional 
parks or other recreational facilities 
such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would 
occur or be accelerated?  

  X   

b) Does the project include recreational 
facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities 
which might have an adverse physical 
effect on the environment?  

  X   

Recreation 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project, the development and occupation of a 63-unit single-family residential 
subdivision would be anticipated to increase the use of, and demand for, recreational facilities 
but not in a way that results in a significant impact. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on the demand for recreation facilities as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included increased 
demand for parks and recreation (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 
4.12-30 through 4.12-45). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the 
General Plan can result in recreation facilities impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a 
less than significant level through the application of General Plan goals and policies that would 
assist in minimizing or avoiding impacts to recreation facilities. The General Plan has 
established a parkland standard of five acres per 1,000 population, and has adopted goals and 
policies to insure that this standard is met. These goals and policies call for the provision of new 
park and recreational facilities as needed by new development through parkland dedication 
and the payment of park and recreation fees. These programs and practices are recognized in 
the General Plan Open Space, Conservation and Recreation Element, which mitigates these 
impacts to a less than significant level. 

Packet Pg. 115

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 73 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts to recreation incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, will be 
applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b. Increase Park Usage and Construction or Expansion of Recreational Facilities – Less 
than Significant. The proposed project, a residential subdivision, is not anticipated to 
significantly increase the use of, and demand for, recreational facilities. The City of Rocklin 
provides parkland dedication and/or collection of park fees to mitigate for the increased 
recreational impacts of new residential developments at the time that a parcel or subdivision 
map is recorded. The residents of the proposed project would likely utilize City recreational 
facilities but the use is anticipated to be minimal and is not anticipated to significantly increase 
the use of existing facilities to the extent that substantial physical deterioration of the facility 
would occur or be accelerated, nor is the minimal use anticipated to require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities; therefore, the project would have less than significant 
impacts regarding the increase in use of recreational facilities. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 116

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 74 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

XVI.
   TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC 

 Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, 
ordinance or policy establishing 
measures of effectiveness for the 
performance of the circulation system, 
taking into account all modes of 
transportation including mass transit 
and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, 
including but not limited to 
intersections, streets, highways, 
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle 
paths, and mass transit)?  

  X   

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion 
management program, including, but 
not limited to level of service 
standards and travel demand 
measures, or other standards 
established by the county congestion 
management agency for designated 
roads or highways?  

   X  

c) Result in a change in air traffic 
patterns, including either an increase 
in traffic levels or a change in location 
that results in substantial safety risks?  

   X  

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or 
incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment)?  

  X   

e) Result in inadequate emergency 
access?  

  X   

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, 
or programs regarding public transit, 
bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or 
otherwise decrease the performance 
or safety of such facilities?  

  X   

Transportation/Traffic 
 

  

Packet Pg. 117

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 75 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
As discussed below, the proposed project is anticipated to cause increases in traffic because an 
undeveloped site will become developed, but not to a degree that would significantly affect 
level of service (LOS) standards. 
 
Prior Environmental Review:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on transportation that would occur as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included signalized 
intersections in Rocklin, Loomis, Roseville, Lincoln and Placer County, state/interstate highway 
segments and intersections, transit service, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, and conflicts with 
at-grade railways (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.4-1 through 4.4-
98).  
 
Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into the General Plan in the 
Circulation Element, and include policies that require the monitoring of traffic on City streets to 
determine improvements needed to maintain an acceptable level of service, updating the City’s 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and traffic impact fees, providing for inflationary 
adjustments to the City’s traffic impact fees, maintaining a minimum level of service (LOS) of 
“C” for all signalized intersections during the PM peak period on an average weekday, 
maintaining street design standards, and interconnecting traffic signals and consideration of the 
use of roundabouts where financially feasible and warranted to provide flexibility in controlling 
traffic movements at intersections. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals and policies, significant transportation 
impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, that these 
impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General Plan EIR 
found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will result in increased traffic volumes at 
state/interstate highway intersections and impacts to state/interstate highway segments. 
Findings of fact and a statement of overriding consideration were adopted by the Rocklin City 
Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable policies and standards, including the mitigation measures addressing impacts of 
urban development under the General Plan on utility and service systems incorporated as goals 
and policies in the General Plan, will be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied 
development policies and standards and/or as conditions of approval for the project to ensure 
consistency with the General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 

Packet Pg. 118

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 76 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of KD Anderson & Associates, Inc., a Sacramento area consulting firm with recognized 
expertise in transportation, prepared a traffic impact analysis of the proposed project. Their 
report, dated November 1, 2016, is available for review during normal business hours at the 
City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated into 
this Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the 
documentation and is also aware that KD Anderson & Associates, Inc. has a professional 
reputation that makes its conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based 
on its review of the analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in 
the KD Anderson & Associates, Inc. report, which is summarized below. 
 
Daily Trip Generation 

Development of the project site has been assumed in previous city-wide traffic analyses such as 
the General Plan Update (2011); the project site was designated as a Medium Density 
Residential land use when the General Plan Update traffic analysis was completed; therefore 
the vehicle trips generated by the proposed single family residential project are consistent with 
the number of trips that were assumed at the time of the General Plan EIR analysis. 

An estimate of the proposed project’s daily and p.m. peak hour trip generation has been made 
based on trip generation rates derived from the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) 9th Edition 
Trip Generation Manual. The table below identifies the resulting trip generation estimates for 
the proposed project. As shown, the proposed residential project would generate 600 daily 
trips, with 63 trips occurring during the p.m. peak hour.  

PROJECT TRIP GENERATION 

Land Use Category Quantity 
Daily Trip Rate 

PM Peak Hour Trip Rate/Unit 
Inbound Outbound Total 

Single Family Residences 63 du 600 40 23 63 
 
Current Background Traffic Conditions 
 
Roadways providing access to the project site will be Dias Lane and local street connections to 
Schriber Way including Whitehorn Drive, Mesquite Way and Black Willow Drive. Dias Lane is a 
two lane street on the Rocklin/Loomis border providing access primarily to residential areas 
and Schriber Way is a two lane street providing access to commercial and residential areas. 
Four lots will be accessed from Dias Lane and the remaining 57 lots will be accessed from the 
local streets that connect to Schriber Way. 
 
New traffic counts were made for this study in October 2015, when Rocklin schools were in 
session. Intersection turning movement counts were made at study intersections (Sierra 
College/WB I-80/Commons, Sierra College/EB I-80/Crossings, Sierra College/Schriber, Sierra 
College/Dominguez/Bass Pro) during the two hour periods of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 

Packet Pg. 119

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 77 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

p.m. to 6:00 p.m.; the highest hourly traffic volume period within the two hour window was 
identified as the peak hour. 
 
The table below identifies current intersection Levels of Service (LOS) at the four study 
locations. As shown, the overall LOS at each intersection is LOS C or greater for both AM and 
PM peak hours, which meets the City’s minimum LOS C standard. 

EXISTING PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Time Period 
  AM Peak Hour (7:00-9:00 AM) PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
Sierra College Blvd./WB I-80 Signal B - 14.2 C - 20.2 
Sierra College Blvd./EB I-80 Signal B - 16.4 B - 17.5 
Sierra College Blvd./Schriber 
Way (overall) 
WB right turn 

EB Stop  
(A) 
A 

- (0.2) 
9.6 

(A) 
A 

- (0.2) 
8.8 

Sierra College Blvd./Dominguez 
Rd./Bass Pro Dr. Signal A 0.409 - A 0.303 - 

 
Existing Plus Project Traffic Conditions and Levels of Service 
 
Project trips were superimposed onto the current background traffic volumes to create the 
“Existing Plus Project” condition, which is reflected in the table below. 

EXISTING PLUS PROJECT PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Existing Existing Plus Project 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
AM Peak Hour (7:00 – 9:00 AM) 

Sierra College Blvd./WB I-80 Signal B - 14.2 B - 14.3 
Sierra College Blvd./EB I-80 Signal B - 16.4 B - 16.5 
Sierra College Blvd./Schriber 
Way (overall) 
WB right turn 

EB Stop 
 

(A) 
A 

- (0.2) 
9.6 

 
(A) 
A 

- (0.2) 
9.8 

Sierra College Blvd/Dominguez 
Rd/Bass Pro Dr. Signal A 0.409 - A 0.412 - 

PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 
Sierra College Blvd./WB I-80 Signal C - 20.2 C - 20.2 
Sierra College Blvd./EB I-80 Signal B - 17.5 B - 17.6 
Sierra College Blvd./Schriber 
Way (overall) 
WB right turn 

EB Stop 
(A) 
A 

- (0.2) 
8.8 

(A) 
A 

- (0.3) 
8.8 

Sierra College Blvd./Dominguez 
Rd./Bass Pro Dr. Signal A 0.303 - A 0.333 - 

 

Packet Pg. 120

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 78 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

As shown, the project does not result in any change to the AM or PM peak hours Level of 
Service at any location. Levels of Service at each intersection will remain LOS A, B or C, which is 
within the adopted minimum standard (i.e., LOS C or better). 
 
Existing Plus Approved Projects Plus Project 
 
The traffic impacts of the proposed project have also been considered within the context of 
future traffic conditions in this area of Rocklin assuming other approved but as yet 
unconstructed projects under an “Existing Plus Approved Projects (EPAP)” condition, which is 
reflected in the table below.  
 

EXISTING PLUS APPROVED PROJECTS (EPAP) PLUS PROJECT PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Existing Plus Approved Projects EPAP Plus Project 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
AM Peak Hour (7:00 – 9:00 AM) 

Sierra College Blvd./WB I-80 Signal B - 15.2 B - 15.3 
Sierra College Blvd./EB I-80 Signal B - 17.4 B - 17.6 
Sierra College Blvd/Schriber 
Way (overall) 
WB right turn 

EB Stop 
 

(A) 
B 

- (0.6) 
10.4 

 
(A) 
B 

- (0.6) 
10.5 

Sierra College Blvd./Dominguez 
Rd./Bass Pro Dr. Signal A 0.431 - A 0.435 - 

PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 
Sierra College Blvd./WB I-80 Signal C - 24.6 C - 24.8 
Sierra College Blvd./EB I-80 Signal C - 22.1 C - 22.5 
Sierra College Blvd./Schriber 
Way (overall) 
WB right turn 

EB Stop 
(A) 
A 

- (0.7) 
9.8 

(A) 
A 

- (0.7) 
9.8 

Sierra College Blvd./Dominguez 
Rd./Bass Pro Dr. Signal A 0.477 - A 0.494 - 

 
As shown above, the project would not result in the Level of Service in the AM or PM peak 
hours at any intersection dropping below LOS C in the existing plus approved projects condition 
with and without the Oak Vista Subdivision project. Levels of Service at each intersection will 
remain LOS A, B or C, which are within the adopted minimum standard (i.e., LOS C or better). 
 
Future (Cumulative Year 2030) Traffic Conditions 
 
Information from the General Plan EIR has been employed to identify long term traffic 
conditions in the project vicinity. The table below compares cumulative AM and PM peak hour 
Levels of Service at study area intersections with and without the proposed project. 

  

Packet Pg. 121

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 79 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

CUMULATIVE PLUS PROJECT PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Cumulative Base Cumulative with Project 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
AM Peak Hour (7:00 – 9:00 AM) 

Sierra College Blvd./WB I-80 Signal C - 22.9 C - 23.0 
Sierra College Blvd./EB I-80 Signal E - 73.7 E - 74.2 

Improved C - 30.2 C - 30.1 
Sierra College Blvd./Schriber 
Way (overall) 
WB right turn 

EB Stop 
 

(A) 
A 

- (0.3) 
9.0 

 
(A) 
A 

- (0.3) 
9.1 

Sierra College Blvd./Dominguez 
Rd./Bass Pro Dr. Signal B 0.600 - B 0.601 - 

PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 
Sierra College Blvd./WB I-80 Signal C - 34.8 C - 34.9 
Sierra College Blvd./EB I-80 Signal C - 21.7 C - 21.8 

Improved - - - - - - 
Sierra College Blvd./Schriber 
Way (overall) 
WB right turn 

EB Stop 
(A) 
B 

- (0.2) 
10.4 

(A) 
B 

- (0.3) 
10.5 

Sierra College Blvd./Dominguez 
Rd./Bass Pro Dr. Signal C 0.719 - C 0.729 - 

BOLD indicates conditions in excess of adopted minimum LOS standard 
 
As shown, the Sierra College Boulevard/EB I-80 intersection will not satisfy the minimum LOS C 
standard, for the AM peak hour in the cumulative base and cumulative with project conditions. 
However the other three intersections (Sierra College Boulevard/WB I-80, Sierra College 
Boulevard/Schriber Way and Sierra College Boulevard/Dominguez Road/Bass Pro Drive) will 
satisfy the minimum LOS C standard. A modification to the Sierra College Boulevard/WB I-
80/intersection by restriping the approach and converting one of the eastbound through lanes 
to a through plus right turn lane would yield LOS C if projected volumes do occur in the future 
(as shown in the Improved row). 
 
Because the LOS E condition at the Sierra College Boulevard/EB I-80 intersection exceeds the 
City’s LOS C standard with and without the project, the incremental change in average delay is 
the measure used to determine significance. In this case, the incremental change in average 
delay resulting from the Oak Vista subdivision is 0.5 seconds, which is less than the 5.0 second 
increment permitted under current City guidelines. Thus the project’s cumulative impact at this 
intersection is less than significant and no mitigation is required. Thus the project’s cumulative 
impact at this intersection is less than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Conflict with Performance of Circulation System – Less than Significant Impact. As 
evidenced by the summary of the traffic impact analysis, capacity or level of service impacts 

Packet Pg. 122

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 80 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

from the proposed project are not anticipated. Because the above analysis has verified that the 
proposed project will not result in any significant traffic impacts more severe than those 
disclosed in the General Plan EIR, the City finds pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15168, 
subdivision (C) (4), that these cumulative “environmental effects of the [site-specific project] 
were covered in the program EIR.” 
 
Vehicle Miles of Travel (VMT) is a transportation performance metric that is used as an input to 
air quality and noise analyses. VMT not only addresses the number of trips generated by a given 
land use, but also the length of those trips. By doing so, the placement of a given land use in 
proximity to complementary land uses, and available transit, walking and bicycling facilities are 
all considered. VMT can also be used to quantify the effects of proposed changes to a roadway 
network, transportation demand strategies, and investments in non-auto travel modes. VMT 
may be expressed in absolute numbers of as “per capita” rations, such as VMT per person, 
household, dwelling unit, employee, or service population (persons plus employees). For 
information purposes, the proposed Oak Vista Subdivision project is projected to generate 
approximately 4,487 Vehicle Miles of Travel on a daily basis. 
 
The project will be conditioned to contribute its fair share to the cost of circulation 
improvements via the existing citywide traffic impact mitigation (TIM) fee program that would 
be applied as a uniformly applied development policy and standard. The traffic impact 
mitigation fee program is one of the various methods that the City of Rocklin uses for financing 
improvements identified in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP). The CIP, which is overseen 
by the City’s Public Services Department, is updated periodically to respond to changing 
conditions and to assure that growth in the City and surrounding jurisdictions does not degrade 
the level of service on the City’s roadways. The roadway improvements that are identified in 
the CIP in response to anticipated growth in population and development in the City are 
consistent with the City’s Circulation Element. The traffic impact fee program collects funds 
from new development in the City to finance a portion of the roadway improvements that 
result from traffic generated by the new development. Fees are calculated on a citywide basis, 
differentiated by type of development in relationship to their relative traffic impacts. The intent 
of the fee is to provide an equitable means of ensuring that future development contributes 
their fair share of roadway improvements, so that the City’s General Plan Circulation policies 
and quality of life can be maintained.  
 

  

Packet Pg. 123

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 81 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

South Placer Regional Transportation Authority 
 
The South Placer Regional Transportation Authority (SPRTA) was formed through the 
establishment of a joint powers authority including the cities of Rocklin, Roseville and Lincoln, 
Placer County and the Placer County Transportation and Planning Agency in January 2002. 
SPRTA was formed for the implementation of fees to fund specialized regional transportation 
projects including planning, design, administration, environmental compliance, and 
construction costs. Regional transportation projects included in the SPRTA include Douglas 
Boulevard/Interstate 80 Interchange, Placer Parkway, Lincoln Bypass, Sierra College Boulevard 
Widening, State Route 65 Widening, Rocklin Road/Interstate 80 Interchange, Auburn Folsom 
Boulevard Widening, and Transit Projects. Similar to other members of SPRTA, the City of 
Rocklin has adopted a SPRTA fee for all development, and the proposed project would be  
 
Highway 65 Interchange Improvement Fee 
 
The cities of Rocklin and Roseville and Placer County have established the “Bizz Johnson” 
Highway Interchange Joint Powers Authority that has adopted an interchange traffic fee on all 
new development within Rocklin, Roseville and affected portions of Placer County. The purpose 
of the fee is to finance four interchanges on State Route 65 to reduce the impact of increased 
traffic from local development; the proposed project would be subject to payment of such a 
fee. 
 
The development of the proposed project and the resulting addition of 63 single-family 
residences would not result in project-specific significant effects as demonstrated by the 
summary of the project’s traffic impact analysis presented above. Payment of traffic impact 
fees as described above will reduce traffic impacts from the proposed project to a less than 
significant level. 
 
b. Conflict with Congestion Management Program – No Impact. The City of Rocklin does not 
have an applicable congestion management program that has been established by a county 
congestion management agency for designated roads or highways; therefore there is no 
conflict with an applicable congestion management program impact. 
 
c. Air Traffic Levels – No Impact. The proposed project is not anticipated to have any impacts 
on air traffic because it is not located near an airport or within a flight path. In addition, the 
proposed project will not result in a change in location of planned development that results in 
substantial safety risks. Therefore, there is no change in air traffic patterns impact. 
 
d. and e. Hazards and Emergency Access – Less than Significant Impact. The proposed project 
is evaluated by the City’s Engineering Services Manager to assess such items as hazards due to a 
design feature or incompatible uses. In addition, the proposed project is evaluated by 
representatives of the City of Rocklin’s Fire and Police Departments to ensure that adequate 

Packet Pg. 124

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 82 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

emergency access is provided. Through these reviews and any required changes, there will be a 
less than significant hazard or emergency access impact. 
 
f. Alternative Modes of Transportation – Less Than Significant Impact. The City of Rocklin 
seeks to promote the use of public transit through development conditions requiring park-and-
ride lots, and bus turnouts. Bike lanes are typically required along arterial and collector streets. 
In the vicinity of the project there are existing Class II bike facilities along Sierra College 
Boulevard. The proposed project does not conflict with these bike lane locations or with other 
policies or programs promoting alternative transportation. The proposed project is evaluated 
by City staff to assess potential conflicts with adopted policies, plans or programs regarding 
public transit, bicycle and pedestrian facilities and whether proposed projects would decrease 
the performance or safety of such facilities. Through these reviews and any required changes, 
there will be a less than significant alternative modes of transportation impact.  

Packet Pg. 125

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 83 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

XVII. 
TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 
Would the project cause a substantial 
adverse change in the significance of a 
tribal cultural resource, defined in 
Public Resources Code section 21074 as 
either a site, feature, place, cultural 
landscape that is geographically defined 
in terms of the size and scope of the 
landscape, sacred place, or object with 
cultural value to a California Native 
American tribe, and that is: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for 
which 

General 
Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the 
California Register of Historical 
Resources, or in a local register of 
historical resources as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or  

  X X  

b) A resource determined by the lead 
agency, in its discretion and supported 
by substantial evidence, to be 
significant pursuant to criteria set forth 
in subdivision (c) of Public Resources 
Code section 5024.1. In applying the 
criteria set for in subdivision (c) of 
Public Resource Code section 5024.1 
the lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a 
California Native American tribe. 

  X   

Tribal Cultural Resources 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The project site does not contain any resources that are listed with the California Register of 
Historical Resources or that have been determined by the lead agency to have significance to a 
California Native American Tribe. Therefore no impacts to tribal cultural resources are 
anticipated. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to historical, cultural and paleontological resources within 
the Planning area as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the 
General Plan. These impacts included potential destruction or damage to any historical, 

Packet Pg. 126

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 84 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

cultural, and paleontological resources (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, 
pages 4.8-1 through 4.8-21). Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated 
into the General Plan in the Land Use and Open Space, Recreation and Conservation Elements, 
and include goals and policies that encourage the preservation and protection of historical, 
cultural and paleontological resources and the proper treatment and handling of such 
resources when they are discovered. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that despite these goals and policies, significant cultural 
resources impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, 
that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General 
Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will contribute to cumulative impacts 
to historic character. Findings of fact and a statement of overriding considerations were 
adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be 
significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
Historically significant structures and sites as well as the potential for the discovery of unknown 
archaeological or paleontological resources as a result of development activities are discussed 
in the Rocklin General Plan. Policies and mitigation measures have been included in the General 
Plan to encourage the preservation of historically significant known and unknown areas.  
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for cultural resources impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b. Tribal Cultural Resources –Less Than Significant Impact. Per Assembly Bill 52 (AB-52, 
Gatto 2014), as of July 1, 2015 Public Resources Code Sections 21080.3.1 and 21080.3 require 
public agencies to consult with the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) and Native 
American tribes for the purpose of mitigating impacts to tribal cultural resources; that 
consultation process is described in part below: 
  

Within 14 days of determining that an application for a project is complete or a decision 
by a public agency to undertake a project, the lead agency shall provide formal 
notification to the designated contact of, or a tribal representative of, traditionally and 
culturally affiliated California Native American tribes that have requested notice, which 
shall be accomplished by means of at least one written notification that includes a brief 
description of the proposed project and its location, the lead agency contact 

Packet Pg. 127

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 85 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

information, and a notification that the California Native American tribe has 30 days to 
request consultation pursuant to this section (Public Resources Code Section 21080.1 
(d)) 

 
As of the writing of this document, the United Auburn Indian Community (UAIC), the Ione Band 
of Miwok Indians (IBMI) and the Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians (TMDCI) are the only 
tribes that are traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area that have requested 
notification. Consistent with Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21080.3.1 (d) and per AB-52, 
the City of Rocklin provided formal notification of Oak Vista Subdivision project and the 
opportunity to consult on it to the designated contacts of the UAIC, IBMI and TMDCI in a letter 
received by those organizations on January 28, 2016, March 18, 2016 and June 6, 2016, 
respectively. The UAIC, IBMI and TMDCI had 30 days to request consultation on the project 
pursuant to AB-52 and they did not respond prior to February 22, 2016, April 18, 2016 and July 
6, 2016, respectively, the end of the 30-day periods. As such, the City of Rocklin has complied 
with AB-52 and may proceed with the CEQA process for this project per PRC Section 21082.3 (d) 
(3). Given that the UAIC, IBMI and TMDCI did not submit a formal request for consultation on 
the proposed project within the required 30 day period, that no other tribes have submitted a 
formal request to receive notification from the City of Rocklin pursuant to PRC Section 
21080.3.1, the project is not anticipated to cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a Tribal Cultural Resource as defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074. 
Therefore, the project’s impact on tribal cultural resources is considered less than significant. 
 
It should be noted that although the UAIC, IBMI and TMDCI did not submit formal requests for 
consultation within the required 30-day period as specified by AB-52, the UAIC has been 
coordinating with the City and applicant/developer regarding cultural resources on the project 
site and mitigation measures for impacts to cultural resources are identified in Section V. 
Cultural Resources above.  

Packet Pg. 128

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 86 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

XVIII.  
UTILITIES AND SERVICE 
SYSTEMS 
Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment 
requirements of the applicable 
Regional Water Quality Control Board?  

  X   

b) Require or result in the construction of 
new water or wastewater treatment 
facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of which 
could cause significant environmental 
effects?  

   X  

c) Require or result in the construction of 
new storm water drainage facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause 
significant environmental effects?   

   X  

d) Have sufficient water supplies 
available to serve the project from 
existing entitlements and resources, or 
are new or expanded entitlements 
needed?  

  X   

e) Result in a determination by the 
wastewater treatment provider which 
serves or may serve the project that it 
has adequate capacity to serve the 
project’s projected demand in addition 
to the provider’s existing 
commitments?  

  X   

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient 
permitted capacity to accommodate 
the project’s solid waste disposal 
needs?  

  X   

g) Comply with federal, state, and local 
statutes and regulations related to 
solid waste?  

  X   

Utilities and Service Systems 
  

Packet Pg. 129

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 87 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed development and occupation of a 63-unit single-family residential subdivision will 
increase the need for utility and service systems, but not to an extent that will impact the 
ability of the utility and service providers to adequately provide such services. 
 
Prior Environmental Review:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on utilities and service systems that would occur as a result of the future 
urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included 
increased generation of wastewater flow, provision of adequate wastewater treatment, 
increased demand for solid waste disposal, and increased demand for energy and 
communication services (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.13-1 
through 4.13-34). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the General Plan 
can result in utilities and service system impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than 
significant level through the application of General Plan goals and policies that would assist in 
minimizing or avoiding impacts to utilities and service systems. 
 
These goals and policies include, but are not limited to, requiring studies of infrastructure 
needs, proportional share participation in the financial costs of public services and facilities, 
coordination of private development projects with public facilities and services needed to serve 
the project and encouraging energy conservation in new developments. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable policies and standards, including the mitigation measures addressing impacts of 
urban development under the General Plan on utility and service systems incorporated as goals 
and policies in the General Plan, will be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied 
development policies and standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure 
consistency with the General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., b. and e. Exceed Wastewater Treatment Requirements, Exceed Wastewater Treatment 
Facility, Wastewater Capacity– Less than Significant Impact. The proposed project site is 
located within the South Placer Municipal Utility District (SPMUD) service area for sewer. 
SPMUD has provided a letter regarding the proposed project indicating that the project is 
within their service area and eligible for service, provided that their condition requirements and 
standard specifications are met. SPMUD has a Master Plan, which is periodically updated, to 

Packet Pg. 130

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 88 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

provide sewer to projects located within their service boundary. The plan includes future 
expansion as necessary, and includes the option of constructing additional treatment plants. 
SPMUD collects connection fees to finance the maintenance and expansion of its facilities. The 
proposed project is responsible for complying with all requirements of SPMUD, including 
compliance with wastewater treatment standards established by the Central Valley Water 
Quality Control Board. The South Placer Wastewater Authority (SPWA) was created by the City 
of Roseville, Placer County and SPMUD to provide regional wastewater and recycled water 
facilities in southwestern Placer County. The regional facilities overseen by the SPWA include 
the Dry Creek and Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plants, both of which receive flows 
from SPMUD (and likewise from Rocklin). To project future regional wastewater needs, the 
SPWA prepared the South Placer Regional Wastewater and Recycled Water Systems Evaluation 
(Evaluation) in June 2007. The Evaluation indicates that as of June 2004, flows to both the 
wastewater treatment plants were below design flows. Specifically, the Dry Creek Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) had an average dry weather flow of 10 million gallons/day (mgd) and 
an average dry weather capacity of 18 mgd, while the Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment 
Plant had an average dry weather flow of 7 mgd, and an average dry weather capacity of 12 
mgd. According to SPMUD, in 2009 the Dry Creek WWTP had an inflow of 10.3 mgd, with 
Rocklin’s portion being 2.4 mgd, and the Pleasant Grove WWTP had an inflow of 7.0 mgd, with 
Rocklin’s portion being 2.0 mgd. Consequently, both plants are well within their operating 
capacities and there remains adequate capacity to accommodate the projected wastewater 
flows from this project. Therefore, a less than significant wastewater treatment impact is 
anticipated. 
 
c. New Stormwater Facilities – Less than Significant Impact. The proposed project would be 
conditioned to require connection into the City’s storm drain system, with Best Management 
Practices and/or Low Impact Development features located within the project’s drainage 
system at a point prior to where the project site runoff will enter the City’s storm drain system. 
Other than on-site improvements, new drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities 
would not be required as a result of this project. Therefore, a less than significant stormwater 
facility impact is anticipated. 
 
d. Water Supplies – Less than Significant. The proposed project is located within the Placer 
County Water Agency (PCWA) service area. The PCWA has a Master Plan, which is periodically 
updated, to provide water to projects located within their service boundary. The plan includes 
future expansion as necessary, and includes the option of constructing additional treatment 
plants. The PCWA collects hook-up fees to finance the maintenance and expansion of its 
facilities. 
 
The PCWA service area is divided into five zones that provide treated and raw water to Colfax, 
Auburn, Loomis, Rocklin, Lincoln, small portion of Roseville, unincorporated areas of western 
Placer County, and a small community in Martis Valley near Truckee. The proposed project is 
located in Zone 1, which is the largest of the five zones. Zone 1 provides water service to 

Packet Pg. 131

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 89 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Auburn, Bowman, Ophir, Newcastle, Penryn, Loomis, Rocklin, Lincoln, and portions of Granite 
Bay.  
 
PCWA has planned for growth in the City of Rocklin and sized the water supply infrastructure to 
meet this growth (PCWA 2006). PCWA has provided a letter regarding the proposed project 
indicating that the project is within their service area and eligible for service upon execution of 
a facilities agreement and payment of all required fees and charges. The project site would be 
served by the Foothill WTP, which treats water diverted from the American River Pump Station 
near Auburn, and the proposed project’s estimated maximum daily water treatment demands 
would not exceed the plant’s permitted capacity. Because the proposed project would be 
served by a water treatment plant that has adequate capacity to meet the project’s projected 
demand and would not require the construction of a new water treatment plant, the proposed 
project’s water supply and treatment facility impacts would be considered less than significant.  
 
f. Landfill Capacity – Less than Significant. The Western Regional landfill, which serves the 
Rocklin area, has a total capacity of 36 million cubic yards and a remaining capacity of 29 million 
cubic yards. The estimated closure date for the landfill is approximately 2036. Development of 
the project site with urban land uses was included in the lifespan and capacity calculations of 
the landfill, and a less than significant landfill capacity impact would be anticipated. 
 
g. Solid Waste Regulations – Less than Significant Impact. Federal and State regulations 
regarding solid waste consist of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency regulations and 
the California Integrated Waste Management Act regulating waste reduction. These regulations 
primarily affect local agencies and other agencies such as the Landfill Authority. The proposed 
project will comply with all Federal, State, and local regulations regarding trash and waste and 
other nuisance-related issues as may be applicable. Recology would provide garbage collection 
services to the project site, provided their access requirements are met. Therefore, the project 
would comply with solid waste regulations and the impact would be less than significant.  

Packet Pg. 132

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 90 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

XIX.  
MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 
 SIGNIFICANCE 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Does the project have the potential 
to degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce 
the habitat of a fish or wildlife 
species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to 
eliminate a plant or animal 
community, substantially reduce the 
number or restrict the range of an 
endangered, rare or threatened 
species or eliminate important 
examples of the major periods of 
California history or prehistory?  

 X    

b) Does the project have impacts that 
are limited, but cumulatively 
considerable? (“Cumulatively 
considerable” means that the 
incremental effects of a project are 
considerable when viewed in 
connection with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of other current 
projects, and the effects of probably 
future projects)?  

  X   

c) Does the project have 
environmental effects which will 
cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or 
indirectly?  

  X   

Mandatory Findings of Significance 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The preceding analysis demonstrates that these effects will not occur as a consequence of the 
project. The construction and operation of the Oak Vista Subdivision project would be 
consistent with the Rocklin General Plan and the Rocklin General Plan EIR. 
 
 

Packet Pg. 133

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 91 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Degradation of Environment Quality – Less than Significant with Mitigation. The proposed 
project does not have the potential to: substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife 
species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to 
eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of 
an endangered, rare or threatened species, or eliminate important examples of the major 
periods of California history or prehistory. Although the proposed project could cause a 
significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because 
of the project design and the application of the recommended mitigation measures and the 
City’s uniformly applied development policies and standards that will reduce the potential 
impacts to a less than significant level. Therefore, the project would have less than significant 
impacts. 
 
b. Cumulatively Considerable Impacts – Less than Significant. Development in the South Placer 
region as a whole will contribute to regional air pollutant emissions, thereby delaying 
attainment of Federal and State air quality standards, regardless of development activity in the 
City of Rocklin and application of mitigation measures; as a result, the General Plan EIR 
determined that there would be significant and unavoidable cumulative air quality impacts. 
Buildout of the proposed project represents similar vehicle trip generation and associated air 
quality impacts than that which was analyzed in the EIR. 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in cumulative, long-
term impacts on biological resources (vegetation and wildlife), due to the introduction of 
domestic landscaping, homes, paved surfaces, and the relatively constant presence of people 
and pets, all of which negatively impact vegetation and wildlife habitat; as a result, the General 
Plan EIR determined that there would be cumulative significant and unavoidable biological 
resource impacts.  
 
The approval of the proposed project would not result in any new impacts that are limited, but 
cumulatively considerable, that are not already disclosed in the previously prepared 
environmental documents cited in this report. Therefore, the project would have less than 
significant impacts. 
 
c. Adverse Effects to Humans – Less than Significant. The approval of the proposed project 
would not have environmental effects that would cause substantial adverse effect on human 
beings. Therefore, the project would have less than significant impacts 
 
  

Packet Pg. 134

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Initial Study Page 92 
Reso. No. 

Oak Vista Subdivision 
SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008 

 
 

Section 5.  References 
 
City of Rocklin General Plan, October 2012 
City of Rocklin General Plan, Final Environmental Impact Report, August 2012 
City of Rocklin General Plan, Draft Environmental Impact Report, August 2011 
City of Rocklin Zoning Ordinance, Title 17 of the Rocklin Municipal Code 
City of Rocklin Design Review Guidelines 
KD Anderson & Associates, Inc., Traffic Impact Analysis for Oak Vista Subdivision, Rocklin, 

California, November 1, 2016 
Sierra Nevada Arborists, Arborist Report and Tree Inventory Summary, Dias Lane 10.4 

Acre/4Parcel Project Site, August 14, 2015 
Sierra Nevada Arborists, Supplemental Arborist Report and Tree Inventory Summary, Dias Lane 

and Makabe Lane Project Site [APN 045-043-031], October 21, 2015 
Westech Company, Quantitative Air Quality & Greenhouse Gas Emissions Report: Oak Vista 

Residential Subdivision Project, Dias Lane and Makabe Lane, October 2016 
Westech Company, Sound Level (Noise) Study: Oak Vista Subdivision Project, Dias Lane and 

Makabe, February 2016 
Westech Company, Delineation of Wetlands & Waters of the United States: Rocklin 60 

Residential Subdivision Project, Dias Lane and Makabe Lane, October 2015 
Westech Company, Biological Assessment for Rocklin 60 Residential Subdivision, Rocklin, 

California, October 2015 
Westech Company, Cultural Resources Report for the Oak Vista Residential Subdivision Project, 

Rocklin, Placer County, California, July 2016 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Project Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Project Site Plan

Packet Pg. 135

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 1 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

 MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

OAK VISTA SUBDIVISION 
(SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008) 

 
Project Name and Description 
 
The Oak Vista Subdivision project proposes the construction of a residential subdivision 
consisting of 63 single-family residential units on an approximately 14.3 +/- acre site in the City 
of Rocklin. This project will require Tentative Subdivision Map, Rezone and Oak Tree 
Preservation Permit entitlements. For more detail please refer to the Project Description set 
forth in Section 3 of this Initial Study. 
 
Project Location 
 
The project site is generally located on the southwest corner of Makabe Lane and Dias Lane, in 
the City of Rocklin. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers are 045-043-009, -030, -031, -032, and -052. 
 
Project Proponent’s Name 
 
The applicant is Ryan Bradford of Equity Smart Investments, LP and the property owner is 
Placer Partners, LLC. 
 
Basis for Mitigated Negative Declaration Determination 
 
The City of Rocklin finds that as originally submitted the proposed project could have a 
significant effect on the environment. However, revisions in the project have been made by or 
agreed to by the project proponent, which will avoid these effects or mitigate these effects to a 
point where clearly no significant effect will occur. Therefore a MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION has been prepared.  The Initial Study supporting the finding stated above and 
describing the mitigation measures including in the project is incorporated herein by this 
reference. This determination is based upon the criteria of the Guidelines of the State Secretary 
of Resources Section 15064 – Determining the Significance of the Environmental Effects Caused 
by a Project, Section 15065 – Mandatory Findings of Significance, and 15070 – Decision to 
Prepare a Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative Declaration, and the mitigation measures 
described in the Mitigation Monitoring Plan for this Project.  
 
 
Date Circulated for Review:  November 17, 2016       
 
Date Adopted:            
 
Signature:             
 Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 

Packet Pg. 136

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 2 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 
Oak Vista Subdivision () 

(SD2015-0002, Z2015-0002 and TRE2015-0008) 
 

 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq., as 
amended by Chapter 1232) requires all lead agencies before approving a proposed project to adopt 
a reporting and monitoring program for adopted or required changes to mitigate or avoid 
significant environmental effects. The reporting or monitoring program shall be designed to ensure 
compliance during project implementation as required by AB 3180 (Cortese) effective on January 1, 
1989 and Public Resources Code Section 21081.6. This law requires the lead agency responsible for 
the certification of an environmental impact report or adoption of a mitigated negative declaration 
to prepare and approve a program to both monitor all mitigation measures and prepare and 
approve a report on the progress of the implementation of those measures. 
 
The responsibility for monitoring assignments is based upon the expertise or authority of the 
person(s) assigned to monitor the specific activity. The City of Rocklin Community Development 
Director or his designee shall monitor to assure compliance and timely monitoring and reporting of 
all aspects of the mitigation monitoring program. 
 
The Mitigation Monitoring Plan identifies the mitigation measures associated with the project and 
identifies the monitoring activities required to ensure their implementation through the use of a 
table format. The columns identify Mitigation Measure, Implementation and Monitoring 
responsibilities.  Implementation responsibility is when the project through the development stages 
is checked to ensure that the measures are included prior to the actual construction of the project 
such as: Final Map (FM), Improvement Plans (IP), and Building Permits (BP). Monitoring 
responsibility identifies the department responsible for monitoring the mitigation implementation 
such as: Economic and Community Development (ECDD), Public Services (PS), Community Facilities 
(CFD), Police (PD), and Fire Departments (FD).  
 
The following table presents the Mitigation Monitoring Plan with the Mitigation Measures, 
Implementation, and Monitoring responsibilities. After the table is a general Mitigation Monitoring 
Report Form, which will be used as the principal reporting form for this, monitoring program. Each 
mitigation measure will be listed on the form and provided to the responsible department. 
 
Revisions in the project plans and/or proposal have been made and/or agreed to by the applicant 
prior to this Negative Declaration being released for public review which will avoid the effects or 
mitigate those effects to a point where clearly no significant effects will occur. There is no 
substantial evidence before the City of Rocklin that the project as revised may have a significant 
effect on the environment, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines, Section 15070. These mitigation measures 
are as follows: 
  

Packet Pg. 137

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 3 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 
Air Quality: 
 
To address the exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations, the 
following mitigation measure is being applied to the project: 
 
III.-1 A variety of drought-tolerant, fine-needle evergreen trees, such as, but not limited to 
deodar cedar and redwood, shall be planted within the existing landscape parcel located at the 
northerly terminus of Silver Lupine Lane (APN: 453-070-041).  Said trees shall be a minimum size 
of 15-gallon per tree and shall be interspersed around and among the existing tree plantings so 
as to maximize the number of trees that the parcel can support based upon adequate spacing 
for mature trees.  In addition, the existing irrigation system shall be modified to provide for a 
sufficient water supply and necessary maintenance to ensure establishment and long-term 
viability of the additional trees. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for residences on Lots 54, 55, 56 and 57, it 
shall be demonstrated by the applicant/developer that the tree planting has occurred as 
prescribed in Mitigation Measure III.-1 above and that sufficient water supply and necessary 
maintenance will occur to ensure establishment and long-term viability of the trees. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
  

Packet Pg. 138

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 4 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 
Biological Resources: 
 
To address the potential impacts to nesting raptors, migratory birds and bat species, the 
following mitigation measure is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-1 The applicant/developer shall attempt to time the removal of potential nesting habitat for 
raptors, migratory birds and bat species to avoid the nesting season (February - August).  
 
If demolition activities occur during the nesting season for raptors, migratory birds and bat 
species (February-August), the City and/or contractor shall hire a qualified biologist approved by 
the City to conduct pre-construction surveys no more than 14 days prior to initiation of 
demolition activities. The survey shall cover all areas of suitable nesting habitat within 500 feet 
of project activity and shall be valid for one construction season. Prior to the start of demolition 
activities, documentation of the survey shall be provided to the City of Rocklin Building 
Department and if the survey results are negative, no further mitigation is required and 
necessary structure removal may proceed. If there is a break in demolition activity of more than 
14 days, then subsequent surveys shall be conducted. 
 
If the survey results are positive (active nests are found), impacts shall be avoided by the 
establishment of appropriate buffers. The biologist shall consult with the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the City to determine the size of an appropriate buffer area 
(CDFW guidelines recommend implementation of 500-foot buffers). Monitoring of the nest by a 
qualified biologist may be required if the activity has the potential to adversely affect an active 
nest. 
 
If construction activities are scheduled to occur during the non-breeding season (September- 
January), a survey is not required and no further studies are necessary. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
Prior to the start of grading or construction activities to occur within the nesting season, the 
applicant shall submit documentation of a survey for nesting raptors and migratory birds and 
bat species to the City’s Public Services and Economic and Community Development 
Departments. If the survey results are negative, no further mitigation is required. If the survey 
results are positive, the biologist shall consult with the City and the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife as detailed above. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Public Services Department 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife  

Packet Pg. 139

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 5 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 
Biological Resources: 
 
IV.-2 Prior to any grading or construction activities, the appropriate Section 404 permit will 
need to be acquired for any project-related impacts to waters of the U.S. Any waters of the U.S. 
that would be lost or disturbed should be replaced or rehabilitated on a “no-net-loss” basis in 
accordance with the Corps’ mitigation guidelines. Habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or 
replacement should be at a location and by methods agreeable to the Corps. In association with 
the Section 404 permit and prior to the issuance of improvement plans, a Section 401 water 
quality certification from the Regional Water Quality Control Board and if determined 
necessary, a USFWS Biological Opinion shall be obtained. All terms and conditions of said 
permits shall be complied with. 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit documentation to the 
Public Services Department that they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 
permit, a Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 water quality certification, and if 
determined necessary, a United States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion. The 
applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department that they have implemented 
habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or replacement as stipulated in their Section 404 permit. 
The applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department how they have complied 
with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 permit, the Section 401 water quality 
certification, and if applicable, the Biological Opinion. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit documentation to the 
Public Services Department that they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 
permit, a Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 water quality certification and a 
USFWS Biological. The applicant shall also demonstrate that they have implemented habitat 
restoration, rehabilitation, and/or replacement as stipulated in their Section 404 permit. The 
applicant shall also demonstrate how they have complied with the terms and conditions of the 
Section 404 permit, the Section 401 water quality certification, and if applicable, the Biological 
Opinion. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant 
City of Rocklin Public Services Department 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
Regional Water Quality Control Board  

Packet Pg. 140

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 6 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 

Biological Resources: 
 
To ensure compliance with the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance and to compensate for 
the removal of the oak trees on the project site, the following mitigation measure, agreed to by 
the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-3 Prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, the applicant shall: 
 
a) Clearly indicate on the construction documents that oak trees not scheduled for removal will 

be protected from construction activities in compliance with the pertinent sections of the 
City of Rocklin Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance. 
 

b) Mitigate for the removal of oak trees on the project site consistent with the requirements of 
the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code Section 17.77.080.B).  
The required mitigation shall be calculated using the formula provided in the Oak Tree 
Preservation Ordinance and to that end the project arborist shall provide the following 
information:  

 
• The total number of surveyed oak trees; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed that are to be removed because they are 

sick or dying, and  
• The total, in inches, of the trunk diameters at breast height (TDBH) of all surveyed oak 

trees on the site in each of these categories.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activity, the applicant/developer shall prepare, subject to 
approval by the City’s Community Development Director, an oak tree mitigation plan which 
incorporates the steps noted above, including payment of necessary fees into the City’s Oak 
Tree Mitigation Fund. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 

  

Packet Pg. 141

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 7 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 

Cultural Resources: 
 
To address the potential of impacts to known cultural resources and the potential discovery of 
unknown cultural resources, the following mitigation measures are being applied to the project: 
 
V.-1 Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, a qualified archaeologist shall conduct cultural resources awareness training for 
construction crew members, and the City’s Environmental Services Manager shall be provided 
with evidence that a qualified archaeologist has been enlisted for such services. The training 
shall consist of a presentation of the potential prehistoric or historic cultural resources that may 
be found on the site and what likely evidence and examples of cultural resources could be 
discovered during grading and/or construction activities. The training shall also provide 
guidance on what to do in the event that cultural resources are discovered. All crew members 
shall sign a training sheet documenting that they attended the training. A letter report shall be 
submitted to the City’s Environmental Services Manager and the project proponent within 30 
days following the worker awareness training to document the results and to transmit the 
training sign-in sheet. 
 
V.-2 If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of shell, charcoal, 
animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, structure/building remains) is made during 
project-related construction activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted 
and a qualified professional archaeologist, the Environmental Services Manager and the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall be notified regarding the discovery. The archaeologist shall 
determine whether the resource is potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a 
historical resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique paleontological resource) and 
shall develop specific measures to ensure preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to 
the resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, logistics, technological 
considerations, the location of the find, and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation 
of the find is consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the project. Specific 
measures for significant or potentially significant resources would include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, preservation in place, in-field documentation, archival research, 
subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of measure necessary would be determined 
according to evidence indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner consistent with CEQA guidelines for 
preserving or otherwise mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  
 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains, there shall be no 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 
adjacent human remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) and (2) 
of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, has occurred. If any 
human remains are discovered, all work shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the 
County Coroner shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety 

Packet Pg. 142

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 8 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall also be notified. If the remains are Native 
American, the Coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will 
inform a most likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the landowner 
appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, and the landowner shall comply 
with the requirements of AB2641 (2006). 
 
V.-3 Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, the United Auburn Indian Community, the project applicant/developer and the City of 
Rocklin shall enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding the treatment and 
disposition of identified cultural resources. 
 
V-4. Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, the project applicant shall coordinate with the United Auburn Indian Community to 
have a tribal monitor present during any re-location activities for identified cultural resources 
and during ground disturbance within a 100-foot radius of identified cultural resources as 
specified in the MOU noted in Mitigation Measure V.-3 above. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
V.-1 Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, a qualified archaeologist shall conduct cultural resources awareness training for 
construction crew members and the City’s Environmental Services Manager shall be provided 
with evidence that a qualified archaeologist has been enlisted for such services. The training 
shall be as described above in Mitigation Measure V.-1 and shall also provide guidance on what 
to do in the event that cultural resources are discovered. Within 30-days following the worker’s 
awareness training, a letter report shall be submitted to the City’s Environmental Services 
Manager and the project proponent documenting the training efforts, including the training 
sign-in sheet documenting that the crew members attended the training. 
 
 
V.-2 If evidence of undocumented cultural resources is discovered during grading or 
construction operations, ground disturbance in the area shall be halted and a qualified 
professional archaeologist, the City’s Environmental Services Manager and the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall be notified regarding the discovery. Other procedures as specifically 
noted in Mitigation Measure V.-2 shall also be followed and complied with. 
 
V.-3 Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, the United Auburn Indian Community, the project applicant/developer and the City of 
Rocklin shall enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding the treatment and 
disposition of identified cultural resources. A copy of the completed MOU shall be provided to 
all parties. 
 
V.-4 Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any grading or construction 
activities, the project applicant shall coordinate with the United Auburn Indian Community to 

Packet Pg. 143

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 9 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

have a tribal monitor present during any re-location activities for identified cultural resources 
and during ground disturbance within a 100-foot radius of identified cultural resources as 
specified in the MOU noted in Mitigation Measure V.-3 above. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
City Manager/City Council (MOU signature party) 
City of Rocklin Public Services Department (Environmental Services Manager) 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
United Auburn Indian Community (UAIC) 
Applicants/Developers 
  

Packet Pg. 144

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 10 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 

Hazardous Materials: 
 
To address potential impacts from unknown septic and well systems, the following mitigation 
measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project. 
 
VIII.-1 If at any time during the course of grading or construction activities evidence of the 
existence of old wells, septic systems or other similar features is encountered, work shall be 
halted within 100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be notified. The City 
Engineer shall make a determination as to the nature of the feature (or features), the 
appropriate size for a buffer around the feature beyond which work could continue on the 
balance of the site, and which outside agencies, if any, should be notified and involved in 
addressing and/or remediation of the feature. At the discretion of the City Engineer and at the 
applicant’s expense, a qualified consultant(s) shall be retained to assess and characterize the 
feature and to determine appropriate remediation, if any. Remediation of the feature including 
obtaining any special permits and/or approvals as needed shall be completed and documented 
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and any responsible agencies, such as but not limited to 
the Placer County Department of Environmental Health, prior to completion of 
grading/construction in the affected area. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
If evidence of existing old wells, septic systems or other similar features is encountered, work 
shall be halted within a 100-foot radius of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be 
notified. The City Engineer shall assess the nature of the feature(s) and determine if a no-work 
buffer area needs to be established and whether outside agencies shall be notified and become 
involved in addressing and/or remediation of the feature. The City Engineer shall also 
determine if it is necessary for the applicant to hire a qualified consultant to assess and 
characterize the feature and determine appropriate remediation, if necessary. Remediation of 
the feature shall be completed and documented to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and any 
responsible agencies such as the Placer County Department of Environmental Health prior to 
the any grading/construction activities resuming in the affected area. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department (City Engineer) 
Placer County Department of Environmental Health 
Applicants/Developers 
 

  

Packet Pg. 145

Agenda Item #7.a.



 

Page 11 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MONITORING REPORT FORMS 
 
 
Project Title:   
 
 
Mitigation Measures:  
 
 
Completion Date: (Insert date or time period that mitigation measures were completed) 
 
Responsible Person:   
 
________________________________ 
(Insert name and title) 
 
Monitoring/Reporting: 
 
________________________________ 
Community Development Director 
 
Effectiveness Comments: 
 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 146

Agenda Item #7.a.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE REZONING AN AREA FROM 

UNCLASSIFIED (U) TO A COMBINATION OF RESIDENTIAL SIX THOUSAND SQUARE FOOT 
MINIMUM LOT SIZE (R1-6) AND RESIDENTIAL TWELVE THOUSAND SQUARE FOOT 

MINIMUM LOT SIZE (R1-12.5) 
 

(Oak Vista Subdivision / Z-2015-0002) 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that: 

A. Rezone (Z-2015-0002) would change the zoning of an approximately 
13.9-acre site consisting of six parcels generally located on the southwestern corner of 
Makabe Lane and Dias Lane (APNs 045-043-009, -030, -031, -032, and -052 and 453-070-
042) previously listed as “Unclassified” on the City of Rocklin zoning map to a 
combination of R1-6 and R1-12.5 zoning. The areas designated R1-12.5 would all front 
on Dias Lane. 
 

B. A Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project has been recommended 
for approval via Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-2017-_____. 
 
 C. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the General Plan designation of 
Medium Density Residential (MDR). 
 
 D.  The area is physically suited to the uses authorized in the proposed 
rezoning. 
 
 E. The proposed rezoning is compatible with the land uses existing and 
permitted on the properties in the vicinity. 
 
 F. The land uses, and their density and intensity, allowed in the proposed 
rezoning are not likely to create serious health problems or create nuisances on 
properties in the vicinity. 
 
 G.  The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the proposed 
rezoning on the housing needs of the region and has balanced those needs against the 
public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental resources. 
 
 H. The requested modifications would encourage a creative and more 
efficient approach to the use of land; maximize the choice in the type of housing 
available in Rocklin; and provide a means for creativity and flexibility in design while 

Packet Pg. 147

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 2 of 
Reso No. PC-2017- 

providing adequate protection of the environment and of the health, safety, and 
comfort of the residents of the City. 
 
 Section 2. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin hereby recommends 
City Council approval of the Rezone (Z-2015-0002) in the form as shown on Attachment 
1, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____day of __________, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Carl Sloan, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary 
 

Packet Pg. 148

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 1 of Attachment 1 to 
Reso No. PC-2016-47 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
APPROVING A REZONE FROM UNCLASSIFIED (U) TO A COMBINATION OF RESIDENTIAL 
SIX THOUSAND SQUARE FOOT MINIMUM LOT SIZE (R1-6) AND RESIDENTIAL TWELVE 

THOUSAND SQUARE FOOT MINIMUM LOT SIZE (R1-12.5) 
 

(Oak Vista Subdivision / Z-2015-0002) 
 

 The City Council of the City of Rocklin does ordain as follows: 
 

 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rocklin finds and determines that: 
 

A. A. Rezone (Z-2015-0002) would change the zoning of an 
approximately 13.9-acre site consisting of six parcels generally located on the 
southwestern corner of Makabe Lane and Dias Lane (APNs 045-043-009, -030, -031, -
032, and -052 and 453-070-042) previously listed as “Unclassified” on the City of Rocklin 
zoning map to a combination of R1-6 and R1-12.5 zoning. The areas designated R1-12.5 
would all front on Dias Lane. 
 

B. A Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project has been approved via 
City Council Resolution No. PC-2017-______. 
 
 C. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the General Plan designation of 
Medium Density Residential (MDR). 
 
 D.  The area is physically suited to the uses authorized in the proposed 
rezoning. 
 
 E. The proposed rezoning is compatible with the land uses existing and 
permitted on the properties in the vicinity. 
 
 F. The land uses, and their density and intensity, allowed in the proposed 
rezoning are not likely to create serious health problems or create nuisances on 
properties in the vicinity. 
 
 G.  The City Council has considered the effect of the proposed rezoning on 
the housing needs of the region and has balanced those needs against the public service 
needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental resources. 
 
 H. The requested modifications would encourage a creative and more 
efficient approach to the use of land; maximize the choice in the type of housing 

Packet Pg. 149

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 2 of Attachment 1 to 
Reso No. PC-2017- 
 

available in Rocklin; and provide a means for creativity and flexibility in design while 
providing adequate protection of the environment and of the health, safety, and 
comfort of the residents of the City. 
 
 Section 2. The City Council of the City of Rocklin hereby approves the Rezone (Z-
2015-0002), as shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference 
herein. 
 
 Section 3. Within 15 days of the passage of this ordinance, the City Clerk shall 
cause the full text of the ordinance, with the names of those City Council members 
voting for and against the ordinance, to be published in the Placer Herald. In lieu of 
publishing the full text of the ordinance, the City Clerk, if so directed by the City 
Attorney and within 15 days, shall cause a summary of the ordinance, prepared by the 
City Attorney and with the names of the City Council members voting for and against 
the ordinance, to be published in the Placer Herald, and shall post in the office of the 
City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the ordinance, along with the names of 
those City Council members voting for and against the ordinance. The publication of a 
summary of the ordinance in lieu of the full text of the ordinance is authorized only 
where the requirements of Government Code section 36933(c)(1) are met. 

 
 INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rocklin held 
on ____________________, 20___, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers: 

NOES:  Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Rocklin held on __________, 20__, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Councilmembers:  

NOES:  Councilmembers:  

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:  

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 

Packet Pg. 150

Agenda Item #7.b.



 

Page 3 of Attachment 1 to 
Reso No. PC-2017- 
 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
First Reading:    
Second Reading:  
Effective Date:  

 

Packet Pg. 151

Agenda Item #7.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A to Attachment 1 
Of Reso No. PC-2017- 

EXHIBIT A 

  

Packet Pg. 152

Agenda Item #7.b.



 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION PC-2017- 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF 
A TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP AND AN OAK TREE PRESERVATION PLAN PERMIT 

 
(Oak Vista Subdivision / SD-2015-0002 and TRE-2015-0008) 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 

A. Tentative Subdivision Map and Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit (SD-
2015-0002 and TRE-2015-0008) allow the subdivision and development of an 
approximately 13.9-acre site into 63 single family lots, with associated streets and 
related improvements. 

 
B. A Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project has been recommended 

for approval via Planning Commission Resolution No. ________. 
 

C. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the approval of 
this subdivision on the housing needs of the region, and has balanced those needs 
against the public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental 
resources. 

 
D. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 

improvement, is consistent with the proposed Rezone for the property (Z-2015-0002) 
being processed concurrently. 

 
E. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 

improvement, is consistent with the objectives, policies and programs in the City of 
Rocklin's General Plan. 

 
F. The site is physically suitable for the proposed type and density of 

development. 
 

 G. The design of the subdivision and the proposed improvements are not 
likely to cause substantial environmental damage, nor will they substantially and 
avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

 
H. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not cause 

serious public health problems. 

Packet Pg. 153

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 2 of  
Reso. No.  

 
I. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict 

with easements acquired by the public at large for access through or use of the property 
within the proposed subdivision. 

 
J. The design of the subdivision provides, to the extent feasible, for future 

passive or natural heating and cooling opportunities. 
 

Section 2.  The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
recommends that the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager to negotiate 
and sign a Memorandum of Understanding between The City of Rocklin, United Auburn 
Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria, and Equity Smart Investments, Limited 
Partnership, Project Proponent for the Oak Vista Residential Development Concerning 
Treatment of Cultural Resources Located Within the Oak Vista Residential Development 
Project. 
 
 Section 3.  The Oak Vista Subdivision Tentative Subdivision Map and Oak Tree 
Preservation Plan Permit (SD-2015-0002 and TRE-2015-0008) as depicted in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, are hereby recommended 
for approval of the City Council, subject to the conditions listed below. The approved 
Exhibit A shall govern the design and construction of the project. Any condition directly 
addressing an element incorporated into Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify 
Exhibit A. All other plans, specifications, details, and information contained within 
Exhibit A shall be specifically applicable to the project and shall be construed as if 
directly stated within the conditions for approval. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the 
applicant / developer shall be solely responsible for satisfying each condition, and each 
of these conditions must be satisfied prior to or concurrently with the submittal of the 
final map with the City Engineer for the purpose of filing with the City Council. The 
agency and / or City department(s) responsible for ensuring implementation of each 
condition is indicated in parenthesis with each condition. 
 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

Packet Pg. 154

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 3 of  
Reso. No.  

 
B. Conditions 

 
1. Utilities 

 
a. Water – Water service shall be provided to the subdivision from Placer 

County Water Agency (PCWA) in compliance with all applicable PCWA 
standards and requirements. PCWA shall verify ability to serve the 
subdivision by signing off on the subdivision improvement plans. All 
necessary easements shall be shown and offered (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) on or with the final map. All necessary 
improvements shall be included on the subdivision improvement plans. 
(PCWA ENGINEERING) 

 
b. Sewer – Sewer service shall be provided to the subdivision from South 

Placer Municipal Utility District (SPMUD) in compliance with all applicable 
SPMUD standards and requirements. SPMUD shall verify ability to serve 
the subdivision by signing off on the subdivision improvement plans. All 
necessary easements shall be shown and offered (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) on or with the final map. All improvements shall be 
included on the subdivision improvement plans. (SPMUD, ENGINEERING) 

 
Copies of any required permits from federal, state, and local agencies 
having jurisdiction over wetland/riparian areas, which may be impacted 
by the placement of the sewer system within the plan area, shall be 
submitted to SPMUD prior to approval of the sewer plan for the project.  
(ENGINEERING) 

 
c. Telephone, Gas, and Electricity – Telephone, gas and electrical service 

shall be provided to the subdivision from AT&T and Pacific Gas & Electric 
(AT&T, PG&E, ENGINEERING) 

 
d. Postal Service – Mailbox locations shall be determined by the local 

postmaster. A letter from the local postmaster verifying all requirements 
have been met shall be filed with the City Engineer. (ENGINEERING) 

 
e.  Prior to recordation of final map, the project shall be included in the 

appropriate City financing districts as needed to most efficiently provide 
for public maintenance of public landscaping, open space, improvements 
such as sound walls, and provision of new or enhanced services such as 
street lighting, to the satisfaction of the City Finance Manager. (FINANCE, 
ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 

Packet Pg. 155

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 4 of  
Reso. No.  

f. Prior to recordation of the final map/issuance of improvement plans, the 
existing private water line easement through Lot H shall be abandoned 
and/or relocated as necessary. (PCWA, ENGINEERING)   

 
2. Schools 
 

The following condition shall be satisfied to mitigate the impact of the proposed 
development on school facilities: (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
BUILDING) 

 
a. At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay to 

the Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under Education Code 
section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995, to the satisfaction of 
the Rocklin Unified School District. 
 

b.   The above condition shall be waived by the City Council if the applicant 
and the District reach agreement to mitigate the impacts on the school 
facilities caused by the proposed development and jointly request in 
writing that the condition be waived. 

 
3. Parks 
 

Park fees shall be paid as required by Rocklin Municipal Code Chapters 17.71 and 
Chapter 16.28. (ENGINEERING) 
 

 
4. Fire Service 

 
a. Proposed street names shall be reviewed and approved by the Rocklin 

Fire Chief. (ENGINEERING, FIRE) 
 
b. Improvement plans shall show the location and size of fire hydrants and 

water mains in conformance with the standards and requirements of the 
Rocklin Fire Chief and Placer County Water Agency (PCWA). (PCWA, 
ENGINEERING, FIRE) 

 
c. Improvement plans shall reflect a looped water supply main to the 

satisfaction of the Rocklin Fire Chief and PCWA. (PCWA, ENGINEERING, 
FIRE) (per ED 5/24/16) 

 
5. Improvements/Improvement Plans 

 
Prior to any grading, site improvements, or other construction activities 
associated with this project improvement plans shall be prepared consistent 

Packet Pg. 156

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 5 of  
Reso. No.  

with the exhibits and conditions incorporated as a part of this entitlement, and 
in compliance with all applicable city standards, for the review and approval of 
the City Engineer.  
 
Improvement plans shall be valid for a period of two years from date of approval 
by the City Engineer. If substantial work has not been commenced within that 
time, or if the work is not diligently pursued to completion thereafter, the City 
Engineer may require the improvement plans to be resubmitted and/or modified 
to reflect changes in the standard specifications or other circumstances.  
 
All improvements shall be constructed and/or installed prior to submitting the 
final map with the City Engineer for the purpose of filing with the City Council, 
unless the subdivider executes the City's standard form subdivision improvement 
agreement and provides the financial security and insurance coverage required 
by the agreement, prior to or concurrent with submitting the final map with the 
City Engineer. 
 
The project improvement plans shall include the following: 
 (ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 
 
a. A detailed grading and drainage plan prepared by a registered civil 

engineer, in substantial compliance with the approved project exhibits, 
shall be included in the improvement plans for the project. The grading 
and drainage plan shall include the following: (ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 

 
i. Provisions for detaining run off at pre-development levels, to the 

satisfaction of the City Engineer and Public Services Director. 
 

ii. Individual lot drainage management areas including individual 
drainage features such as lined drainage swales. 

 
 iii. Prior to issuance of improvement plans, to ensure compliance 

with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System MS4s 
General Permit and the regulations and orders of the State Water 
Resources Control Board, the applicant shall prepare and 
implement a Stormwater Management Facility Operation and 
Maintenance Plan for the on-site treatment systems and 
hydromodification controls (if any, or acceptable alternative to 
the satisfaction of the City Engineer).   All specified treatment 
systems and hydromodification controls shall be owned and 
maintained by the City.  (ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES). 

 

Packet Pg. 157

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 6 of  
Reso. No.  

 iv. All storm drainage inlets shall be stamped with City Engineer 
approved wording indicating that dumping of waste is prohibited 
and identifying that the inlets drain into the creek system. 

 
 v. Subdivider shall prepare a storm water pollutant protection plan 

(SWPPP) for review and approval by the State Regional Water 
Quality Control Board as part of the project's drainage 
improvement plans. 

 
 vi. Prior to the commencement of grading operations, and if the 

project site will not balance with respect to grading, the 
contractor shall identify the site where any excess earthen 
material shall be deposited. If the deposit site is within the City of 
Rocklin, the contractor shall submit a report issued by a technical 
engineer to verify that the exported materials are suitable for the 
intended fill and show proof of all approved grading plans. Haul 
routes to be used shall be specified. If the site requires importing 
of earthen material, then prior to the commencement of grading 
operations, the contractor shall identify the site where the 
imported earthen material is coming from and the contractor 
shall submit a report issued by a technical engineer to verify that 
the imported materials are suitable for the intended fill and show 
proof of all approved grading plans. Haul routes to be used shall 
be specified. 

 
vii. Construction related and permanent Best Management Practices 

(BMPs) and Best Available Technologies (BATs) shall be 
incorporated into the final project design and / or noted on the 
Improvement Plans as appropriate to reduce urban pollutants in 
runoff, consistent with goals and standards established under 
Federal and State non-point source discharge regulations (NPDES 
permit) and Basin Plan water quality objectives. Stormwater 
runoff BMPs selected from the Storm Water Quality Task Force, 
the Bay Area Storm Water Management Agencies Association 
Start at the Source – Design Guide Manual, the Sacramento 
Stormwater Quality Partnership’s Stormwater Quality Design 
Manual for the Sacramento and South Placer Regions, or equally 
effective measures shall be identified prior to final design 
approval and shall be incorporated into project design and / or 
noted on the Improvement Plans as appropriate. 

 
To maximize effectiveness, the selected BMPs shall be based on 
finalized site-specific hydrologic conditions, with consideration for 
the types and locations of development. 

Packet Pg. 158

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 7 of  
Reso. No.  

 
b.  Prior to any grading or construction activities, the subdivider shall: 
 

i. Obtain a General Construction Activity Storm Water Permit as a 
part of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit process from the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board. 
 

ii. Submit verification from the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers and the 
California Department of Fish and Game that the project meets all 
regulations and that the subdivider has obtained all required 
permits relating to wetlands and waterways. 

 
iii. All well sites located on the property shall require abandonment 

and/or removal in accordance with the Placer County 
Environmental Health Department well abandonment procedure. 
Confirmation of the abandonment shall be submitted to Placer 
County Environmental Health Department and City of Rocklin.  

 
iv. All septic sites located on the property shall require abandonment 

in accordance with Placer County Environmental Health 
Department procedures. Confirmation of the abandonment shall 
be submitted to Placer County Environmental Health Department 
and City of Rocklin. 

 
c. Waters of the United States: 
 

i. Prior to any grading or construction activities, the appropriate 
Section 404 permit will need to be acquired for any project-
related impacts to waters of the U.S. Any waters of the U.S. that 
would be lost or disturbed should be replaced or rehabilitated on 
a “no-net-loss” basis in accordance with the Corps’ mitigation 
guidelines. Habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or replacement 
should be at a location and by methods agreeable to the Corps. In 
association with the Section 404 permit and prior to the issuance 
of improvement plans, a Section 401 water quality certification 
from the Regional Water Quality Control Board and if determined 
necessary, a USFWS Biological Opinion shall be obtained. All terms 
and conditions of said permits shall be complied with. 
 
For potential impacts to riparian habitat, the project may be 
required to obtain a Section 1600 Streambed Alteration 
Agreement (SAA) from the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife. If it is determined that a SAA is required, the applicant 

Packet Pg. 159

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 8 of  
Reso. No.  

shall obtain one and all terms and conditions of the SAA shall be 
complied with. 
 

 
ii. Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall 

submit documentation to the Public Services Department that 
they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 
permit, a Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 
water quality certification, and if determined necessary, a United 
States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion and a 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife Section 1600 
Streambed Alteration Agreement. The applicant shall also 
demonstrate that they have implemented habitat restoration, 
rehabilitation, and/or replacement as stipulated in their Section 
404 permit. The applicant shall also demonstrate how they have 
complied with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 
permit, the Section 401 water quality certification, and if 
applicable, the Biological Opinion and Section 1600 Streambed 
Alteration Agreement. 
(MITIGATION MEASURE IV.-2) 

  
d. Nesting Raptors and Migratory Birds: 

 
i. The applicant/developer shall attempt to time the removal of 

potential nesting habitat for raptors, migratory birds, and bat 
species to avoid the nesting season (February - August).  
 

ii. If demolition activities occur during the nesting season for 
raptors, migratory birds and bat species (February-August), the 
City and/or contractor shall hire a qualified biologist approved by 
the City to conduct pre-construction surveys no more than 14 
days prior to initiation of demolition activities. The survey shall 
cover all areas of suitable nesting habitat within 500 feet of 
project activity and shall be valid for one construction season. 
Prior to the start of demolition activities, documentation of the 
survey shall be provided to the City of Rocklin Building 
Department and if the survey results are negative, no further 
mitigation is required and necessary structure removal may 
proceed. If there is a break in demolition activity of more than 14 
days, then subsequent surveys shall be conducted. 

 
iii. If the survey results are positive (active nests are found), impacts 

shall be avoided by the establishment of appropriate buffers. The 
biologist shall consult with the California Department of Fish and 

Packet Pg. 160

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 9 of  
Reso. No.  

Wildlife (CDFW) and the City to determine the size of an 
appropriate buffer area (CDFW guidelines recommend 
implementation of 500-foot buffers). Monitoring of the nest by a 
qualified biologist may be required if the activity has the potential 
to adversely affect an active nest. 

 
iv. If construction activities are scheduled to occur during the non-

breeding season (September- January), a survey is not required 
and no further studies are necessary. 

  (MITIGATION MEASURE IV.-1) 
 

e. On-site Improvements 
 

The following improvements shall be designed, constructed, and/or 
installed: 

 
i. All on-site standard subdivision improvements, including streets, 

curbs, gutters, sidewalks, drainage improvements, utility 
improvements (including cable television trenching), street lights, 
and fire hydrants. (ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, PLANNING) 

 
ii. Developer shall dedicate to City a telecommunication easement, 

and shall install and dedicate to City telecommunication conduit 
within the easement. The easement shall be located in the public 
utility easement of each street within the subdivision, and any 
adjacent streets as necessary to connect the easement to the 
City's public street and easement network. The easement shall be 
for telecommunications use by City, in whatever manner the City 
may, in its sole discretion, elects. The conduit shall be large 
enough for at least two (2) sets of coaxial cable (approximately 
three (3) inches total diameter), shall include access to the cable 
spaced at reasonable distances, and shall otherwise comply with 
City standards and specifications in effect at the time the conduit 
is installed. 

 
Developer shall provide any City telecommunication franchisee, 
including any cable television franchisee, access to the easement 
for the purpose of installing cable and conduit while the public 
utility trench is open and prior to the street being paved. 
(ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, PLANNING)  

 
  iii. The following on-site special improvements:  
 

Streetlights 

Packet Pg. 161

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 10 of  
Reso. No.  

 
1) Street lights shall be installed to match the existing street 

lights in the adjacent Rocklin 60 subdivision. Lighting 
installation and wiring shall comply with all applicable City 
standards.  

 
Street Signs and Poles 

 
2) Street sign poles and signs consistent with the adjacent 

Rocklin 60 subdivision shall be installed on all streets 
within the subdivision.  

 
Makabe Lane 
 
4)  Access to the project via Makabe Lane shall be limited to 

emergency vehicles. No construction vehicle access shall 
be allowed on Makabe Lane during any stage of 
development.  

 
Fencing Adjacent to Lot D 
 
5)  Fencing shall be installed along the property line between 

Lots 20 & 21 and the adjacent City owned Lot D.  Said 
fencing shall consist of 30 inch high tubular metal fencing 
beginning at the front street property line and extending 
back twenty-five (25’),  the width of the front setback.  
From the front setback line a six (6’) high good neighbor 
type fence, constructed with metal posts, shall extend to 
the rear property line.     

 
Lot F Wall 
 
6)  As a part of any site grading the existing masonry wall 

along the rear (easterly side) of City owned Lot F shall be 
removed.     

 
 

f. Landscape and irrigation plans for Lot A shall be included with the project 
improvement plans and shall comply with the following:  (ENGINEERING, 
PUBLIC SERVICES, PLANNING) 

 
i. The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect 

and shall include: 
 

Packet Pg. 162

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 11 of  
Reso. No.  

1) A legend of the common and botanical names of specific 
plant materials to be used. The legend should indicate the 
size of plant materials. Shrubs shall be a minimum 5 gallon 
and trees a minimum of 15 gallon. 

 
2) A section diagram of proposed tree staking. 

 
3) An irrigation plan including an automatic irrigation system. 

All street landscaping, whether publicly or privately 
owned, shall be irrigated by a permanent drip system or 
low water consumption system acceptable to the City of 
Rocklin. 

 
4) Certification by the landscape architect that the landscape 

plans meets the requirements of the Water Conservation 
and Landscaping Act. Government Code §65591, et seq. 

 
5) Certification by the landscape architect that the soil within 

the landscape area is suitable for the proposed 
landscaping and / or specify required soil treatments and 
amendments needed to ensure the health and vigor of 
landscape planting. 

 
ii. All landscaping plant materials shall be verified and approved by 

the Director of Public Services 
 
iii. All landscaping improvements shall be constructed and/or 

installed prior to submitting the final map for filing with the City 
Council, unless the subdivider executes the City’s standard form 
subdivision landscaping agreement and provides the financial 
security and insurance coverage required by the subdivision 
landscaping agreement, prior to or concurrent with submitting 
the final map. 

 
iv. The subdivider shall maintain the landscaping and irrigation 

systems for one year from the date the landscaping is accepted by 
the City, without reimbursement. The subdivider shall apply for 
and obtain an encroachment permit to do any maintenance in the 
public right-of-way until such time as the City takes over 
maintenance of the landscaping. 

 
g. All rights-of-way and easements associated with the subdivision 

improvements shall be offered on, or by separate instrument 
concurrently with, the final subdivision map; provided, that street rights-

Packet Pg. 163

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 12 of  
Reso. No.  

of-way shall be offered by means of an irrevocable offer of dedication 
(IOD). (ENGINEERING) 

 
h. Prior to any grading or construction activities including issuance of 

improvement plans, the developer shall submit a design-level soil 
investigation for the review and approval of the City Engineer and Chief 
Building Official that evaluates soil and rock conditions, particularly the 
potential for expansive soils. The professional engineer that prepared the 
soil investigation shall recommend appropriate roadway construction and 
foundation techniques and other best practices that are to be 
implemented by the project during construction. These techniques and 
practices shall address expansive soils or other geological concerns 
requiring remediation, including but not limited to: 

 
• Recommendations for building pad and footing construction; 
• Use of soil stabilizers or other additives; and 
• Recommendations for surface drainage. 

 
i. Provisions for dust control, re-vegetation of disturbed areas, and erosion 

control, in conformance with the requirements of the City of Rocklin, 
including but not limited to the following items, which shall be included 
in the project notes on the improvement plans: (ENGINEERING) 
 
i. The prime contractor shall submit to the District a comprehensive 

inventory (e.g., make, model, year, emission rating) of all the 
heavy-duty off-road equipment (50 horsepower or greater) that 
will be used in aggregate of 40 or more hours for the construction 
project.  If any new equipment is added after submission of the 
inventory, the prime contractor shall contact the District prior to 
the new equipment being utilized. At least three business days 
prior to the use of subject heavy-duty off-road equipment, the 
project representative shall provide the District with the 
anticipated construction timeline including start date, name, and 
phone number of the property owner, project manager, and on-
site foreman. 
 

ii. During construction the contractor shall utilize existing power 
sources (e.g., power poles) or clean fuel (e.g., gasoline, biodiesel, 
natural gas) generators to minimize the use of temporary diesel 
power generators. 

 
iii. During construction, the contractor shall minimize idling time to a 

maximum of 5 minutes for all diesel powered equipment. 
 

Packet Pg. 164

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 13 of  
Reso. No.  

iv. Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 15 
mph or less. 

 
v. All grading operations shall be suspended when fugitive dust 

emissions exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations.  The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for having an individual who 
is CARB-certified to perform Visible Emissions Evaluations (VEE).  
This individual shall evaluate compliance with Rule 228 on a 
weekly basis. 

 
vi. Fugitive dust emissions shall not exceed 40% opacity and shall not 

go beyond the property boundary at any time. If lime or other 
drying agents are utilized to dry out wet grading areas, the 
developer shall ensure such agents are controlled so as not to 
exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations. 

 
vii. The prime contractor shall be responsible for keeping adjacent 

public thoroughfares clean of silt, dirt, mud, and debris, and shall 
“wet broom” the streets (or use another method to control dust 
as approved by the individual jurisdiction) if silt, dirt mud or 
debris is carried over to adjacent public thoroughfares. 

 
viii. The prime contractor shall suspend all grading operations when 

wind speeds (including instantaneous gusts) are excessive and 
dust is impacting adjacent properties. 

 
ix. The contractor shall apply water or use other method to control 

dust impacts offsite.  Construction vehicles leaving the site shall 
be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being released 
or tracked off-site. 

 
x. All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean condition. 

 
xi. Chemical soil stabilizers, vegetative mats, or other appropriate 

best management practices, in accordance with manufacturers’ 
specifications, shall be applied to all-inactive construction areas 
(previously graded areas which remain inactive for 96 hours). 

 
xii. All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 

 
xiii. If fill dirt is brought to or removed from the construction site, 

tarps or soil stabilizers shall be placed on the dirt piles to minimize 
dust problems. 

 

Packet Pg. 165

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 14 of  
Reso. No.  

xiv. Water shall be applied to control fugitive dust, as needed, to 
prevent impacts offsite. Operational water trucks shall be onsite 
to control fugitive dust. Construction vehicles leaving the site shall 
be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being released 
or tracked off-site. 

 
xv. Processes that discharge 2 pounds per day or more of air 

contaminants, as defined by California State Health and Safety 
Code Section 39013, to the atmosphere may require a permit.  
Developers / Contractors should contact the PCAPCD prior to 
construction or use of equipment and obtain any necessary 
permits. 

 
xvi. In order to minimize wind driven dust during construction, the 

prime contractor shall apply methods such as surface 
stabilization, establishment of a vegetative cover, paving, (or use 
another method to control dust as approved by the City). 

 
xvii. Construction equipment exhaust emissions shall not exceed 

Placer County APCD Rule 202 Visible Emission limitations.  
Operators of vehicles and equipment found to exceed opacity 
limits are to be immediately notified by APCD to cease operations 
and the equipment must be repaired within 72 hours. 

 
xviii. Open burning of any kind shall be prohibited.  All removed 

vegetative material shall be either chipped on site or taken to an 
appropriate recycling site, or if a site is not available, a licensed 
disposal site. 

 
xix. Any diesel powered equipment used during project construction 

shall be Air Resources Board (ARB) certified. 
 

j. The following shall be Included in the project notes on the improvement 
plans: 

 
i. Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any 

grading or construction activities, a qualified archaeologist shall 
conduct cultural resources awareness training for construction 
crew members, and the City’s Environmental Services Manager 
shall be provided with evidence that a qualified archaeologist has 
been enlisted for such services. The training shall consist of a 
presentation of the potential prehistoric or historic cultural 
resources that may be found on the site and what likely evidence 
and examples of cultural resources could be discovered during 
grading and/or construction activities. The training shall also 

Packet Pg. 166

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 15 of  
Reso. No.  

provide guidance on what to do in the event that cultural 
resources are discovered. All crew members shall sign a training 
sheet documenting that they attended the training. A letter 
report shall be submitted to the City’s Environmental Services 
Manager and the project proponent within 30 days following the 
worker awareness training to document the results and to 
transmit the training sign-in sheet. 
(MITIGATION MEASURE V.-1) 
 

ii. If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual 
amounts of shell, charcoal, animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, 
burned soil, structure/building remains) is made during project-
related construction activities, ground disturbances in the area of 
the find shall be halted and a qualified professional archaeologist, 
the City’s Environmental Services Manager, and the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall be notified regarding the 
discovery. The archaeologist shall determine whether the 
resource is potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a 
historical resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique 
paleontological resource) and shall develop specific measures to 
ensure preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to the 
resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, 
logistics, technological considerations, the location of the find, 
and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation of the find 
is consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the 
project. Specific measures for significant or potentially significant 
resources would include, but are not necessarily limited to, 
preservation in place, in-field documentation, archival research, 
subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of measure 
necessary would be determined according to evidence indicating 
degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner 
consistent with CEQA guidelines for preserving or otherwise 
mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  

 
 In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any 

human remains, there shall be no further excavation or 
disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected 
to overlie adjacent human remains, until compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) and (2) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, has 
occurred. If any human remains are discovered, all work shall stop 
in the immediate vicinity of the find and the County Coroner shall 
be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health 

Packet Pg. 167

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 16 of  
Reso. No.  

and Safety Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall 
also be notified. If the remains are Native American, the Coroner 
will notify the Native American Heritage Commission, which in 
turn will inform a most likely descendant. The descendant will 
then recommend to the landowner appropriate disposition of the 
remains and any grave goods, and the landowner shall comply 
with the requirements of AB2641 (2006).  

 (MITIGATION MEASURE V.-2) 
 

iii. Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any 
grading or construction activities, the United Auburn Indian 
Community, the project applicant/developer and the City of 
Rocklin shall enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
regarding the treatment and disposition of identified cultural 
resources. 
(MITIGATION MEASURE V.-3) 
 

iv. Prior to the issuance of Improvement Plans and prior to any 
grading or construction activities, the project applicant shall 
coordinate with the United Auburn Indian Community to have a 
tribal monitor present during any re-location activities for 
identified cultural resources and during ground disturbance within 
a 100-foot radius of identified cultural resources as specified in 
the MOU noted in Mitigation Measure V.-3 above. 
(MITIGATION MEASURE V.-4) 

 
v. If at any time during the course of grading or construction 

activities evidence of the existence of old wells, septic systems or 
other similar features is encountered, work shall be halted within 
100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be 
notified. The City Engineer shall make a determination as to the 
nature of the feature (or features), the appropriate size for a 
buffer around the feature beyond which work could continue on 
the balance of the site, and which outside agencies, if any, should 
be notified and involved in addressing and/or remediation of the 
feature. At the discretion of the City Engineer and at the 
applicant’s expense, a qualified consultant(s) shall be retained to 
assess and characterize the feature and to determine appropriate 
remediation, if any. Remediation of the feature including 
obtaining any special permits and/or approvals as needed shall be 
completed and documented to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and any responsible agencies, such as but not limited to 
the Placer County Department of Environmental Health, prior to 
completion of grading/construction in the affected area. 

Packet Pg. 168

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 17 of  
Reso. No.  

(MITIGATION MEASURE VIII.-1) 
 

vi. If blasting activities are to occur in conjunction with site 
development, the contractor shall conduct the blasting activities 
in compliance with State and local regulations. The contractor 
shall obtain a blasting permit from the City of Rocklin prior to 
commencing any blasting activities. Information submitted to 
obtain a blasting permit shall include a description of the work to 
be accomplished and a statement of necessity for blasting as 
opposed to other methods considered, including avoidance of 
hard rock areas, safety measures to be implemented, such as 
blast blankets, and traffic groundshaking impacts. The contractor 
shall coordinate any blasting activities with police and fire 
departments to ensure proper site access control, traffic control, 
and public notification including the media and affected residents 
and businesses, as appropriate. Blasting specifications and plans 
shall include a schedule that outlines the time frame that blasting 
will occur to limit noise and traffic inconveniences. 

 
6. Improvements in the Public Right-of-Way 

 
The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for all improvements within 
the public right-of-way.  Applicant shall post a performance bond and labor and 
materials payment bond (or other equivalent financial security) in the amount of 
100% of the cost of the improvements to be constructed in the public right-of-
way as improvement security to ensure the faithful performance of all duties and 
obligations required of applicant in the construction of the improvements.  Such 
improvement security shall be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.  Such 
security shall be either a corporate surety bond, a letter of credit, or other 
instrument of credit issued by a banking institution subject to regulation by the 
State or Federal government and pledging that the funds necessary to carry out 
this Agreement are on deposit and guaranteed for payment, or a cash deposit 
made either directly with the City or deposited with a recognized escrow agent 
for the benefit of the City.  (PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
7. Oak Tree Protection, Removal, and Mitigation 
 

Prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, to ensure 
compliance with the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance and to compensate 
for the removal of the oak trees on the project site, the applicant shall: 
(PLANNING, ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
a. Clearly indicate on the construction documents that oak trees not 

scheduled for removal will be protected from construction activities in 

Packet Pg. 169

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 18 of  
Reso. No.  

compliance with the pertinent sections of the City of Rocklin Oak Tree 
Preservation Ordinance. 

 
b. Mitigate for the removal of oak trees on the project site consistent with 

the requirements of the City’s Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code Section 17.77.080.B).  The required mitigation shall be 
calculated using the formula provided in the Oak Tree Preservation 
Ordinance and to that end the project arborist shall provide the following 
information: 
• The total number of surveyed oak trees; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed that are to be 

removed because they are sick or dying, and  
• The total, in inches, of the trunk diameters at breast height 

(TDBH) of all surveyed oak trees on the site in each of these 
categories. 

 (MITIGATION MEASURE-IV-3) 
 
8. Air Quality 
  

A variety of drought-tolerant, fine-needle evergreen trees, such as, but not 
limited to deodar cedar and redwood, shall be planted within the existing City 
owned landscape parcel located at the northerly terminus of Silver Lupine Lane 
(APN: 453-070-041).  Said trees shall be a minimum size of 15-gallon per tree and 
shall be interspersed around and among the existing tree plantings so as to 
maximize the number of trees that the parcel can support based upon adequate 
spacing for mature trees.  In addition, the existing irrigation system shall be 
modified to provide for a sufficient water supply and necessary maintenance to 
ensure establishment and long-term viability of the additional trees.  
(MITIGATION MEASURE III.-1) 

 
9.  Noise 

 
a. All construction equipment shall be properly equipped with feasible noise 

control devices (e.g., mufflers) and properly maintained in good working order. 
 

b. Construction activities shall be limited to the less noise sensitive daytime hours 
(7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. on weekdays and 8:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. on weekends). 
 

c. An on-site Noise Coordinator (as a function of on-site project management) shall 
be employed by the subdivider, and his or her telephone number along with 
instructions on how to file a noise complaint shall be posted conspicuously 
around the project site during all project construction phases. The Noise 
Coordinator’s duties shall include fielding and documenting noise complaints, 

Packet Pg. 170

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 19 of  
Reso. No.  

determining the source of the complaint (e.g., piece of construction equipment), 
determining whether noise levels at the project boundary are within acceptable 
limits (i.e., the performance standards in Table 4.4-6), and reporting complaints 
to the City with documented noise levels at the time of complaint. The Noise 
Coordinator shall work, to the extent feasible, with the surrounding residents 
and project contractors to schedule activities to minimize disturbance of 
residents during the daytime hours. 
 

d. Prior to the issuance of any Building Permits for temporary construction 
trailer(s), if a burglar alarm is proposed, a permit shall be obtained as part of the 
Rocklin Police Department’s False Alarm Reduction Program (FARP). During the 
application process, the applicant shall provide a contact person’s name and 
phone number, along with the mailing address for all correspondence.  

 
11. Subdivision Design 
 

a. Prior to approval of improvement plans and / or recording of a final map the 
project shall be revised as needed so that all drawings reflect the project layout 
shown on the Tentative Map (Sheet 1 of Exhibit A).  These modifications are 
necessary to incorporate minor corrections to lot layout made to the Tentative 
Subdivision Map, including but not limited to the removal of Lots D and F from 
the project boundaries, but are not reflected on all related sheets (i.e. Grading, 
Utilities Plan, etc.) into project construction drawings.  (PLANNING) 
 

b. The City shall retain ownership of Lot D, adjacent to the project site. 
Maintenance of common fencing between Lot D and Lots 20 and 21 shall be the 
responsibility of the residential property owners. (PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 
 

c. The City shall retain ownership of Lot F. Prior to approval of a Final Map, 
issuance of a grading permit, or Improvement Plans (whichever occurs first) the 
applicant shall obtain from the City access and landscape maintenance 
easement(s) over Lot F for Lots 51-56. Maintenance shall be the responsibility of 
the residential property owners. (PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

 
12. Monitoring 

 
Prior to recording of the first Final Map or any grading on the property, the 
subdivider shall deposit with the City of Rocklin the current fee to pay for the 
City’s time and material cost to administer the Mitigation Monitoring Program. 
The Economic and Community Development Director shall determine if and 
when additional deposits must be paid for administering the Mitigation 
Monitoring Program, including additional deposits on subsequent phase final 
maps. These amounts shall be paid prior to recording subsequent final maps on 
this project.  (PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

Packet Pg. 171

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 20 of  
Reso. No.  

 
13.  Execution of Indemnity Agreement 

 
Within 30 days of approval of this subdivision or parcel map by the City, the 
applicant shall execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City 
Attorney’s Office, to defend, indemnify, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of 
Rocklin and its agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or 
proceeding against the City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an approval of 
the subdivision or parcel map by the City’s planning commission or legislative 
body, which action is brought within the time period provided for in Section 
66499.37 of the Government Code. The City will promptly notify the applicant of 
any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City will cooperate in the defense 
of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless waived by the City, no further 
processing, permitting, implementation, plan checking or inspections related to 
the subdivision or parcel map shall be performed by the City if the Indemnity 
Agreement has not been fully executed within 30 days. 

 
14. Validity 

 
a. This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless 

prior to that date a final map has been issued or a time extension has 
been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
b. This entitlement shall not be considered valid and approved unless and 

until the concurrent Rezone (Z-2015-0002) has been approved. 
(PLANNING, ENGINEERING) 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this         day of          , 2017, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:   
NOES:  Commissioners:   
ABSENT: Commissioners:   
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:   
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Secretary

Packet Pg. 172

Agenda Item #7.c.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No. 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Project Packet 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 173

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 174

Agenda Item #7.c.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
SD-2015-0002



Packet Pg. 175

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 176

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 177

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 178

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 179

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 180

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 181

Agenda Item #7.c.



Packet Pg. 182

Agenda Item #7.c.


	AGENDA
	INTRODUCTION
	1. Meeting called to order at
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	4. Minutes
	5. Correspondence
	6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items

	CONSENT ITEMS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	7. OAK VISTA TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP, SD2015-0002
REZONE, Z2015-0002
OAK TREE PRESERVATION PERMIT, TRE2015-0008
		
This application is a request for approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map, Rezone, and Oak Tree Preservation Permit to subdivide six (6) parcels totaling 13.9 acres into 63 residential lots.  The subject site is generally located on the southwest corner of Makabe Lane and Diaz Lane and is bordered on three sides by the existing Rocklin 60 Subdivision.  APN’s 045-043-009, -030, -031, -032, and -052 and 453-070-042. The zoning for this property is currently Unclassified. The General Plan designation is Medium Density Residential (MDR).

Notice is hereby given that the City of Rocklin will consider adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the development project described above.  The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes.

The applicant is Ryan Bradford.  The property owner is Placer Partners, LLC.

	[SR - Oak Vista (complete).pdf]
	a. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of a Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts   (Oak Vista Subdivision / SD-2015-0002, Z-2015-0002, and TRE-2015-0008)
	[5 - Oak Vista Initial Study and MND-Final.pdf]

	b. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of an Ordinance Rezoning an Area From Unclassified (U) to a Combination of Residential Six Thousand Square Foot Minimum Lot Size (R1-6) and Residential Twelve Thousand Square Foot Minimum Lot Size (R1-12.5) (Oak Vista Subdivision / Z-2015-0002)
	[6 - Oak Vista Rezone PC Reso.pdf]

	c. Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin Recommending Approval of a Tentative Subdivision Map and an Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit (Oak Vista Subdivision / SD-2015-0002, TRE-2015-0008)
	[7 - Oak Vista TSM and TREE PC Reso w-exhibit.pdf]



	NON PUBLIC HEARINGS
	8. Informational Items and Presentations
	a. Report on Circulation Element Update

	9. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners
	10. Reports from City Staff
	11. Adjournment


